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Chairman's statement

Chairman’s statement

From start-up

to delivery

When first appointed Chairman of the British
Business Bank in October 2013, | said that this
was an idea of its time - with the potential to
be a key catalyst in producing a more effective
set of finanang options for smaller businesses

Ron Emerson
Charrman
British Business Bank

As we file our second set of accounts
1tis chear that we are continuing to
make significant pregress along the
road to fulfiling that aim

In 2015-15 1t would be farr to say
that we have gone from start-up
phase to delvery While the igures
in this report largely speak for
themsehves itts worth reiterating
the effort and thought that has gone
into making that happen

This kind of success doesn t happen by
accident - we've specifically set out to
do this in acollaboratve way holding
two-way conversauons with the
market, businesses and stakehelders
acress the range of our work A recent
example of this 1s the revised versicn
of the Business Finance Guide that we
have launched which involved more
than twenty partner orgamsalons

The way we formulate our solutions

- from our dynamic iterative process to
putsn place the Northern Poweshouse
Investment Fund 1o the open nature
of our Help 1o Grow initial phase -
helps us burld fruitful partnerships
that bring to bear our own expertise
and money and that of our partners

Wae have done this by buiiding a
powerful and talented platform of
people which has the capability to
develop awide range of innovatve
and relevant solutions Increasingly
we are recognised across government
and our stakeholders as agents for
thange wha get things done

Butits notjust about commertial
partnerships = our public sector
partners include the Department for
Commuruiies and Local Government,
UK Export Finance the Local Enterprise
Partnerships and HM Treasury -

1 addiion to our home Department
for Business Energy and Industnal
Strategy - as we work together to
bnng abaut real and lasting
improvements in markets for smaller
business finance

British Business Bank ~ Annual Report and Accounts 2016




Chalrmans statement

With such success we are being
approached to do stifi more and while
we have had to deal with the many
challenges that anincreased role
brings, we an look back aver the past
year with a great deal of pnide inwhat
we have achieved

European Referendum
Result

On 23 June the United Kingdem
voted to leave the European Urion
This generates some uncertanty
for the Bank assome of our
programmes rely on EV funding

or guarantees but also creates
apportunity for us to respond to the
changing envirenment bulding on
the platform we have established
We are inclose contact with our
stakeholders and are monitaring
market conditions to ensure that
wae respond as appropriate

People

Ive said before that one thing that
really shines through about our
organisation 15 the sharad sense
of purpose and mission that runs

Add

One thing that really
shimes through about
our organisation Is
the shared sense of
purpose and mission
that runs through it.
ry

through it This drive to improve
and behef in what we are doing
helps us to thrive as we deliver our
expanded agenda

We are taking on new staff to deliver
these new pnonties and calleagues
across the British Business Bank are
being recogrused, for example, the
annual Fintechinnovation award for
alternative debt finance In-house
innovation award for our Legal team at
the British Legal Awards and indwidual
recognition for Shanika Amarasekara
cur General Counsel and Kerth Morgan
our Chief Executive

The Beard

Dunng the year Maria Turner gave
notification of her intention to resign
from the Board as she moved toan
overseas assignment Cne of our
non-executives, Teresa Graham,
stepped in as the intenm Chair of the
Risk Committee and we have recently
welcomed Neeta Atkar to the role on
apermanent basis

And finally, there will shortly be
another change at Board level Having
been Charrman of the 8ritish Business

Bark since October 2013 and
pverseen its setup | feel thus 1sa good
trme for me to hand over the reins to
asuccessor to take the business
through to the next stage which 1will
doinOctober it has been a delight to
work with Keith Morgarn duning this
very busy and formative time and the
market can be confident that he will
continue to develop the capabilities
and effectiveness of the bank [wouid
also like to thank ali of the staff for
what has been a truly remarkable
performance on their partan creating
this powerful new platform to support
the SME sector

RonEmerson
Chairman
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A year of growth
and momentum

As highlighted in the Chairman’s report,

this year has been a story of being asked

to do more, delver more, and develop

more to help scale-ups, as well as continuing
to deliver for start-ups and stable and
sustainably growing businesses

= ]
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Keith Morgan
Chief Executive
British Business Bank

Dunng the year, we have developed
new finance iInmatves which both
serve the needs of smaller businesses
angd support the Government's key
pronties - ncluding the new Northern
Powerhouse and Midlands Engine
Investment Funds and the Help to
Grow programme

Qur balance sheet has shawn
substantial growth - confirming that
we ourselves are a fast growing
business inscale up mode

Against our four Key Performance
Indicators we have defivered In
2015-16

- 2nncrease of 45%in the total
stock of finance offered through
the Bank's programmes,

- ncreased support for diversity
n the market by working
overwhelmingly through smaller
banks non banks, alternative
lenders and equity Investors,

- better informauon on finance
ophons contributing to an
increased awareness of alternative
finance options amongst SMEs,

- a2 0% returnon capital deployed
exceeding the larget set by
Government

The financial statements for British
Business Bank plc show a net
operating profit of £31 8m Although
we expect to make a positive return
on our Enterprse Capital Funds,
accounting standards require us
torecognise up front provisions on
new commitments in this programme

A4

Qur balance sheet has
shiown substantial growth
- confirming that we
ourselves are a fast-
growing business in
scale-up mode

44

These provisions are unwound as
funds are deployed over future years
These are not provisians for bad debts
and are expected Lo unwingd over
future years

We've always said that we will adapt to
market conditions, flexing our offering
ta best serve the needs of the UK's
smaller businesses Our Small Business
Finance Market report, published this
February indicated that business
requirements were changing from
working togrowth capital As a result,
we dedicated more of our resources
toasset finance and growth finance,
including early stage venture capital
The report also llustrated that more
needs to be done to build a diverse
marketplace for finance offering
smaller companies more choice
Through our ENABLE programmes

and British Business Bank Investments
we are now supporting challenger
banks arange of asset finance
providers and a growing number of
private debt funds as wellas fast
growing marketpiace fenders

Brnitish Bustness Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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1 Increase the

£75bn

£516n

2014 15 2015-16

Stock of hnance

But larger lenders are important
partners also - Lioyds Banking Group
has recently led the way on our Help
to Grow offering by becoming the first
partner under the programme - and
we centinue to work with the langer
barks in providing much needed

debt to companies with less collateral
or ashort track record through the
Enterprise Finance Guarantee
pragramme Recommendations from
the programme s recent review will
enable us tomake i more widely
accessible benefiting smaller
businesses our partners and the
wider economy

Alongside our actvities on the supply
side, we have been closely involved

n n_m__<m::ﬂ measures o Increase
smaller business demand for and
confidence in a wider variety of finance
optiens In2015-16 we adwised

HM Treasury on the designation of
new finance piatforms that will accept
referrals of smaller businesses that
have been dechined facilities by their
bank The first three platforms were
anncunced at Budget 2016 - a world
first for an iniwative of this sort
Inaddition we provided advice io

HM Treasury on the designation of

2 Help to create
supply of amore diverse
finance finance market

9%
79% -
201415 2015-16

Percentage through
non Big Four banks

fores of hnance

credit reference agencies that will use
increased information from banks to
make credit score data more widely
avalable to a broader range of lenders

We were also pleased to recently
update our popular Business Finance
Guide, which we publish jaintly with
ICAEW s Corporate Finance Faculty,
with a new digital presence at
thebusinesshinanceguide co uk

The ginde s already accessible to more
than a milhon smaller businesses
helping them understand and access
the type of finante they need

2015-16 has been a year of growth
and momentium As we enter & pencd
of increased uncertainty following the
EU referendum, we wil redouble our
efforts to support key segments of the
small business finance market, helping
the UK's smaller businesses realise
therr potential

2T T A oy

Keith Mergan
Chief Executive

3 Promote better
infarmation
1n the market

Awareness of different

4 Achieve this

whilst managng

taxpayers’

money efficiently

49% 20%
43%
- - ] _

4 15 201516

20l4 15 w516

Retuim on ¢apital deployed
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The British Business Bank is a national
economic development bank with a
remit to design, deliver and efficiently
manage UK-wide smaller business
access to finance programmes for the UK
government Established in November
2014, it 1s an operationally-independent,
wholly government-owned plc

Our mission and objectives

The British Business Bank's mission 1s ta@ make
finance markets for smaller businesses work
more effectively, allowing those businesses to
prosper, grow and build UK economic activity

|
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1. Increase the supply of finance

to smaller businesses where markets
don't work well

2. Help to create a more diverse
finance market

for smaller businesses, with greater choice
of options and provider

3. Promote better infermation
in the market

building confidence ameng SMEs In therr
understanding of the finance options available
to them

4. Achieve this whilst managing
taxpayers’ money efficiently
and within a robust nisk management framework

British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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State of the market

The 8ntish Business Bank aims to
improve finance markets for smaller
businesses ! We provide policy
adwice direct to ministers on access
to finance interventions drawing
on our market insight and analysis
and leverage our praximity to the
market We work collaboratively
across government, to ensure their
interventions for smaller businesses
are rapid, relevant and effective

Government funded access to finance
programmes afe required because
finance markets for smaller businesses
do not work as well 2s they should
This s primanly due to problems

with getting the nght information

10 the right decision maker quickly
and cost-effectively As a result,
businesses undernvest for lack of
finance meaning UK economrc actvity
1s held back and businesses growth
ambitions are not fulfilled based on
our market analysis The British
Business Bank intervenes at key
paints, unlacking finance far viable
smaller businesses to support their
growth and that of the UK economy
we monior the development of
markets closely responding to
changing market condruons and
refocus ourinterventions where

they are mast appropnate

We currently support over

£3.1bn

of finance to SMEs

Access io finance was an acute
problem for smaller UK businesses
following the most recent financiat
<nsis and recession but is now finally
impreving as credit condibions have
eased Flows of finance to smaller
businesses increased over the last
year as the UK economy expanded
Net bank lending has now ingreased
for six consecutwve quarters, asset
finance has continued to grow
strongly and equity finance also grew
healthily overall i 2015 - although it
did show signs of slowing towards the
second half of the financial year

We participate in a further

£4.4bn

of finance 1o small mid -cap businesses

Our 2015 Small Busmness Finance
Markets Report found, however that
structural problems and lecalised
market weaknesses remain Some
viable smaller businesses applying for
finance are still rejected - particularly
start-ups seeking new loans and
ambstious high growth potential
scale-ups Liquidity has returned to
the finance markets serving small )
migd-cap businesses leading toa
decreased focus on the segment
Regional patterns are also uneven -
despite greater availabiity of finance
- with both debt and equity
less easily accessible for smaller
businesses in regions outside of
London and the South East In
response to our market analysis we
continue to develop new programmes
- particularly i growth innovation
and tha regions

Over

48,000

small businesses supported

Another important feature of UK
smaller business finance markats 15
that the four largest UK banks have
atominned market share of around
80%% for general purpose business
loans The Competiton and Markets
Authority 1s conducting a retaif banking
market investigation to explore further
hew this market concentration impacts
on choice of finance for businesses

Our research indicates that over half
of UK smaller businesses stdlgc only to
their own bank and do not shop around
for inance This may be because UK
smaller businesses have limited
awareness and understanding of their
optiens, or are unwilhing te try some

of the better-publicised alternatives
such as peer to peer lending, that have
seenrapid growth in recent years We
are beginning to see impact from some
of aur measures to address these
1ssues but much more can be done

Leoking ahead to the coming finanoial
year while condiions have \mpreved
for smaller businesses since the depth
of the financial crisis headwinds are
gathering strength The current UK
economic expansion 1s vulnerable

to global slowdown and any shocks
to confidence following the result

of the EU referendum We are closely
monitonng the situation and will
consider taking required action to
address any immedate access to
finance 1ssues

~Small and Medhum sizeo Enterprises (SMES)
and small mid cap businesses

British Business 8ank - Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Qur business model -
how we are set up

We take a targeted approach to
making finance markets wark better
for smalter businesses in the UK,
based on our in-depth knowledge
of the market

Firstly, we acknowledge that the UK
has a tughly developed financial market
that already distnibutes deep pools

of private capital We therefore dont
seek w replicate or compete with the
private sector but rather work through
existing private sector channels
wedont deal directly with smaller
businesses but only indirectly through
our partners, meaning we can be a
mimble lean but effective organisation
with @ modest cost base Each pound
of public money we commit unlocks
several pounds of finance into the
market and we measure this through
our first key performance indicator

Secondly we only intervene or
conunue to intervene, where we can
identify a falure in the market that
we Can measure in scope and size,
understand its root cause and robustly
assess how wellwe mprove it Asa
result, our programmes are subject to
ehgikihty cnitena aimed at making sure
that only those smalter businesses
that reatly need help get it. and that
our programmes are compliant with
State aid laws We maintain angorous
pregramme of evidence-based
evaluations s our Interventions
remain as relevant and efficent as
possible We then use this data and
latest market condations to re allecate
our caprial to where we can have the
biggest impact

Thirdly we aim to deliver solutions
that are effecuive both commercially
and from a policy point of view To
achieve this, we employ a mix of staff
with experience in both the pubhc and
the private sector We also operate
through three diffarent legal entities
each of which has a different forus

- some mere returns-driven and some
mare policy driven We measure our
success In balanoing our activities

across all three in a way that stll
achieves a target posttive return
measured through cur fourth key
performance indicator our financial
return to the taxpayer Thisis
deliberately in tension with our

more purely palicy driven and second
and third performance indicators
(increasing diversity of choice and ,
awareness of options amongst smaller
businesses) and ensures that we
constantly seek balance

We have a commercial arm (British
Business Bank Investment
Programme), which pursues both
policy goals and a market rate of
return Its profts support both the
operational costs of the entire Bank
and any losses from the Bank's
mandated arm {Bntrsh Business
Finance Ltd) which pursues pelicy
goals through delivery of State Ad
‘e also have a service arm (Bntish
Business Financial Services Ld) ,

which undertakes policy-driven and
service driven activities or OQe.m:._:._m_.:
(on a pass-through <ost basis) that
ctan at tmes be loss making The
service arm can work directly with

the government s balance sheet as
well as purely rendering services

Finally, we seek to help smaller
businesses in the nght way and
therefose ahways with a strong set of
public service values We are ultimately
funded by HM Government (HMG)

We operate off both our own balance
sheet (which 1s ultmately consolidated
with HMG) and HM's balance sheet

as aservice provider This gives us

the dual advantages of both the UK's
sovereign cretit mung and its cost of
long term capital Alongside we are
alsoobliged to serve the polcy goals
of HM Government whilst responsibly
exercising the nghts of our operational
independence to find the most effient
ways todelver policy ohjectives

The British Business Bank ple, pnncrpal subsidianes

Dl

and business activities

v

Pripcipal subgidianes

«

- . 2. British Business [§ 3. British Business
1.British Business 4

Finance Ltd

Bank Investments w Financial Services
]

Ltd
T RSN A Py

v

Businessactity

Communications and informatien

Venture capital solutions

Investment programmes
R R T

wholesale
solutions

T T T T

Lending solutions

Strateqic report

Performance

review

What we did to achieve
our goalsn the last year

In 2015-16. against our four
Key Performance Indicators
we have delivered

~ anmcrease of 45% in
the total stack of finance
offered through the
Bank's programmes

- ncreased support for
diversity in the market by
working overwhelmimgly
through smaller banks,
non-banks, alternative
tenders and equity
investors

— betterinformationon
finance options, contributing
to an increased awareness
of alternative finance
options amongst SMEs

- a2 0% return on capital,
exceeding the target set
by Government

We have achieved thts tn the

' British Business Bank's first
year of operation We continue

» to develop new programmes

| t0 BNsure we are responsive
to market needs and

, Government prionties -

+ particularly in growth,
innovatien and the regions

£255m

Value of our Enterprise Finance
' Guarantee enabled loans offered
| n2015-16

£64m

Tatal value of the 9,170 Start Up
Loans drawn in 2015-16 making a
totalof over 37,000 loans worth
over £210m drawn since the
programme began

£527m

Total comautments made across all
our programmes in 2015-16

90..e

Total number of British Business
Banks partners now delivenng our
programmes having taken on nine
new partners (n 2015-16

Bntish Business Bank = Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Our highlights 2015-16
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£85m

Amount of new investment capacity
enabled by our Enterpnse Capital
Funds programme we announced in
2015-16, bnnging its total investment
capacity to over £650m

£150m

Tota! funding enabled by the
Angel Co-Fund since it began
which supports a purtfolo of
over 55 high growth businesses

Over

£151m 48,000

Total Bnance our ENABLE Funding Small businesses supported
facilities supported in 2015-16
a £100m facility for Hitachi Capaal

anda £51m facity for LDF

Objective

1. Increase supply
of financeinthe UK suootmne

:]

Why it is important; When we make markets
work better and help smaller business get
finance that they otherwise wouldn't get, we :—
enable investment in hiring people, buying

We participate in a further

A

£4.4bn

of finance to smalt mid-cap businesses

We currently support over

£3.1bn

of finance to SMEs

£185m

Total commitments made through our

N 2015-16 making a total of £413m
sinca 1t began

commercial arm's Investment Programme

Brittsh Bustness Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2015

equipment, and general growth that benehts

the entire UK economy

Under i1s first Ky Performance
Indicator (KPI) the British Business
Bank measures itself on the total
stock of finance offered by its
programmes This s a combination of
funds that we have directly deployed
as well as private funds which our
participaticn has unlocked

withen a given year, the Bank will
influence this metric by working

to commit funding through its
programmes Once the funding I1s
committed our partners will then
typically take some time (between
one and 10 years) to draw the
funding down as they invest in it with
smalter businesses The combined
funds become added to the stock of
finante Whena borrower repays
alpan or an investment 18 monetised
then funds can be returned to the
Bank and other mvestors and will be
taken out of the stock of finance
measure Therefore, the net stock
figure 15 subject to several
countervalling factors

Inorder toincrease supply we have
built up a wide range of defivery
partners who can get that finance to
the markes (see KPI 2 for diversity of
supply) Over the past year we have
made commitments of £527m

The Bank's tota' stock of finance

grew 459 from £5 1bn to £7.5bn from
March 2015 to Apnl 2016 We did this
by committing 75% more in 2015-16
a5 1n the previcus year The increase
was achieved against a backdropof !
improving commercial condibons that
resulted in acce’erated repaymentsin
our large Business Finance Partnership
portfolios combined with lower than
expected drawdowns

Much of the increase came from our
ENABLE pregrammes, which added
a £100m lease finance facility with
Hitachi Capital and a £51m facility
for LOF under the ENABLE Funding
programme following a £125m
guaraniee faclity for Clydesdale and
Yorkshire Banks towards the erd of
2014-15 These deals also strongly
support our diversity agenda as
reprasented by our second KPI

0o—— —
2014-15 2015-16

W 8FPmid cap I SME

Qur Enterprisg Finance Guarantee
tontinues to be a flagship debt
intervention for the British Business
Bank. and we expect changes to the
programme to make 1t more widely
accessible 10 2016-17 Activity inour
Investmant Programme in a leading
UK challenger bank also Increased
our stock substantially

8ill Dyson Skip hire recewed finance from
Business Enterprise Fund (wW&N Yorks and
the NE) a British Business Bank partner

12
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Start-Up Loans - enabling
the successful businesses
of the future

The Start-Up Loans programme
delivered through the Start-Up
Loans Company aims to increase
the rate of business creation and
to promote entreprengurship in
the UK with a target of delivering
75 000 Start-Up Enans by 2020

Entrepreneurs with a businessidea
can apply for a Start-Up Loan of up

to £25 000 and they also get help

and mentoring along the way

Duning 2015-16, 9 170 new
Start Up Loans were drawn for
over £6am making a total of
37 077 lvans worth over £210m
since the programme began

The British Business Bank advises
on the programme’s design and
funding and oversees its delivery
This year we published a first
year evaluation confwming

that the programme 1s meeting

1ts ohyectives ‘

Kokoso Batyy recewved funding from
Start Up Loans, supported by the
Eritish Business Bank

Lending Selutions

Enterprise Finance Guarantee
The British Business Bank s Enterprise
Finance Guarantee (EFG) mproves
the avallability of working capita?
and wnvestment funding for smaller
businesses it encourages lending
institutions including banks to lend
toviable smatler businesses that
would otherwise be declined for
lacking adequate securty or 3 proven
track racord

In2015-16 EFG volumes deckned
compared 1o previous years, as lending
conditions improved EFGsa demand
led programme largely dictated by
economic conditlons but despite this
the current value of ioans offered
(£255m In 2015-16) demenstrates
there s still a need for the programme
to correct a structural problemn

the market

'

We have been reviewing the operation
of EFG and are taking forward a
number of enhancements to the
programme

Enterprise Finance
Guarantee review

In 2(15/16 the Board conducted
a strateqic ang operational design
review of EFG covenng the
affectiveness of the programme
and 11s impact on the UK smalt
business landscape

The review found that EFG
tontinues to meet aneed in the
market for smaller business
finance and s broadly effective
as cusrently configured

Following the review's
recommendations we will be
exploning an asset finance vanant,
re opening the programmes
lender accreditation process to
Increase the number anddiversity
of participating lenders and
enhancing our engagement with
the advisor comemunity te rarse
awareness of EFG amongst

smaller businesses ‘

How the Enterprise Finance Guarantee enables additional lending

BRITISH

N BANK

Acting as quarantor
Guarantee in lieu of sufficient security Payment

{Premsum}

Loan or other debt facihty
not otherwise availobie

Lender

Berrowsr

Paymant

(Camita! interest and fees)

British Business Bank - Annuat Report and Accounts 2016
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EFGcasestudy <&
Mango Bikes

Mango Bikes, one of the UK's fastest
growing direct-to-customer bike frms
secured a £150k funding package
wirth Lloyds Bank through the

Bniush Business Bank s Entarprise
Finance Guarantee

The finance 1s enabing them tc launch
an innovative new range of road bikes,
and they expect their product range to
quadruple within the next four years

BenHarnison, director at Mango Bikes
sard “The support has beenan
integral part of the latest stage

of the businesses expansion and our
relationship manager really understood
how investing in research and
development would help us to
achieve our long term ambitions

i

British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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The Angel CoFund's continuing strong
performance places it comfortably at the
upper end of the range when benchmarked
against European Venture Capital for both
early stage and later stage funds,

An Angel CoFund case study
Fertility Focus

Fertility Focus is a consumer
healthcare sta~t-up with
groundbresking women's health
products and I, currently
concentrating on diagnosis and
monitering treatment for the
30% of women who experience
cvulatory issues.

When it needed finance (o bring

its OvuSense product to market

and creale initial rapid sales growth,

they approached the Angel CoFund

Tor funding to match incoming
gelinvestment.

The Angal CoFund was involved in

it contributed £700k - inchucing a
convertible loan of £185k.

two rounds totalling £2,1m, of which

Rob Milnes, CEC of Fertility
Fotus sal

“The funding provided essential
capital for acritical phase of
iniellectual property and product
development, requlatory approvals
and initial sales growth.

“Without it, our rounds would have
had significantly less momentum
and the company would have really
struggled to achieve what it has
over the past three years,

Briush Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Venture Capital

On the equity side our Enterprise
Capital Funds (ECF) programme
committed to two new funds over the
year - a E17 Sm commitment to the
Passion Capital il Fund and a £24m
investment into the £40m Edge
Creative Enterprise fund The ECF
programme now has an overal
investment capaaty of over E650m
We have also continued to invest
through the VC Catalyst Fund with
around £68m now committed to eight
funds We committed £36m to four
funds through the commercial arm
dunng 2015-15 - Notion Capita
Nauta Capital [V Atlantic Brndge and
Pangramic

The British Business Bank-backed
Angel CoFund improves the availaiility
of equity investment capital
supporting high growth smaller
businesses It works alongside
syndicates of private indwidual
investors business angels and other
Investors to ensure high potential
businesses can efficiently secure
funding to drive thesr growth

Focused pnmarily on fughly innovative
and export crientated early stage
businesses It acts as a catalyst to
better practice and increased

long term capitalin the UK ange!
market, and as a stepping stone into
wider and later-stage venture capital
(whichis supported by our ECFs and
vC Catalyst Fund)

The Angel CoFund s continuing strong
performance places 1t comfortably at
the upper end of the range when
benchmarked against European
venture Capital for both early stage
and later stage funds In 2015-16 the
Angel CoFund took 1ts high growth
business portfolio to above 60 with
£150m of funding enabled It secured
a partral realisation fromone
investment during the period recycling
the profts for further invesiment

-~

Kl .wﬁ.ﬁ'{/
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Enterprise Capital Funds case study

Heck Foods

Heck Feods, & lamily-run premium
sausage maker, was ‘ounded by
Yorkshire farmers Andrevy and
Debb o Kesble in 2012, Heck's
brands are sald throughout in

UK supermarkets and via their
own website,

wien Heck needed linance to
help them raise their consumer
brand awareness, Panoramic
Growth Equity - supported by
the British Business Bank's ECF
programme - invested £1m of
equity growth capital.

Andrev Keeble, lounder and
™MD said:

Securing the funding through the

sh Business Bank's Enterprise
Capital Funds programme has given
our business the boostit nesued to
take us to the next level. We have
ncreased our profits and are able
to focus on building 8 business of
some scal

Wholesale Solutions - how
the British Business Bank s
ENABLE Guarantee programme
helped Clydesdale Bank
launch a new tech start-up
investmentarm

Our ENABLE Cuarantees
programime encourages
participating banks ta lend more
to smaller businesses by reducing
the caprital they need to held to
support such lending

The programme helped Clydesdale
set up theirnew ‘Emerging
Technology Umit' (ETU) 1 2015-16
This fecuses on estabhshed,
fast-growing technology startups
proviging themwith £500k-£1min
debt finance

A portion of the £125m transaction
15 expected to go o this or other
products and industry segments
Clydesdale and Yorksture haven't
previously covered suchas cash
flow tending specifically for SMEs
automative toohng finance and
intreducing a new renewables

finance offering ‘
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Objective

2. Increase diversity of
SME finance in the UK

Why it is important. When we support a
non-standard small business finance product
or help an alternative provider, smaller
businesses benefit from better choices

and better terms that increased competition

can deliver,

Againstits second Key Performance
Indicator, the British Bustness Bank
measures itself on the value of its
activity whichis channelled through
finance providers other than the

B1g Four' banks - Barclays Lloyds
Banking Group HSBC and RBS

Qurobjective 15 toincrease the choice
of finance for smaller UX businesses
- bothin terms of suppherand finance
type Our aim 15 toensure that more

than 75% of our stock 1s delivered
through prowiders outside the Big

Four banks

For most new and existing
programmes we work exclusively
with non Big Four delivery partners
suchas challenger banks, asset
finance providers, peer to peer and
cther technology based providers
debts funds and other non-bank
finance companies Enterprise

Promoting diversity - cur support for challenger banks

Percentage through
non-Big Four banks (%)
100

B0

2014-15 2015-18

Finance Guarantee and more
recently, Help to Grow are the
notable excepticns These two
programmes use both Big Four and
non-Big Four partners because

they address borrowing needs
immediately adjacent to malastream
lending and tapping into the Big
Four's extensive distnbution netwark
1s the best way to reach significant
numbers of smaller bustnesses This
inturn he!ps us produce a greater
impact for the UK economy

Enterpnse Finance ENABLE Investment

Guarantee Guarantee Programme

‘Guarantees for SMEs lacking Reduces topital bonks have Invests threugh new

colloterol or a track record’ ! tohold egainst SME leniding providers of finarice

15 e | SHAWBROOK * %
challenger banks -

2:0
l.oiﬂ“.!f\—.fo‘q-
raend

600 35
supported

1350 35
supported

mw os transachion

cE70m

of finance

m“_.Nm:..

transaction

c£160m

of lending supported
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Supporting diversity - our suppert for Fintech businesses

Angel
Co-Fund

Venture Capital
Solutions

Investment
Pregramme

Matching equity investment from
busmess angels’

‘Encourages investmenisin the
eorly stage VC morket'

Invests through new
praviders of inance’

E justinvesting

Ebury
ezbob |

£3m

invested in
the businesses

Importance of building
partnerships

In 2015-16 we tock on nine new
partnerships across the business -
three in Venture Capital and six
through our commercial amm's
Investment Programme QOne of our
man ways of Increasing dversity I1s

to support new entrants and iNcrease
the capatity of existing lenders across
the scape of the finance markets

- Across the bank end 15
subsidiaries n 2015-16 we
partnered with challenger banks
including Ctydesdale and
Yorkshire as part of our ENABLE
Guarantee programme and
participated in Shawbrook s
tier two debtissuance

H Fintech businesses
supported

£20m

Quer E20m invested

-~ We also supported debt funds -
a type of finance well estabhshed
in the USA but relatively new to
the UK marketplace

- We supported asset finance
providers through our programmes
(ENABLE Funding and the
Investment Programme) and are
looking atintroducing an asset
finance vanant for Enterprise
Finance Guarantes

Introeducing and supporting
new types of finance

We also supported some types of
finance that are less well established
as options in the UK finance markets
1n 2015-16, including merchant cash
advances and private debt We also
increased our commitment o
supporting asset hnance provision

¥ Rate%iSetter
Liber:

marketinvoice

URICA

@ Funding Circle

£330m

finance to 7 500 SMEs

ENABLE Funding - two new
partners, £151m of funding
agreed in 2015-16

In October 2015, we agreed to
provide a £100m facility to Hitachi
Capital UK to fund a portfolio of
newly criginated small business
asset finance recevables LDF a
nen bank Ainance provider became
the secend parlner under the
programme (n February 2016

These were the first two
transactions of our nnovative
ENABLE Funding pregramme,
which airns to Increase significantly
the supply of leasing and asset

finance 1o smaller businesses
1n the UK

BrtishBusiness Bank - Annual Repert and Accounts 2016
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New equity finance delivery
partner case study - a creative
solutron

In November we announced that
we were committing £24m from
our Enterpnse Capital Funds
programme to the new Edge
Creative Enterpnse Fund

Edge Invesiments, a leading
creative industries investor raised
a £40m fund toinvestin high
growth compantesin the creative
Industries The fund also bringing
together prvate sector funding
from leading institutions and high
net worth ndmduals nurtures
and assists creative businesses

1o grow

The creative and cultural economy

s an important and growing part

of the giobal economy and Britains
creative ndustries sector s

thriving The creative economy
accounts for approamately 10%

of the entire UX economy and
provides 2 55 midlion jobs with

[obs growth four times fasier

than the economy as a whole ‘

90

Total number of British Business
Bank partnars now delivering our
programmes having taken on
nine new partners in 2015-16

Geographical diversity

It's very smportant to us that businesses
located putside London and the South
East tan access the finance they need
to fulfil their growth ambitions ltis
toncerning forexample that reqions
outside of London receved only 53%
of equity deals in the UK in 2015
despite being home 1o 79% of the
country’s fugh growth businesses

Diversifying the geographical

spread of hinance and addressing this
weakness s therefore imporiant to
support these businesses In 2015-16
the British Business Bank announced
twao major intiatives to support this aim

Firstly at Autumn Statement 2015 an
agreement was announced between
the British Business Bank and Local
Enterprise Partnerships in the North
West, Yorkshire and the Humber, and
Tees Valley to create a Northern
Powerhouse Invesiment Fund of over
E400m, subject tomeeting European
funding requirements

Northern

Powerhouse »

Investment \
Fund

The Fund will preduce greater levels
of iInvestment increase the focus on
the potential opportunities across the
Northern Powerhouse Region and
piovide Increased flexsbility in the type
of funding provided Together these
wall contnbute 1o better econoric
outcomes for the regions businesses
growth and jobs

Secondly a new £250m Midlands
Engine Investment Fund - again a
ccllaboration between Bntish Business |
Bank and the region’s Lacal Enterprise
Partnerships was announced at

Budget 2015 - will further contribute

to efforts to rebalance the UK economy
across the regions

Focused on the Midlands' 460,000
smaller businesses thisimtiative will
tinng together tegacy funding from
existng programmes, funding from
the British Business Bank and new
European funding

Follow:ng the results of the EU !
referendum we are seeking to confirm |
European cemmitments but are _
currently working on the basis X
that both of these proceed |

British Business Bank
Investments Ltd - championing
dwversity in finance provision

Our commertial subsidiary plays
akey mlen increasing dwversrty
of lenders and types of finance
It makes loans or mvestments
of betwean £Smand £200m

1n finance providers to smaller
businesses

In2015-16 it made commitments
totathng £185m through its
Investment Programme

These included investments in
achallenger bank (Shawbrook}
amerchant cash advance
provider (Libens), pnvate debt
funds (Cordat Muzinich
Beechbrook), and an asset
finance prowider (Haydack)

Its VC Catalyst Fund committed
E36m to four funds duning
2015-16 - Notion Caprtal [l Nauta
Capital W, Atlantic Bnidge and
Panoramsc |l ‘

Midlands
Engine »
Investment
Fund

Coing forward we expect Help to
Grow and scme vanations of ENABLE
10 be distnbutad i part through the
Big Four banks, in order to rapidly
reach nationwide availability

Howaver we anticipate that the
majenty of our interventions will
remainwith challengers and
alternative providers given that
allother prospective and existing
programmes work through smaller
debt and equity finance providers

20
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Geographic diversity by number of companies (%)

20

15 —
10
o TN

london  South  Nerth  South Eastof

Yorks Bt Sootbed Waks  Noth Nothemn

Ext West West Engbnd Mdlnds and Mdbnds East  Weland

Hux [lbes

Humber

Investment Programme (ase study
Lumenata Lighting Design O

apglicatiuns,

when its bank withdrev

ess Bank partner
Ultimate Finance Croup saved the
company from redundancies or

& now factoring facility of £300,00
This enabled Lumenata Lighting
Oesign to win a number of major
contracts, laading to the dramatic
INCease in urnover.

ector of Lumenata Lighting
Design, Paul Hindle said-

dndersiood the business, saw
the potential for growth and had
1o hesilativnin corming to my
assistance by quickly providing
the new faci

The company is now expacting o
ncrease turnover from £240,000
to more than £600.000 in

12 months leading to the
creation of new jobs,

Muzinich & Co s new debt fund
- based in the North-West
developing private debt
funding across the UK

In January British Business Bank
Investments Ltd our commercial
arm, ivested E30mn Muzinich's
new E350m private debt fund

as part of pur commitment to
develop new and diverse sources
of debt finance for smaller and
medium-sized UK businesses

Muzinich & Co expanded into the
North West of England wath the
opening of a Manchester cffice
whose primary purpose Is to offer
growth capital to mid-sized
companies located in the heart
of the UK s Northern Powerhouse

Muzinich Chief Executive and
Chassman George Muzinich sard

‘Many of the businesses that drive
the LK economy lie far beyond

the M25 We cpened an office in
Manchester with a particular remit
te establish a pnvate debt fund
backed by pension funds and other
Institutions that reached beyend
the South East Theinvolvement
of Bntish Business Bank
Investments Ltd at a very early
stage In the process made a
sigmificant contribution in

our success’

Batish Businass Bank Investments

Ltd ourcommercialarm invested
£30m i Muzinich's new £350m

private debt fund

British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Objective

3. Improve SME
understanding
of finance options

Why it 1s important When we make better
information availabie to smaller businesses,
we help them make better choices about
finance. This means they are more likely

to invest, knowing that they have the right
kind of finance for what they need.

4

= Dabtnied and grrwiog.
Lacabiwhed mad sable

It bt srvered
B i

| Awarenass of different
forms of hinance (%)
60

50
w—

30—
20—
16—

2014-15 2015-16

This target 5 dehned as a mean awareness
level of 3 basket of hnange types which BBB
supports orintends to suppert in the future
This mcludes Leasing/HP Venrure Capizal,
Busingss Angels, P2P leanding Crowa Funding
and Mezzanine Finance

Efforts to1ncrease finance and
diversify sources are one part of the
Bank s activity to improve finance
markets for smaller businesses The
Bank Is keenly aware that to function
effiently markets require good levels
of information te allow participants
to make informed choices

The Bank has therefore measured

the awareness of different finance
options by SMES through ourannual
survey where we looked at the
average awareness for six different
finance products Thiswas 48% in aur
November 2015 survey, mirroring other
evidence that awareness and use of
providers other than their main bank
amongst smaller businesses Is low

We know from our research that
around 60% of SMEs onfy contact
one provider when looking for
finance - generally thesr own bank -
and around a third of these will cancel
their plans if they receive a no

We need to make sure that as many
btrsinesses as possible become not
only aware of but confident inthe
wide choice of supplier and finance
options avallable to them

22 British Business Bank ~ Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Toincrease awareness of inance
options for smaller business, we jointly
published a Business Finance Cuide
with ICAEW s Corporate Finance
Facuity, with contributions from a
further 17 partner organisations
representing the finance and business
sectors The guide was updated in
August 2015 For the new edition and
digital version betng published in early
summer 2016 we have been working
with four addrtional partners to
pravide addiional input and reach,
levaning our convening capability to
bring together an unprecedented
spread of organisations for a venture
of this nature

We have maintained distnibution of
the Business Finance Guide through
events conferences direct email
marketing media coverage and by
engaging wrih partners - both the
signateries to the guide and other
channels to smaller businesses

The digital version enhances the
offening featunng wideos about
finance chowces and making the
information more easily accessible

It walt m_mc provide an easy filter
whereby users will be able to use a
simple engine to hene in on the most
suitable type f inance for their
business stage and future plans

A4

The Start Up Loans programme helps
applicants with writing their business
plans, and ance the recipient has
drawn down theirloan they are
offered one year of mentonng to

help their business succeed

Researching our markets

QOur unique position enables us to
work with arange of partners to
gather better information about

the market Qur flagship publication
the annual Small Bustness Finance
Markets report 2015-16, highlighted
the fundamental importance of
start-ups and scale ups to the UK
economy showing the continued
growthin those markets and drawing
out the implications for the future
direction of our activities

Our other reports provide more
detailed analysis For example
the Small Business Equity Tracker
analysed the continued growth

in volume of equity inance but
also drew attention te fegional
imbafances, with London-based
small businesses receving the
largest share of equity finance

We work with a range of research
partners including this year Coldman
Sachs and the Enterprise Research
Centre on ‘Unlocking Productivity
Internationahsation and Innavation
1N SMEs which highlighted the
important role that SMEs can play
inclosing the UK's praductivity gap

Qur survey on SME Business Finance
complements other data sources such as
the SME Finance Monitor, te give a richer
understanding of small business expefience

in accessing inance
4 4

Qur survey on SME Business Finance
complements other data sources such
as the SME Finance Moniter to give a
ncher understanding of small business
experience In accessing finance

We take regular opportunities to
present at conferences and seminars
ensunng that our understanding

of small business finance s
communicated to finance providers
small businesses and the research
community

Improving finance markets

To belp avercome information
asymmetnes faced by smaller lenders
we have advised HM Treasury on
the designation of Credit Reference
Agencies {CRAs) which can share
SME tredit data for the benefit of

a wide range of banks and lenders
HM Treasury announced the three
designated CRAs at Autumn
Statement and the system went
live in Aprif 2016

We have also advised HM Treasury on
the designation of Finance Platforms
to refer SMEs who get rejected by the
larger banks The finance platforms
seek to match alternative sources of
finance from a broader range of lender
The hrst three platforms were
announced at Budget 2016 and the
system will go live later in 2016

Laird received finance frem Fund:ng Ciicle
3 Bnitish Business Bank partner

British Bustness Bank — Annual Report and Acceunts 2016
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Objective

4. Manage Taxpayer
money efficiently

Why 1tis important' When we manage our
programmes efficiently, we deliver value for
money All UK taxpayers benefit from our
ability to deliver the most posrtive outcomes
with the least amount of Government

resources

All our programmes with the
exception of the grant funding and
operating cests element for Start-Up
Loans count towards our financlal
returntarget The Bank targets
achieving areturn on capital at least
equivalent to the Governments
medium term cost of capital We have
atarget for the end of March 2019
of 2 525%

The British Business Bank achieved
a2 0% return on capital employed
in2015-186 whichwas upon the 1 3%
generated in 2014-15 and significantly
hrgher than our target for the year
This nse was generated by lower
cperating costs and stong cast
control across the Bank, a dropn
expected losses from Start Up Loans
due to improved credit performance
and a fallin the value of claims fzom
EFG partners stemming from better
underlying credit performance

8 Mimecast

m

Return on capital employed
(%)
25

15
10— —
05— — -

2014-15 2015-16

[=]

Enterprise Capital Funds case study N

In November 2015, Mimecast,
one of the businesses supporled
by funding through the British
Business Bank's Enterprise
Capital Funds programme, listed
U NASDAG,

The company received £3m funding
from British Business Bank partner
Bawn Capital in 2008 - a difficult time
far the ecoromy during which such
early-stage investment was hard to
come by. The i-wesiment helped
them to expand internationally, most
importantly in the US, w develop the
core platform furtner and 10 add a
number of new products.,

Al listing. Mimecast's .75 million-
share 190 was priced at $10, making
pany’s total share value

24

Bntish Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2016




Strategicreport

Summary of finance performance and position

Financlal performance Programmes
For the perod ended 31 March 2016 British managedan
Business behalf of BEIS Tota)
Bank plc {unaudited) £m
Investment income
Investment Programmes 310 13 323
Lendng Salutions o . - 158 156
Venture Capital Solutions B4 - 84
Wholesale Solutions - 07 07
395 176 571
Management fee ncome 116 {107) 09
Total operating income 511 659 580
Net investment costs o o I -
investment mcua:._:_mm 15 s 15
Lending Solutions - =0 (50}
Venture Capita! Solutions R R ') I - aog
Wholesale Soluticns - - 00
05 [E34)] (45)
Other gperating costs \ -
StaffCosts T T 122) s 122
Other operating expenditure {72) - (72)
Depretiation and amortisation (03) - 03)
Total operating expenditure {197} o0 {19 7)
Net operating profit 318 20 338
Add ECF fair value derivative gains GG 66
_.mmim Impairment, of _msou Investment assets (325) B26)
Add back impairment on new ECF drawdowns 102 - 102
Adjusted return 160 20 180
Average capital employed _ o o o 8106
Adjusted return on average capital employed 2 0%
.0%
The Briish Business Bank
achieved a 2 0% return on capital
British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2016 25
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Frnanoal position Programmes
As at 31 March 2016 British managed cn
Business behalf of BE'S
Bank plc {unaudited) Total
Investment assets
_mzmmﬁam:nnaEmEBmM . . . 7020 - 7020
LendngSoluwens B o B - ) _ 450 B M 450
Venture Capital Selutions 1656 } 1758 3414
Enable Funding - 932 932
BE676 3140 11816
Investment habihties . L S -
Lending Soluzions - {599) T (599
Venture Capital Solutions (108 2) - (108 2)
L . _oQese {589 ___(ae8l
Net investment assets 759 4 254 0 1,013 5
Other assets hatlities L o o
Cash . ___5B4 L R 564
Tangible and intang ble assets _ 05 e
Net other payables (61) (B61)
528 528
Total net assets g1z 2 254 0 1,066 2

The Bank manages a number of
pregrammes on beha!f of BEIS our
Shareholder These include UK
Innovation Investment Fund Angel
Co-fund Start-up Loans ENABLE
funding and EFG We also admimster
the assets and habilties included on
BEIS s balance sheet relating to these
pregrammes and their performance
15 taken into account in our
performance measures

Overall results for British ﬁ
Business Bank plc group
2015-16

- The Bank generated anet
operating proht of £31 8m

- Thevalee of aurinvestments
increased by £209m

- We made new commitments
of E527m

~ Netassets increased by £164m
to£812m

Key drivers of financial
performance

As an investment business focusing on
generating appropnate nsk-adjusted
returns on gur capital investment, our
financial performance 1s dependent on
anumber of significant items, including

- the amount of capital we have
committed and the time penod
over which that funding is deployed

- the underlying performance of our
investments and their abity 1o

make nterest and debit repayments |

- over time the ability to exit
investments successfulty and
make a capatal profit

Dur net operating profit was mainly
driven by £31 Om cf income from the
Investment pregramme £ost control
OVEr our gperating costs and the
management fees earned from a
number of gur products including the
assets we manage on beha¥f of BEIS
Althaugh the Bank generated net
operating profit of £31 Bm, it made an
overall loss of £9 3m before tax Thisis
as aresult of the required accounting
treatment for Enterprise Capual
Funds (ECF}

ECFs are funds that combine pubhc
and private money 1o make
investments in businesses The British
Business Bank accepts a lower return
£rom ECF in order to encourage private
sector ifvestmentin SMES The Bank
takes a pnontised returm which 1sdue
regardless of performance and in
return the private investor receives
abigger share of any upside returns
This means that although the Bank
expects ECFs ta make a positive return
tous, the return is less than typically
sought by a private svestor and this
difference in return 1s recognised as
an impairment The inpalrment then
reverses over the kfe of the ECF

The Bank has therefore recegnised a
provision totaling £37min the year
ended 31 March 2016 This provision
deesn t relate to an underlying loss

on ourinvestments and is therefore
excluded from the calculation of
adjusted notional return on equity

{as 15 the reversal over hme of the
associated impairment)

26

British Bussiness Bank = Annual Report and Accounts 2015



Strategic report

Funding

We require funding to make
investments and run our pperatians
Dapending on our requements
these can be met from two sources
ourinvestment earnings and

our sharehclder

To fund cur capitalinvestments
we 153ue shares 16 our shareholder
and utilise available cash from

our operations including asset
repayments At 31 March 2016 UK
Government held shares totalling
£838min British Business Bank pk
compnsing the entire share capital
of the Company

Our operating costs are funded
threugh investment income plus a
management fee that BEIS pays us
for managing assets cn therr behalf
(£10 7mn 2015-16)

At 31 March 2016 British Business
Bank plc held £58 4mn cash
generated partly through Hs own
operations and partly through
shareholder funding The Bank
maintains a cash balance of at least
E50m ta fund investments and can
Iincrease this balance i line with
investment demands The majority
of these funds (£55 Bm) are held
within the Government Banking
Service toensure that there 1s mimmal
cost to the Exchequer

Our assets [

Qur programmes invest In a wide
range of finznoal nstruments through |
onvate sector partners toenable us

to achieve our objective of providing _
greater volume and choice of finance
to SMEs and small rmid-caps

Thisis reflected in the splitof these
investments

- loans and recevables £72 9m
- held to matunty assets £31 1m
- avallable for-sale assets £729 7m

- assets designated at fair value
through the profitand loss £15m

- dernvative financial Instruments
E189m

For many investments we make
commitments to a fund and the fund
draws down cash as itis needed

This means there 15 generally adelay
between our Investment commitment
and capital being drawn

Duning the perod to 31 March 2016
we invested £28Bm in assets included
on our balance sheet Thisincluded

the acquisibion of £36m of peer to

peer investments from BEIS plus
additional investment of £25m from

the Bank, £30min Shawbrook (3
specalist Challenger Bank) E113min
the existing mid-cap portioho £30m

n the Investment Programme and
£35mn ECFs As at 31 March 2016
Bntish Business Bank pic hag further !
undrawn commitments of £800m

to be invested across its portioho

MDwve received finance from DSL Business
Finance (Central Scotland), & British
Business Bank partrer

British Business Bank — Annual Report and Actounts 2016
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Strategic risks

Issues that could prevent us from successfully
delivering our future plans

Qur future plans represent
an ambitious growth agenda
for the 8rntish Business Bank

Over the course of 2016-17 we will
increase the amount of finance that
we facilitate for smaller businesses
while still delivenng pohcy objectives
for our Sharehelder in an efficient
way within a streng nsk management
framework

Macro-economic
envirenment

e see headwinds in the coming
financial year Inadditron the current
UK economic expansion is vulnerable
to global slowdown and uncertanty
Further shocks to consumer and
investor tonfidence could affect both
the flow of finance to and demand
from smaller businesses

The Girectors confirm that they have
carned out a robust assessment of the
principal nsks facing the company We
reviewed our nisk framework n 2015
to improve upon it further Geven our
sirategy we see a number of critical
risks that we are maintaining a close
watch upon going forward

Insuch case the Bank could
expenence losses from credit and
mvestment nsk as end borrowers
struggle and potential losses from
market nsk factors such as interest
rate or foreign exchange movements
that would affect our rate of return
Simultaneously the Bank might need
quickly and strategically te redeploy
resources to meet shifts in policy
prtonties as new market gaps open up

Ad

We will increase the amount of finance
that we facilitate for smaller businesses
In an efhcient way within a strong risk
management framewark

rr

European Union
Referendum

The matro gconomic environment
may be further affacted by the result
of the United Kingdom s decision to
leave the European Umion The Bank
15 momitoring the changing market
need and will respond as needed

People and processes

In arder to both deliver onexisting
commitments and respensibly develep
actions to address new requirements
we need to have the nght staff with
the nght capabilities, In the nght roles,
managed by the nght leadership

The growth required to achieve this
carmes signiheant operational nisk

as well as business nskaf adelay in
adding resources causes the Bank

to miss delivery deatthnes for core
programmes and policies, partcularly
where ssgruficant new features must
be developed and implemented

The Bank also faces the challenge of
delivering a number of key initiatives
in parallel within ambitous umehnes
thatwn turn places a stretch on Bank
resources and also relies on the Bank's
mternal processes and contrals being
sufficiently robust
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Delivery partners

The Bntish Business Bank s business
modelis reliant upon our delivery
partners for efficent execution of
the Bank's interventions Notably our
target capital deployment volumes
depend upon the success of our
delivery partners as we do not seek
to operate through a direct financing
relationship with end beneficiaries we
also take reputational risks kinked to
choosing apprepnate partners that
consisiently operate in 3 way that
meets our stakeholders expectations
Although we have many strong
mitigating factors in place we
delegate credit and investment
decisions to our delivery partners
within agreed frameworks

Compliance with State ad
and other regulation

The UK remains a member of the
European Union whilst it negotiates
the terms of its exit and therefore 1t
currently remains subject to the laws
governing State aid As we modify
existing programmes such as the
Enterpnse Finance Guarantee as well
as design new programmes such as
Help tc Grow the Bank must constantly
review 115 policies to ensure that we
and our partners continue to be
comphant with relevant regulanon
Non-compliance can also bring
reputational and business nsk through
negative pubhaity andfor disruptions to
our ability to serve smaller businesses

Information management
and securnity

The range and scope of data that the
Bank wiil collect. collate and control
willnse as the Bank's operations grow
to encompass both new and existing
programmes We are conscous that
thismcreases our information and
data nsk and have moved to
strengthen our systems and
protections tomatch

Stakeholder engagement
and debwery on objectives

As a national development Bank
wholly owned by the UK Government.
the Bntsh Business Bank has a
requirement to deliver on a number of
initiatives to meet government palicy
objectives in relation to small business
financing The British Business Bank
must engage with government and,
despite being operationally
ndependent, does rely on government
interaction and approvals on a number
of programmes beth existing and
new This raises anisk that there

may be delays in decision making that
impact on the Britrish Business Bank
being able to operate efficiently and
effectively Given the use of taxpayer
funds in the delivery of our programmes
we also face the nsk that the UK
taxpayer may not view the interventions
that we take as being good value

for money

The British Business Bank operates a
Risk and Control Assessment process
todentify and register key and
emerging nsks within each functional
area and across the organisation at a
more strategic level Risk Registers are
alsoin place in ine with appropriate
governance for significant projects

The overall Strategic Risk Register
1s reviewed in detail by senior
management and the Board

This enables them to carry out a robust
assessment of the principal nisks
facing the Company A summary of

the key nisks that the Briush Business
Bank 1s facing and monitonng closefy
ts outliined within the Directors Report

In 2015-16, the Board managed and
momitored governance and risk and
internal control matters through

- the Board Risk Committes
- the Board Audit Committee

- the Risk and Compliance Finance
HR, 1T and Legal functions

- policies for risk management

- theindependent review of
proposed investments by the
Investment Committee

During the year the Board reviewed
the effectiveness of the company s
nsk management and internal
control systerms

Viability statement

The British Business Bank Board

undertakes a business planning

exertise each year to puthne the

five year plan for the organisation

The Board believes it possible to form
K reasonable expectation of the British
Business Bank’s long term viability
guring that planning peniod of five
years taking into account the pnincipal
nsks faced by the company and its key
chjectives Itshould be noted that
the British Business Bank 15 100%
funded by the UK Government and
the Board assumes that this funding
arrangement will continue We have
a financtal framework in place that
allows us to alter the allocation of
funding between programmes and
years, subject to staying within agreed
parameters Addtionally the British
Business Bank has undertaken a
stress scenano analysis of its portfolio
and the Board assumes thatin the
event of a downturn that the
shareholder will continue to support
the Briish Business Bank in delivering
1ts policy objectives inrelation to
smaller businasses
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Our people

The British Business Bank has an HR strategy
in place to enable 1t to achieve its overall
goals, by making It a great place to work. With
a strong sense of purpose and opportunities
for all, we will attract the best people to

deliver our goals.

The HR strategy reflects the size
and needs of the grganisatron, and
demonstrates value for money

The Bank offers a urique employment

where people can make a real

difference Qur annual employee
engagemant survey showed that

94% of colleagues said they were !

The survey showed that overall
employee engagement s significantly
higher than comparable financial
services and public sector

d proud to work for the orgamisation organvsations
proposition and a mﬁa_.%nu:_._uNum - and 85% felt they could personally
M_._ uuua__,:._“__i 1o ﬂm:mz_m_,_._ u m..._ make a real difference to the success
RARCe ‘andscape o s - anca of the business and its overall purpose
range of broad and interesting roles
Durstrategy Our differentiaters Ourgeal
The employee experience
Change the structure of - Strong purpose
finance markets for smaller - Commercial FS and public
business, 5o markets work Secior mix N
more effectively and - Interesting wark Aninspiring
dynamically Valusab 9 o culture where |
alues based culture employees flourish !
v — Make a major mpact v |
- Transform UK economy A 4
- Broad roles

- Senior stakeholders

- Accountabiity

- Flexiihty

- Exposure to government

Increased business
investment, growth
and jobs across the UK
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Ahgnment with
business priorities

The HR strategy supports the
Britrsh Business Bank's four core
business goals

We wilt support the achievement
of these objectives by

- Attracting and retaining the nght
skills and diversity demonstrating
leadership having the night
organisational designn place and
executing a robust performance
and remuneraticn mnﬁmnmmu\

- Developing an effient and
effective business model with the
correct structure resource skills
mix and succession plans in place
We are moving from a start-up
operating model to a steady
workforce thatis agile enough te
respond to future requirements

- Establishing the Bnitish Business
Bank as a cradible arganssation by
measunng our performance
against our goals and objectives

- Ensuring we have a culture that
makes the British Business Bank
g great place to work

- The culture gives the
organisation and 1ts staff a
clearidentity and reinfarces
the strong purpose and social
benefit of the bank both
internally and externally

- We take the best elements
from public and private sectors
to make the Bntish Business
Bank both successful and a
great culture in which to work

- Whilst staying true to cur
values we promote diversity
and recognise that people work
at therr bestin different ways
encourage them to express
alternative points of view and
adapt working practices to
accemmedate people'’s needs
where possible

— Values are role modefled and
recognised across all levels
and teams in the organisation

- Supporting ongong leaming
and development to empower
colleagues to have real
accourttability and provide tmely
and relevant expertise based on
market requirements

In addition to supporting existing
colleagues with their learning and
development, and offering broad and
interesting roles from this summer
the Briush Business Bank will launch
its mc—j_.:m_._zwmﬂ:mr_u prograrmme
with an aim to developing young
peoples skills and experience to
succeed in therr future careers

7\
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Our values

The Bnitish Business
Bank has five shared
values, each of which
support our key
theme, ‘Enabling,

Integrity

Acting with a shared sense
of purpose an abiding duty
of care and serving our
market stakeholders and
employees with fairness,
honesty and transparency

Delivering

Commitment to delivering a
professional quality service
to all our stakeholders and
colleagues, whilst
employing taxpayer
resources responsibly

to provide solutions

Curvalues were developed from

the views and 1nput of colleagues
dcioss the orgamsation They are

a foundation for what we stand for
as a business and wili continue to
positively shape our corporate culture
and behaviours as we grow

€ >

I

Commercially
Minded

Exercising good commercial
Judgement to meet the
needs of our market while
also staying focused on

the need wodrive

economic benefit

The Bank's Colleague Forum meets
manthly to discuss our values with
colleagues from Sheffield and
Londan representing teams across
the business

-

Impraoving

Challenging and innovating
to create effective solutions
that meet the objectives

of our stakehelders and
ensunng that finance
markets for smaller
businesses work effectively

Connecting

Collaborating across the
organisaticn engaging with
stakeholders, Government,
and markets to better
understand the challenges
faced by smaller businesses
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Our people

e recruit a dverse warkforce to
ensure we make the most of the
talents avarlable from all parts of
society We live and reflect those
values through our existing staff

We are proud that our General Counsel
Shamka Amarasekars, 1s a recognised
champicn of dversity fn 2016 she
was recogmised in the tep 100 ethnic
mingrity leaders by the Sunday

Times and as one of Financial Times'
"UPstanding ' top 100 ethric-minorty
BXecutives

Qur Managing Diversity and Equal
Opportunities’ policy lays out the need
to promote and implement equality of
opportunity and to manage diversity
in such a manner that people are able
to maximise both their potentiat and
their contnbution

Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR)

We take seriously our responstbility
to make a positive contribution to

the communities and environment
inwhich we operate and undertake
avanety of Corporate Social
Responsibihity (CSR} actvities tode so

The CSR strategy 1s operated on

an entirely voluntary basis by our
staff across our four areas of action
envirenment, procurement and
supplers, chanty work, and
education outreach

Environment

We act responsibly to manage
ourimpact on the environment

We are also working towards an
emvirenmental audit and operating
a formal Environment Management
System (EMS)

Male and female sphit of British Business Bank colleagues

7 Non Executive Directors

1CE0

4 (RO CFO (00 and General Counsel

9 SMT el MDs

25 Directers

35 Senwr Managers

13 Manager

18 Analysts.

M Male
W Female

Procurement and our suppliers

Policies towards smaller bustnesses
aren place te ensure our procurement
processes are accessible to smaller
businesses, inciuding posting
opportunitties on the Government s
‘Contracts Finder’ portal, and we aim
to meet to Gevernment best practice
1n terms of payment days for suppliers

Charity work

Colleagues at the Briyish Business
Bank regularly qive their time and
money for good causes Gur offioal
nominated chanty for 20161s the
Prince s Trust The Trustworks with
young pecple to advise first time
entrepreneurs and suppGrt young
paopte back into work The Princes
Trust s also adelivery partner far our
successful Start Up Loans programme,
which provides loans to individuals
looking to start a business

To further support our activities,
colleagues are offered 1 day's paud
leave per year or equivalent for
voluntary work We also operate a
Cive As You Earn scheme for tax
effiient financial donations

Education

Qur teams work 1p their local
communities to increase financial
Iiteracy and entrepreneurial awareness
through presentations to secondary
schools Many of our staff are formally
enrolled volunteers on the Mosaic
Mentonng education outreach, which
provides young pecple a package of
O_H__u_un_.__.__n_mm toraise n:m_ﬁmmU_ﬂmn_ODm
and close the gap between those
aspirations and therr attainment
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Future developments

What we will do to achieve our goals in the

coming year and beyond

The British Business Bank will continue
to buld on the strong momentum of
our first full year and continue te
Increase our impact Wewiil seek to
resolve access to finance issues for
smaller businesses, with some short
term (over the coming year) and
medium term (over the next five years)
strategic reaignment to respond to our
latest assessments of the state of the
market and shafts in polcal priorities
This includes assessing the best path
forward for our interventions following
the UK s referendum on European
Unton membership Although most

of our programmes are unaffected
anumber doinclude European funds
and guarantees and may require
evaluation and adjustment

The 8ntish Bysiness Bank remains
committed to supporting the Start Up
Loans Cormpany so that it can expand
the number of loans prowided and
contwnue (o address the structural
disadvantage that some of the UK's
newest businasses face in securing
finance However we alsointend to
focus more of our attention and
resources towards finding effective
financing solutions for scale-ups.
{smaller businesses with material
growth potential)

Inparticular animpostant milestone
for 2016-17 15 the launch of phase 1
of the Help to Crow scheme targeted
towards hugh growth smaller
businesses - 3 manifesto commitment
for the Government There will also
be further medum term work to
evaluate the needs of smaller first
tsme exparters smaller Intensive
innovators and smaller intellectual
property nch businesses

All of these segments have specific
needs - we aim to unlock their access
te finance with a simple streamhned
and interlocking set of nterventions

Likewise because we continue to see
evidence of long standing structural
gaps In the finance market for smaller
businesses seeking o stay ahead the
British Business Bank will continue to
deliver as well as refine those of our
programmes designed to address
thase For example we willbe
deploying updates over 2016-17 to
our long running Enterpnise Finance
Guarantee programme which helps
wiabte smaller businesses that lack
sufficient collateral to borrow We will
continue te maintain and grow other
programmes that address the equity
gap for smaller businesses such as the
Angel Co-Fund Enterprise Capital
Funds and the Venture Capitat .
Catalyst Fund

We will ard resources tp addressing
the structurally driven regional
dispanties in access to finance in the
immediate term by executing the
Northern Powerhouse Investment
Fund and Midlands Engine investment
Fund subject to confirmaton of EV
funding commitments

A4

Allof these segments have
specific needs - we aim to
unlock their access to finance
with a simple, streamhned and |
interlocking set of nterventions

rv

Similarly we will promote diversity

in finance markets by continuing to
expand our support for challenger
barks and innovative inanciai
providers such as marketplace lenders,
inverce discounters and asset finance
providers Qur ENABLE programme
has now committed over £300m

angd we are investigating how to
develop the programme still further

The Bank's Investment Proegramme
will continue to seek out commercial
opportunities to catalyse and support
a diversity of supply of finance in the
UK for smaller businesses

Finally better and iIncreased
information - for smaller businesses in
making more informed chaices about
their finance options {or finance
providers in making credit decision
and in terms of research into finance
markets overall - has a pivotal role in
Improving how these markets work

we therefore remain committed to
delivenng mproved informatien
through collaboration with partners
to develop and distnbute educanenal
guides, with HM Treasury on credit
reference agency dataand referral of
rejected smaller business applicants
to finance platforms and with our
research partners toincrease
knowledge about the markets

Approved by the Board of Directors

ZTE T Ao

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer
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Directors' report

The Directors present their annual report on the affairs of the Group,
together with the financral statements and auditor's report for the
year ended 31 March 2016

The Carporate Governance Statement
15 set out on pages 40 to 44 and forms
partof this report The following
information requiced by the Companies
Act 2006 cen be found in the fellowing
sections of the Annual Report, which
are incorporated by reference into this
report

- adescription of the principal
activities of the Group duning the
course of this year, an indication
of the future developmentsin
the business and boardroom
diversity matters

- the narrative on financial risk
management 1s contaned in the
nisk management repert on pages
45 10 50 and forms part of this
report

- details of the significant events
since the balance sheet date
are contained in note 24 te the
finanaizl statements

- information about the use of
financigl Instruments by the
Company and its subsidianies 15
gwen n note 22 to the financial
statements

Directors
Ounng 1 Apnl 2615 - 31 March 2016

- KeithMorgan
- Christopher Fox
Patnck Magee

- Marna Turner
(resigned in May 2015)

Appointment and removal
of Directors

The appontment and removal of
directors s setout in the Corporate
Gavernance Statement found on
page 40

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has granted ndemnities
toeach of its Directorsin respect of all
losses ansing cut of or n connection
with the execution of ther powers
duties and responsibilities as Directors
to the extent permitted by law and
the Company s Articles of Association
The Company provides Directors’ and
Officers hatnbity insurance

Going concern

The Directers who served duning the
year have a reasonable expettation
that the Company and the Group
have adequate resources 1o continue
n operational existence for the
foreseeable future It should be noted

, Greenhouse gas
emission reporting

Scope of disclosure

The British Business Bank reports its
Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions based
onits property portfolic The British
Business Bank pic occupies two floors
of office space and is able to provide
emission reporting for 2015-16 1
respect of 1ts premises and tompany
travel acuwities Reported Stope 1
BMISSIONS (OVEr eMISSions generated
from the gas and ol used i all
butldings from whuch the Group
operates and Stope 2 includes s
emussions framelectnaty The figures
prowided in Scope 1 and Scope 2 the
table below are estimated enissions
relating to energy consued in
properiies where the landlerd controls
the supply and recharges the Bntish
Business Bank

Reporied Scope 3 emissions relate
to business travel undertaken by all
colleagues using raill and arr travel
which has been booked through our
corporate travel agent These resulis
are summarised in the table below
Currently we do not report onany
cther Scope 3emissions

GHG Emissions 2015-16

Scope CO{tonnes,
the directors were a5 follows that the British Business Bank s 100%  —— {tonnes)
~ Ronald Emerson funded by the UK Government and the  Scope 1(Gas) 4
- fonathan Bntion Boand assumes that this funding Scope 2 {Electncity) 106
- Colin Glass arrangement will continue Thus

they continue to adopt the gaing Scape 3 (Travel) 9
= TeresaGraham concern basis in prepaning the Total 119
- Carokne Green financial statements Further Total per average
~ Christina McCormb details can be found in the principal number of employees 11
— CenSmith accounting pohoes notes (n the
1 financial statements
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Sustainability pninciples

The British Business Bank 1s
commitied to promating sustanabshity
Concern for the environment and
promoting a broader sustainability
agenda are integral to our professional
acuvites and the management of the
organisation We aim to follow and to
promote good sustainability practice,
toreduce the ervionmental impatcts
of all our activities and to help our
citents and partners to do the same

Modern Slavery Act 2015

The Bntish 8usiness Bank plc
welcomes the new legisiation the
Modern Stavery Act 2015 to combat
slavery and human trafficking We are
obliged to produce a public statement
under this Act for the reporung year
2016 and we are identifying the
steps necessary to ensure that there
15 no modern slavery within our
supply chain

Qur shareholder

On 14 july 20t6 following a machinery
of Government change 1t was
announced that the British Business
Bank's shareholder the Department
for Business Innovation and Sk
(BIS} 15 having 1ts respensibilities
changed Cur shareholderis now the
Department for Business Energy and
Industnal Strategy (BEIS}

Auditors

Each of the persons who are a Director

at the date of approval of this annual
repert confirms that

- safaras the Director 15 aware
there 1s no refevant audit
information of which the
Company’s authtors are unaware

- the Director has taken all the steps
that he/she ought to have taken as
& Director in order to make twmself/
herself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that
the Company s auditors are aware
of that information

Thus information 1s given and should
beinterpreted in accordance with the
provisions of £418 of the Companies
Act 2006

Approved by the Board of Directors

LLL S AN ot o

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

20th July 2016

Directors’ biographies

Ron Emerson
Non-executive Chair

Ron brings a broad range of business
skills and expenence to the board He
spent his early career in international
barang where he held a number of
senicr management posiions with
Bank of Amenca and Standard
Chartered Bank, where he was a
member of the group management
committee and Group Head of
Corporate Banking Since 1995 he

has divided his ime between

Nen executive Directorships business
advisory work and as an active member
of the Faculty of Management Studies
at Oxford University where he wasan
Associate Fellow

Asanon executive he has servedon a
variety of boards ranging across listed
{main board and AIM), pnivate equity
funded large high impact subsidianes
private famity awned and regulated
and unregulated sectors He has also
acted as a Senior Advisor at the Bank
of England and the Financial Services
Authonty Ron holds degrees from
Manchester Durham and Oxford
universities
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Jonathan Britton
Independent Non-executive
Director - Audit Commitiee
Charr

Jonathan has extensive expenence
inbanking spanning corporate, SME
and investment banking businesses
Jonathan is currently a Non-executive
Director and Chair of the Audit
Commitiee of ICIC Bank UK Limited
and a Non executive Director for
Nomura European Heldings Limited
whose Audit Committee he also chairs
Since 2006 he has also been a
Director of Sparks @ leading childrens
medical research charity, becoming
Chairman in 2012 Most recently, he
was Divisional Finance Director and
Head of Strategy for the wWholesale
Bivision at Lioyds Banking Group and
pror to that Global Controller and
Head of Treasury at Barclays Bank plc
from 2006 {0 2008 He previously
held senior pests in UBS 5 Investment
Banking Business jonathan holds an
MAIn Engingening Science from Keble
College Oxford and 15 a qualifed
chartered accountant

y

Colin Glass
Independent Non-executive
Director

Colinis a Chartered Accountant with
his own practice, Winburn Glass
Norfolk {(WGN) He s or has beena
Non-executive Director of several
companies some of which are quoted
on AIM and which came out of the
WGN portfolic He has always been
passionately interested in helping
small businesses develop ta their full
potential He was a Non executive
Director of Partnership Investment
Finance (PIF) & fund set up with
funding from Europe and Barclays
Bank 1o support SMEs and seaial
achievernent in the areas of Yorkshire
and The Humber He acts as amentor
to early stage SMEs with igh grawth
potential Through his deep interest
and experience (1 SMEs he was
awarded the Starin Practice Award in
2006 from the West Yorkshire Sgriety
of Chartered Accountants and also
wias awarded Business Adviser of the
Year in 2007 and Non-executive
Director of the year in 2008 both

by the Institute of Directors Yorkshire
and Humber In [anuary 2011 he was
awarded Non executive Director

of the Year in the Grant Thornton
spansared Quoted Company Awards
for his work with AlM-quoted SMES

In 2016 he was included in the

Maserat1 100 which was established

1o recagnise those whe are helping
support the next generation of young
entrepreneurs in the country !

TeresaGraham
Independent Non-executive
Director and Interim Risk
Committee Chair

Teresa graduated from Newcastle
University During her time working

in a Big Four accounting practice, she
was seconded to the UK Government's
Enterprise and Deregulation Unit In
March 1988 she was appuinted to the
Government s Deregulation Advisory
Panel for a two year term and served
through two decades of administrations
She was the first female winner of
the Young Accountant of the Year
Award for 19688 in recagnivon of her
contribution to the small irms sector
her profession and work with
Government

She was also the first female
laureate of the Instifute of
Chartered Accountants Teresa

now works independently focusing
on her three passions - strateqic
adwvice to ambitious growing
businesses liberating these
businesses from the fetters of red
tape and runimng The Lex Tnema
and The Nomad both seaal
enterprises in the cinema space
covenanting 100% of thewr profits to
acharity n South Afnca She holds &
number of appointments including
non executive, Bm:mczjm and
advisory roles in growth businesses
She was awarded a CBE in 2007 and
an 0BEn 1997
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Caroline Green
Independent Non-executive
Director

Caroline s CO0 and CFO of ProLabs
Limited the global leader in the supply
of compatible network infrastructure
and connectivity products She was
formerly CFC and Head of Shared
Services for the secunty and nsk
mitigatien company PGl Limited
Caroline has expenence of working

11 VC-backed businesses as well as
having eight years in private equity
imtialty at 31 plc She started her career
at Xerox Corp where she spent nine
years In & vanety of roles including
supply chatn, manufactunng and
finance Previcusty Carchne spent five
years as a trustee of the MS Scuety
and currently sits on the board of
unseen (UK) the chanty dedicated

to eradication of human trafficking
and slavery

Christina McComb
Senior Independent Director

Chnisuna has held a number of sermor
roles in public and private sector
organisations and has a successful
track record in private equity and
venture Caprial Investment
Supporting and advising growth
businesses s at the heart of Christinas
career She s a former director of 3iplc
and was a founding director in the
Shareholder Executive Chnistina
currently holds a number of non
executive Board positions she s
Chairman of Engage Mutual Assurance
Senor Independent Director of
Standard Life European Private Equity
Trust plc and a Non-executive Director
of Baronsmead VCTZ plc and Nexeon
Limited Chnistina has a BA Hons from
London Schaol of Economics and an
MBA from London Business School

Cen Smith
Shareholder Representative
Director

Cen Smithis the Drrector at UK
Government Investments for
overseeing the British Business Bank
on behalf of its Shareholder the
Secretary of State for Business,
Innovation and Skills He was
responsible for the successful
delivery of the project that created
the Brtish Business Bank

He previously worked in HM Treasury
the Department for Business and the
Foreign Office Responsibihities have
included advising on business finance
employment law SME taxation and
develeping the government s
Enterprise Capital Fund Programme
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Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

Kerthled the planning and
estabhshment of the British Business
Bank from January 2013 and was
appointed Chvef Executive Officerin
December 2013 Prior to this Keith
was a Director and Head of Wholly-
Owned Investments at UK Financial
Investments joming m 2009 to
manage the UK Covernment's
shareholdings in Bradford & Bingley
Northern Rock and Northern Rock
Asset Management Keith joined UKFI
from Bance Santander where he was
a Director of Soveraign Bancorp in
the US forusing on retail and SME
stratagy and the integration of
Sovereign into Santander He was
previously Director of Strategy and
Planning at Abbey National and a
member of the Executive Committee,
and also served as Charman of
Santander’s Asset Management and
Credit Card businesses in the UK
Before joming Abbey in 2004, Keith
spent 18 years at LEK Consulting
where he wasa partner specialising
n financial services

|
f

Chnstopher Fox

Chief Financial Gfficer and
Head of Central Services,
Exscutive Director

Chnistopher s Chief Finanoial Officer
and 15 also responsible for central
functionsincluding HR T and Admin
Prior to jeining the British Business
Bank Chnstopher was Head of
Banking at UK Financial Investments
where he was responsible for
overseeing HM Government's
sharehaldings in Lioyds Banking
Group Royal Bank of Scetland and
UK Asset Resolution He was also a
Non executive Director at UK Asset
Resolution, Bradford & Bingley and
NRAM Christopher joined UKFI from
UBS where he gained extensive
expenence of financial services over
nearly 20 years, having provided
capital markets and investment
banking advice to a range of
governments and financial institutions
around the world He joined UBS i
1983 and 15 a qualified accountant

Patrick Magee
Chief Cperating Officer,
Executive Director

Patrick joined the Bntish Business
Bank as Chief Operating Gfficer in
October 2014 He had previously
represented the Government's
sharehelder interests on 1ts Board
Before joining the Shareholder
Executive n June 2012 Patrick was
aManaging Director of Corporate
Finance atJF Morgan Cazenove having
worked at the predecessor firms for
almost 18 years During his career
Patnck has advised on a broad range
of M&A capital markets and corporate
broking assignments for a range of
clients in the General Industnal,
Energy/Utiity Support Services and
Financial Services areas Patrick also
spent two years on secondment to the
Panel for Takeovers and Mergers
During his time at the Shareholder
Executive Patrick was involved in
assisting with the establishment of
The Green Deal Finance Company the
set-up and governance of the British
Business Bank as well as work on a
range of the companies in the
Shareholder Executive porifoiie
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Corporate governance

statement

The British Business Bank 1s committed to
ensuring the best standards of corporate
governance and Is supported in this by the
Board of Directors and Board Committees

British Businass Bank plc's constitution
consists of its Articles of Association
and a Shareholder Relationship
Framework Bocument which requires
that the British Business Bank ple
operates so faras s practicable a
corparate governance framework
that accords with best practice and
o comply with the grovisions of the
UK Corparate Gevernance Code 2012
(other than Section E Relations with
Shareholders) or te speaify and
expiain any non-campliance in its
Annual Report The 2012 Corporate
Governance Code s freely available
from the Financial Reperting Council

The Corporate Governance Code acts as
aguide to arange of keyissues to ensure
effective Board practice The Code s
sphit between a number of chapters
and the principles of leadership
effectiveness and accountability are
values that the Board considers to be
critical 1o the success of our business

Apart from as set outin this Annual
Report, the Board 1s not aware of any
deviations from the relevant aspects of
the Code In the penad since 1 Apnl 2015
nsefar as itapphes to the Bntish
Business Bank plc

Rolte and responsibiity
of the Board of Directors
of the company

British Business Bank plcis led by its
Board of Directars which 15 callectively
responsible for the long-term success
and in consultation with BEIS the
strategy of the British Business

Bank plc

As set out in the Shareholder
Relationship Framework Document
the Board requires no fewer than eight
Orrectors including six Non executive
Directors Independent Non executive
Directors are to constitute the
majonty of the Board Cur Board and
Committees have the appropriate
balance of skills experience and
independence to enable them

0 discharge their duties and
responsibilities effectively

Matters reserved for the Board include
approving the strategic direction of
the business, significant investments
terms of reference of allcommittees
nsk management andinternal/
external controls and appointments
to the Board and Committees

OurNon executive Directors scrutimise
the performance of management in
meeting agreed goals and objectives
As part of ther Remuneration
Committee membership they are
raspensible for setting appropriate
levels of remuneration for executive
directors and staff in consultation
with our Shareholder This 1s further
explained in the Directors’
Remuneration Report at page 51

The Chairmans responsible for
leading the Board and its discussions
and for encouraging cpen debate

and challenge The Chief Executive s
the Accounting Officer and leads the
Executive in the day today running of
the business and the implementation
of strategy and is supported n this by
the Semior Management Team {SMT}

The Senior Independent Director

15 Christina McComb whose
responsibilities are to work closely
with the Chair act as anintermediary
for other Directors as and when
necessary and meet with cther

Non executive Directors to review
the Chair's performance

L]
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Corporate governance statement

Appointment and removal
of Directors

Appointments to the Board are made
n accordance with the UK Corporate
Covernance Code guidelines for
Nomination Comnitiees In
accordance with the Bank's
constitutional documents the Chaie
and the Senior Independent Director
were appoinied n a process chaired
by a commussioner from the Cffice
of the Commussioner for Public
Appointments

The Board comprises the following
directors who served throughout the
penod 1 Apnlt 2015 - 31 March 2016
except as noted

- MrRonald Emersen (Chaiman)

- Mrjonathan Bntton
(Non executive Director)

- Mr CohinGlass {Non executive
Director)

- Mrs Teresa Graham (Non-executive
Director)

- Mrs Caroline Green (Non executive
Director)

- MsChnsting McComb
(Senior Independent Director)

- MrCer Smith (Sharehelder
Representative Director}

- MrKeith Morgan (Chief Executve
Cfficer}

- MrChnstopher Fox
(Executive Director)

- MrPatrick Magee
(Exetuive Director)

- Ms Maria Turner (Non executive
Director untit May 2015)

In Apnl 2015, Mania Turner gave
notification of herintention to resign
from the Board with effect from

May 2015 and Teresa Grahamwas
appointed by the Board as intenim
Chair of the Risk Committee m place
of Maria Turner

In September 2015, Ridgeway
Partners were appointed by the Board
inrespect of the recruitment of a
new Chair of the Risk Commitiee
Pursuant to the pracess carred out
by Ridgeway Neeta Atkar has been
appointed as a Director with effect
from 1 July 2036 She has taken
over the role as the Charr of the Risk
Committee and Teresa Graham has
stepped down from her position as
intenm Charr of the Risk Commuttee

Inaddition as described in the
Charrman s statement on page 2
Ren Emerson s not intending to
extend his term as Chawrman of the
Britssh Business Bank and plans to
step down from the rele in Qctebar
2016 The process for appointment
of a new Chairman will involve a
commussioner from the Office of Public
Appointments and will be managed
by the Shareholder

The names and biographical details of
our Directors can be found on pages
361039

Annual Director election

All Non-Executive Directors were
apponted for a three year term at therr
ongnal appeintment and there was no
re election which was required dunng
the year ended 31 March 2016

Biowise [trading as Wastewise} received
finance from Yorkshire Bank a Bnitish
Business Bank partner

Board information

All Directors are provided with
updatas on corporate governance
developments legislative and
regulatory changes and relevant
indusiry and technical information
The Board is supplied in a imely
manner with the appropnate
information to enable it to discharge
its duties and any further back up
papers and formation are readily
available to al! Directors on request
to the Company Secretary In 2015
the Board deaided to use electranic
delvery and format for board papers
and information to increase efficiency,
confidentiality and sustainabihity

Executive committees

British Business Bank plc has a
number of Executive Commuttees
namely Investment Committees for
each subsidiary and the Preduct
Development Committees Eachof
these consssts of vanous members
of Bnush Business Bank's senior
management together with Board
members when it 1s required for
particular investment decisions

The Beard the Board Commiitees
and the Executive Committees have
been structured to provide a strong
governance framework Each
committee has Terms of Reference
which set out respective duties and
responsibthties Allappointments to
the Brard the Board Commuttees and
the Executive Committees are based
ondiversity of contnbution
expenence and required skills,
respective of gender

Board committees

The Board has a number of
commurtiees all of which are governed
by the principles and remit sei outin
the UK Corporate Governance Code
and whose terms of reference can be
found on the Bnitish Business Bank
website

Audit Committee

uUnder the Charmanship of jonathan
Britton the Audit Committee also
compnses further ndependent

Non executive Directors Teresa
Graham and Caroline Green Mana
Furner was a member until her
restgnation in May 2015

The Chief Executive Chief Finanoial
Officer Chief Risk Officer, General
Counsel and Head of Internal Audit
attend Committee meetings atong
with the external auditors who are
tnvited to attend and report at all
meetings The Committee also
meets privately with bothinternal
and external audit

The Committee met five times during
the year {in May 2015, June 2015,
September 2015, December 2015
and March 2016} and attendance
ran e found on page 44

Role

The Committee's role 15 to review
moniter and make recommendations
to the Board relating to the going
concern nature of the British
Business Bank, the integnty of
financial reporting the financial
statements and any issues and
Judgements they contain the
ardequacy and effectiveness of the
internal and external controls and
overseeing the relationship with

the Bntish Business Bank's exterral
audiar The Committee also has
oversight of the Internal Audit and
Audit Planning process of the Bntish
Business Bank

Duning the financal year 2015-16,
the Audit Commutiee considered
and approved the foliowing matters

- theoversight of the British
Business Bank's financial
reporting process and the
process for preparation of the
consclidated accounts

- reviewed the accounting pohicies
adopted 10 ensure the Brtish
Business Bank as a whole
complies with the applicable
Accounting Standards and
presents consohdated accounts
that are true and far;, reviewed
methads used to actount
for sigrificant er unusual
transactions where thiferent
approaches are possible

- assessed and approved the
pracess for prepaning the
ronsoldated accounts

- assessed the extent towhich
the Bnitish Business Bank has
comphed with Shareholder
financial reporting requirements,
the annualsinternal audit
programme and an evaluabion to
assess the effectiveness of both
the internal and external audit
processes and apgroaches as part
of tts agenda during 2016-17 to
ensure they are both adequate
and appropnate for the
arganisation

As required by cur Shareholder the
Bank 15 audtted by the Comptroller
and Auditor General The Nationat
Audit Office carnes out the external
audit for and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General The
external auditors have not conducted
any non-audit services dunng the
financial year and the Commuttee
considers that the external auditar
15 both objective and independent

{

The significant issues considered

by the Committee, with input from
the External Auditor dunng the
year included methodologies and
procedures for determming asset
valuations and provisions the
significant accounting policies,
decisions and judgments, the
contents of the Annual Report and
Accounts of the Company and
resourcing plans for the finance
team The Committee &lso considered
the lnternal Audit Planning and the
interaction with the External Auditor
of the Bank

The Committee will undertake

an evaluation to assess the
effectiveness of both the internal
and external audit processes and
approaches as part of Its agenda
during 2015 te ensure they are bioth
adequate and appropnate for the
organisatien In assessing the
effectiveness of the External Auditor
the Audit Committee will have regard
to the scope of the audit work
planned and executed standards of
communication and reporbing quality
of msights on theinternal control
envirenment and independence
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Remuneration Committee

Under the Chairmanship of the
Sentor independent Director
Christina McComb, the Remuneration
Committee also comprises the
Chairman Ron Emerson Teresa
Graham and Ceri Smuth The
Committee met four times dunng
the year in May 2015 July 2015
November, 2015 and March 2016

Role

The Committea s role is to set the
remuneralion policy for all executive
directors, the Chairman and all

other senior management incfuding
pension nghts and any compensation
payments and to set the terms of
the Long and Short Term Incentive
Plans and any incentive schemes
British Business Bank plc and its
subsidiaries may operate

Dunng the financial year 2015-16,
the Remuneration Committee
considered and approved the
structure of atl compensation
payments to directors and all other
senior management, the setiing up
of the Long Term Incentive Plan of
the Company and reviewed market
benchmarks for remuneration and
the performance evaluation of seror
management

Further information on the role the
remuneration committee performed
during the year s contained in the
Owrectors Remuneration Report on
page 51

9/

Risk Committee

Under the charrmanship of Teresa
Graham in an interim capacity, the
Risk Commatiee alsa comprises
Independent Non executive
Direttors Christina McComb Colin
Glass CenSmith and Jorathan
Bntton The Committee met four
times durng the year in May 2015,
July 2015, Ceiober 2015 and February
2016 and attendance can be found
on page 44

Role

The Committee’s role is to advise
the Board on the key risks to the
Bank In the purswit of its cbjectives
the appropnateness of the Bank's
nsk management framewark and to
undertake a full review of the Bank's
appetite forrisk as defined in the
Bank's nisk appetite statemant and
according to the Bank s business
plan [t reviews the nsk management
framework benchmarked against
financial services companies in the
private sector

Dunng the financial year 2015-16
the Risk Commuttee considered and
approved the Bank’s strategic sk
register looked into conduct and
reputatienal nsks associated with
individuat delivery partners as well
as credit performance across a whole
range of programmes reviewed and
approved palicies on Financial Cnme
Information Risk Management and
Business Centinuity and assessed the
wider macn economic envirnenment
for risks specific to the Bank and the
fulfilment of s objectives

Nommation Committee

Under the Chairmanship of Ron
Emerson the Neminaticn Committee
also compnses Non executive
Directors Chnstina McComb and
Ceri Smith

Role

The Commuttee met during
November 2015 and attendance
details can be found on page 44

At the Commuttee meeting
nominatkons of potenual Directors
were consilered and recommended
to the Board

Cuning the financial year 2015-16
the Nominaticn Committee
considered and approved the
succession planning for Executive
Directors and the SMT, appeintment
of further Non Executive Directars to
the Board and the board evaluation
process It also follpwed the Bank s
pelicy on diversity and equality As
highlighted in the corporate
statement the Bank usad the
services of Ridgeway Partners

to appoint Non-executive Directors
The Bank has no other connection
with Ridgeway Partners

Solo Building Supplies receved fingnce
from SWIG Finance a British Business
Bank partner
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Board and committee attendance

Ths table sets out the attendance of Cirectors since 1 April 2015 who attended each Beard and Committee

Dateof

appointment Board Audit Risk  Remuneration  Nominatlon
Total number
of meetings 9 5 4 4 1
Charr
Ron Emersan 29 October 2013 9/9 - - 4/4 111
Non-executwe Directors
Jonathan Britton 28 Apnl 2014 9/9 5/5 4/4 - -
Colin Glass 24 June 2014 9/9 - 4/4 - -
Teresa Graham 24 June 2014 B/9 5/5 4/4 414 -
Carohne Green 24 June 2014 9/9 4/5 - - -
Christina McComb 29 October 2013 9/9 - 4/4 4/4 1/1
Cen Smith 29 October 2013 9/9 - 4/4 4/4 1/1
Executive Directors . e
Keith Morgan 10 December 2013 9/9
Christopher Fox 13January 2015 9/9
Patnck Magee 10 March 2015 9/9

Board performance

The British Business Bank 1s
committed to ensuning that the Board
and its Committees operate effectvely
and are rontinually improwving Duning
the year the Chairman conducted an
internal Board evaluation to monitor
therr effective operation All Directors
and the Company Secretary
parhicipated in the annual review te
ensure a ngorous and full evaluation
of the operation of the Board and

1ts Committees This process was
composed of questionnaires that
asked for the Errectors viewson a
number of matters including Board
effectiveness and process
Committees interaction and roles
effectiveness of the chairman and
govarnance function and Board
compesition The outcome of the
exercise showed no areas af concern
and the feedback recewed will be
reviewed by the Board and Charrman
as part of our commitment te maintain
angoing improvement

The Board 1s committed to ensure

the diversity of its membership

All appointments io the Board are
based on merit and on the expenence
and skills required, with due regard

to the benefts of diversity

Conflicts of interest

Each Director has a duty under the
Companies Act 2006 to avoid a
situanon where they have or can
have, a direct or indirect interest that
conflicts or possibly may conflict with
the Company s interests As part of our
Conflicts of Interest Policy the Bank
has adopted a formal procedure for
distlosure review and authonsation
of Dicectors conflict of interest, which
requwes witten disclosure of any
actual or potential conflicts of interest
for all Directors and staff The
procedure requires Directors to noufy
formally the Chair or the Company
Secretary as soon as they become
aware of any actual or petential
conflicts of interest with thew duties

to the Bank, or of any matenal thange
in existing or potenual conflicts that
may have been authonsed by the
Board The Board s of the belief that
outside interests can be beneficial for
both the Executive and Company and
has authonsed the outside interest of
the Chief Executve Ofhicer in tus role
asaNon-executive Director at UK
Asset Resalution

The Bank has not make any political
denations or tncurred any politicat
expenditure dunng the financial year

aa
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Risk management
and internal control

Our Risk Management Framework is a collection
of tools, processes and methodologres that
support the British Business Bank i 1dentifying,
assessing, monitoring and controlling the risks

it faces.,

The Board has overall accountability
and responsibiiity for the management
of nsk within the Briush Business
Bank The Bntrsh Business Bark s not
a FCA/PRA regulated entity though a
subsidiary representing approximately
1% of the portfolio Capital for
Enterprse Fund Management 1S
regulated by the FCA for controlling
but not holding chent meney We have
polices and procedures in place to
ensure comphance with applicable
laws and regulations and we aspie to
follow best practice where appropriate
and applicable

A dhscussion of how the Bank handles
1ts nsks in relation to hnancizal
instruments 1s set out Innote 22

of the finantial statements

The Risk Management Framewark
describes the overall strategy
towards the acceptance avoidance,
management and controf of nsks
as well as the development of sk
capabilities aligned to the business
goals and objectives

The Risk Management Framework

- demcnstrates a clear hnk to the
overall strategy and business plan
of the British Business Bank

- 1spwned by the Chief Risk Officer
{CROYand approved by the British
Business Bank Board Any changes
ta the Risk Management
Framework are recommended by
the Board Risk Commuttee to the
Board for approval

- outhnes the nsk managament
visien and objectives, and the
approach for evolving the nsk
management capatiity of the
Briush Business Bank

~ 15 reviewed on an annual basis and
if required more frequently io
reflect any significant matenal
changes to the business economic
or regulatory outfook

Avyearly external review of the

Risk Management Framework

1s undertaken to assess the
effectiveness of nsk management
within the Bntish Business Bank
This review carned out by thind party
adwisers was last completed in july
2015 Itbenchmarked the target
operating model of the nsk function
and outhined the key development
actions for the functionin 2015-16
The findings of this review were
presented to the Board Risk
Committee and the Board The next
review of the Risk Management
Framework will take place n the
third guarter of 2016

Key elements of our Risk Management
Framework include Risk Appetite and
Risk Governance

British Business Bank - Annual Repeort and Accounts 2016

45

Risk management report

Risk appetite

Risk appetite 1s the level of nsk
the Board of the British Business
Bankis willing to accept in order to
deliver its public policy objectives

The British Business Bank's Risk
Appetite Pelicy acts as the lnk
between overall business strateqgy
the nsk strategy and the Risk
Management Framework by bringing
strategic context to identified nsks
adopting clear escalation cntena
and informing the processes for the
identification assessment, control
and menitonng ot sk exposures

The Risk Appetite Policy allows the
Board to articulate the appetite for
nisks that are specific to their concerns
such as nisks to the reputation of the
British Business Bank

\\

The Board undertook a review of the
Bratish Business Bank's Risk Appelite
Statement inMarch 2016

This statement summarnise the
Board s appetite for the principal
nisks that the Bnitish Business Bank
1s exposed to Itis tied to the risk
categonsations detalled in the Risk
Management Framework which
outlines seven broad categores

of Level 1 Risks The Risk Appetite
Statement can be found on page 47

The British Business Bank also
undertook an exercise to quantfy the
potental downside nsks of a severe
downturn against our Business Plan
This assessed the kkely impact on
our portfolio assuming alin 20 year
scenano across the vanous
programmes, angd the gutcomes were
considered by both the Board Risk
Committee and the Board

)

’/ A

i
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Risk appetite statement

Levell risk

Risk appetite

Defimition

Credit and investment nisk

Market nisk

Qperational risk

information and data nsk

Comphance and conduct risk

Strateqic and business nisk

Reputational risk

Risk governance

The British Business Bank Risk and
Compliance function s based upon
a 'three lines of defence modelas
outlined in our Risk Management
Framewark where the

- first line of defence 15 responsible
for the day to day /dentification,
reporting and management of
their own risks

Medium-High

Law-Medium

Low-Medium

Lo

Low-Medium

Low-Medm

Low-Medwm

The nisk of direct or indirect lesses in on and off balance
sheat positions as a result of the failure of a borrower or
tounterparty to meet its obligations in accordance with
agreed terms or loss of value in equity investments.
The nsk of direct or indirect losses that anse from

fluctuations w values of, or ncome from assetsorin
movements 1n interest or exchange rates or credit spreads

The risk of direct losses resulting from inadequate or falled
internal processas people and systems or indirect losses
resulting from relauonships with third parties or from
external events

w Information risk encompasses all the challenges that result

fram the our need to control and protect our snformation

Risk of breaching UK or EU regulaticns internal polictes or
conduct standards, which exposes us to regulatory fines
and penalties finantial losses and reputaticnal risk

Therisks ansing from a suboptimal business strategy or
business model that may lead to financial loss nappropnate
management of public money reputaticnal damage or
failure to meet internal and/er public policy objectives

The nisk that the firm wili act in a way which falls short
of stakeholder expectations

second ine of defence 1s
responsible for designing risk
policies and methodologies,
monitenng performance and
romplance entifying and
reporting nisks and providing
ndzpendent and appropnate
chalienge to the first ine

of defence

The Bntish Business Bank encourages
a strong culture of nisk awareness

and transparency which s supported
through reqular intranet updates

and i house traiming

third line of defence provides
independent assurance of the
overall system of internal control
including assessment of the nsk
governance framework
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Palicies form an integral part of
managing nsk withan British Business
Bank They outline how we intend to
function taking account of regulatory
orlegal requirements and industry
best practice Policies are approved
by the appropnate committees and
communicated to staff We haven
place an enterprise wide set of
polcies frameworks and procedures
covering the majer parts of our
business Colleagues are alse subject
10 the British Bus:ness Bank Code

of Conduct and annual compliance
detlarations

Three lines of defence model

The key principles of this model
as demonstrated by the diagram
below are

The Board has overall
accountability and responsibility
for the management of nsk within
the British Business Bank

The Board delegates specific

risk management roles and
respensibilities io the Board Risk
Lommittee, the Audit Commitiee
and CEG and the CRC

The CEO 15 supported in delivery
of these responsiiities through
direct reports from the senior team

The CRQs a member of the senior
team and is alse supported by the
Risk and Comphance functionin the
delvery of their responsib

First hine of defence Second hine of defence Third line of defence
Day to day management and Resk policies methodologies and Independent assurance
nsk contral independent oversight and challenge

Chief
Executive

The Board

Board Risk
Committes

Senior
Team

Business
Functions

Chief
Risk Officer

Risk and
Compliance
Function

Control
Functions
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Principal iisks and uncertainties

Principal nsks and uncertainties

Risk Definition Categones Example mitsigants
Compiranceand Risk of breaching - Risk that British Business Bank's - The British Business Bank s not
conduct nsk UKorEU regulated entity breaches requlated except for its subsidiary
regulations requlatory requirements Capitat for Enterpnse Fund Managers
inernal policiesor - Breach of appiicable laws. - New products and pogrammas are
tonduct standards, - Risk that Britrsh Business Bank assassed against the UK and EU
whichexposesthe  entersinto regulated activities regulatory environments
British Business withinits programmes without - All new investments are subject
Bank to regulatory bewng regulated to Know Your Customer and anti-
fines and penalties, - Brntish Business Bank employeas money laundenng reviews
finanoal lossesand  breach comphance standards - British Business Bank has a
reputatronal risk Complance Risk Management
Framework and a suite of
Compliance retated policies
- Employees are subject to a Code
of Conduct and annual Cemphance
Detlaratron
Creditand Thensk of direct - Risk of end borrower default, - Delvery partaer selection process
ivestment risk  orendirectlossesin  forexample as a restlt of includes robust due dilgence
on and off-batance poor trading or defectssn assessment of underwniting and
sheet posticnsasa  the delivery process sanctioning processes and thereafter
result of the falure  ~ Whlst the majonty of individual 15 subject to pertfolio monitoning and
of a barrower or exposures to end borrowers are regular review
ounterparty to smalt, exposures tomid cap - The credit quality of exposuires s
meetitsobligations  companies are iypically larger monitered closely
in accordance with - Delivery partner defaultor closure - The British Business Bank aims
agreed terms or -~ Venture Capitals subject to o continue to invest throughout the
loss of value in vintage risk with the year the economic cycle therefore minimising
equity investments  investment was made the largest the vintage rnisk
single nsk driver - The portfolio s monitered clasely
- Concentration withincneindustry  for concentration risk
or location creates a portfoho
thats subject to greater nisk
than a more evenly balanced one
Informaticn Information risk - Breach of legal requirements - Infermation Secunty and (nformation
and data risk encompasses all relating to safe keeping and Assurance pohoes are in place

the challenges
that result from the
our need te control
and protect our
information

disclosure of Information
- Risk of business sensitive
information being leaked or
accidentally made avallable
1n public domain
Threats of cyber attacks that
steal sensitive data relating to
the British Business Bank or
its delivery partners as well
as disrupt the British Business
Bank s functionality

1o manage information nsk

The Data Protection Policy ensures
that the Bntish Business Bank
complies with ihe Data Protecton Act
The British Business Bank realises
the threats of cyber attacks and

1s developing a robust tnadent
response plan

Risk Defimtion Categories Example mitigants

Market nisk Thenskofdrect - TheBritish Business Bank makes - The British Business Bank has minor
orindirect losses matenal lossas due to foreign foreign exchange exposure less than
that anse from exchange movements through 4% of 1ts portfolio and does not hedge

Operational nsk

Reputational
risk

Strategicand
business risk

fluctuations in

1ts investments

values of orincome - The Britsh Business Bark

from assets or
10 movements
10 Interest or
exchange rates
or credit spreads

The nsk of direct
losses resulting
frominadeguate
or faded internal
processes pecple
and systems or
indirect losses
resulting from
relationships with
third parties or
from extesnal
evenis

The nsk that
the firmwall act
inaway which
falls short of
stakeholder
axpectations

The nsks anising
from a suboptimal
business strategy
or business model
that may lead

to financal loss
nappronriate
management

of public meney,
reputational
damage or fallure
te meet internal
and/or pubkc
poiicy objectwves

Investments are subject to
interest rate fluctustions

Eerors in execution delivery

and processing

Failure of internal controls
External or internal frauds
Damage to physicat assets utilities
disruption or systems failure

The Briish Business Bank
operates a business model which
1s subject to Delivery Partner
tonduct ardd performance

Risk that the British Business
Bark s current and planned
products may not be fit for
purpose

Risk that the Britssh Business Bank
does not meet 1ts deployment or
rommitment targets

The British Business Bank 1s not
effective in meeting 1ts objectives
Risk that the British Business Bank
1simpacted by the implementation
of the resubt of the EU
Referendum

these exposures Thisis infine with
government policy

British Business Bank conducts
scenano testing of exposures sensitive
to Interest rate market valuation
movements

We require some delivery partners to
manage market risk directly within the
terms of the ivestment

Risk and Control Assessments with
functional teams are held to assess
nisks and associated internal contrels
Operational Incidents management
process in place

Close haison with BEIS counter fraud
netwaork and regular interaction with
key business partners

A Reputaticnal Risk Policy 1s 1n place
The British Business Bank undertakes
extensive gue dhligence on new
delvery partners and momnitors
existing delivery partners

Service Level Agreements are in place
with Delivery Partners

The Brstish Business Bank has a
Complaints Policy in place

Aclearly defined set of abjectives
and a robust governance model are
i place

New products are subject to market
assessment and a new product
approval process

Regular review of the Strategic

Risk Register by the senior team
and Board members

Regular review of market conditrons,
impact on SMEs and ongoing
communication with stakehelders
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nrectors’ remuneration report

Chair's foreword

Directors’

remuneration report

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to
present the Remuneration Report for the
British Business Bank for the year ended

31 March 2016 Those sections of the report
that have been audited by the National
Audit Office have beenidentified as such.

The Committee's pnmary role I1s

to provide robust independent
governance for executive remuneration
to ensure that reward for the Bank s
exacutive team

- supports the Bank's long term
business strategy and values

- enables the Bank 1o recruit
motivate and retain talented
indiwiduals with appropriate skills
and expenence

- hnks executive reward to the
Bank s performance against its
Iong term busingss plan

This repart1s divided into two garts

1 Policy on Executive Directors and
senior management remuneration

2 Annual repert on remuneration
- this section outlines how the
policy has been apphed and
includes details of remunaration
for the senior team

Durng the financral year 2015-16,

its first full year of operaticn the
Bank made significant progress as
outhned n the Chairman s statement
The Committee has also played an
impertant role in monitoring and
reviewing a remuneration framework
that reflacts the particular
circumstances of the Bank as a public
owned company operating Ina
commercial envirgnment Accordingly,
the Committee has continued with an
incentive scheme that s designed to
reward senior employees based on
the long-term sustanable success of
the Bank Key deasions made by the
Committee and reccmmended to the
Beard duning the year were

- agreeing the annual pay review
for 2016

- reviewing the long termincentive
plan (LTIF) appropriate to the
particular circumstances of
the Bank

- measunng corporate and ndividual
performance targets for 2015-16
and the first cycle LTIP

- reviewing the overall remuneration
policy and strategy for the Bank

The Remuneration Committee has
continued to take aninterest in
broader market trends and carned out
benchmarking of salaries and cther
reward mechanmisms in 2015 Inthe
rontext of the Bank's pelicy remit

the Commitiee recognises that
remuneration policy will need to be
reviewed from time to time to ensure
thatitis meeting the requirements of
our sharehelder and s it for purpese
where appropriate the Committee
will seek relevant external advice and
guidance Looking ahead to 2016-17
the Commuttee wili be reviewing the
business targets for the next penod
and setting stretching business and
persenal targets for the executive

in particular in the context of any new
policy initiatives which the Bank has
been asked to undertake

O?(_,ob«&/

~

Chnstina McComb
' Chair of the Remuneration Commitiee
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Remuneration
policy report

Policy overview

The Remuneraticn Committee
determines on behalf of the Board
the Bank s policy on the remuneration
of the Chairman Executive Directors
and cther members of the senior team

The Committee’s terms of reference
are available on the Bank's website

While not covered by the FCA/PRA
Remuneration Code for banks

the British Business Bank has
sought where appropriate to meet
these governance requirements
in addrtion te The Large and
Mediwm sized Companies and
Groups Regulations 2013

The Committee will continue to
review the remuneration strategy and
approach in order to ensure that the
Bank adopts leading practice with
respect 1o 1ts remuneration policy and
can respend to the business pricnties

How the views of the
shareholder have been
taken into account

The shareholder-appointed Non
executive Director is a member of the
Remuneration Committee Inaddition
specific approval has been obtamned
from the shareholder for Executive
Director remuneration and individual
objectives and for the LTIP terms

The remuneration policy
for directors and the
seniorteam

In setting remuneration policy for
the semor (eam, the Remuneration
Commuittee has taken into account
the following key factars

- the need toattraci and retain a
high calibra senicr team to delver
the Banks strategy in algnment
with the interests of the
sharehelder

-~ the requirement 1o reward
long-term performance and
incentivise the nght behavieurs

- theefficient use of taxpayer
resources and the requirement
to deliver good value for money
for the Exchequer as a whole

/a

The Bank has nat consulted its
employees on this policy althoughit
has considered the reward philosophy
for employees ingeneral The focus
for employees 1s on rewarding
performance over the longer term
and to have reward packages which
attract high-calibre candidates

while delivening value far mongy

Table 1 summarises the key elements
of the Bank's remuneration policy for
Executive Directors and the semior
team taking into account the factors
above The Executive Directors service
contracts are available for inspection
at the Bank s registered office

Under the remuneration policy the
total remuneration for each Executive
Director depends on their own and
the Bank's performance
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Table1 Remuneration pohcy

Element Operation, opportunity and performance framework
Base salary
Objective Base salaries are reviewed annually taking into account the nature of the role

To attract and retain high-cahbre
senior leaders

and responsibilities Roles are benchmarked agamnst relevant comparator
organisations i the public and private sectors The Remuneration Committee
also takes into account the external environment and views of the shareholder

Long Term Incentive Plan (LT1P)

Dbjective
To reward performance over the
longer term

Executive Directors and certain members of the senior team are eligible 1o
parutipate in the Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP)

The LTIP operates as a serres of three year cycles Objectives are set at the
beginning of each cycle and progress is reviewed by the Committee on an
annual basts

Qbjectives are set In two categories corporate and personal The weighting
between these tategories may be varied over time at the discretion of the
Committee takinginto account the requirements of the business and any
relevant external factors The weighting for the 2015-16 LTIP 15 60% to
corporate targets and 40% to personal targets

Corporate targets cover rolling three year periods and will generally be in ing
vith the Bark's business plan sbjectives The current targets for the most recent
LTiP and the threshold levels are set out in Annual Report on Remunaration
Personal targets are designed to take iInto account the specific responsibilities of
indwvidua! senior leaders in the Bank

The current ncentve 15 a maximum cash award of 5096 of base salary Inthe
rase of Executive Directors, awards are paid at the end of the relevant three year
cycle inthe case of the first cycle LTIP n August 2017 In the case of other
members of the LTIP any awards in respect of personal cbjectives may be paid
after two years There)s no annual bonus award for Executive Directors and the
senior team

Although the Company 15 not governed by the Financial Conduct Authority

or Prudential Regulation Authonity the Committee has determined that the
regulatory best practice should be adeoted with regard to Recovery and
withholding Provistons and such prowvisions shall apply for a period of seven years
from the start of the perfermance penad Recovery and Withhalding shall apply
inarange of adverse circumstances at the Committee s discretion including
financial accounts mis statement, sigmficant failure of nsk management,
regulatory censure or breach of palicy and procedures

As ageneral rule 1If a participant ceases employment within the Company's
Group before an award s paid then the award opportunity shall normally be
forfeited and lapse in full although there are exceptions for participants
categonsed as good leavers

The Rermuneration Commitiee has ulimate discretion over the levels and
payment of any awards taking into account factors it considers relevant
ncluding the overall performance of the Bank
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Table 1 continued Remuneration policy

Element

Operation, opportunity and performance framework

Pension and other benefits

Objective
To provide an attractive and
cost effective package

The Bank contnbutes up to 15% of base salary to its defined contnbution
scheme or an approved personal pension scheme subject to a minimum
employee contnbution of 3% The CEQ receves a cash in lieu allowance of 10%

Current benefits provided are private medical insurance (commencing in
September 2016) fliness income protection and Iife assurance These are subject
to review on an annual basis

Loss of office payments

Objective
To provide fawr but not excessive
contract features

There are no defined terms for loss of office within serice contracts Inine with
policy, Executive Directors and the senior team are on six months notice either
side Provision may be made for paymentin leu of notice where thisis deemed
to be in the interest of the business Any situation will be considered by the
Committee on its ments

Should anindividual be considered a good leaver under the LTIP rules an
apprapriate portion of thewr LTIPs may at the discretion of the Remuneratio
Committee beretained All termination payments are subjert to Catwnat
Office Guidehnes

New Executive Brrector remuneration

Objective
To attract and retain hugh calibre
senior leaders

Remuneration for any new appointments will be set in accordance with the
policy set outin this table The same approach will be taken with respect to
any witernal appointments We do not offer any sigring-on payments or ather
compensation for lass of deferred compensation from previcus emplayment
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Table 2 Scenarios chart Ranges for Executive Director remuneration

The following chart shows how E00O
executives remuneratien could vary

according to performance and assumes 500
that the Directors are employed by

the Bank for a whole financial year

The vaniable pay element 15 measured
over a three year penod and 1s paig out

) s ;
after the end of the third year subject 200 - - — .
to continued employment 100% [l 73% [ ST
100 - —| — -
/D) - - . —

Mmumum Target Maximum Mimmum Target Maximum Meumom Tamget Maxmom
Kelth Morgan Christepher Fox Patrick Magee

B Fixed pay

300 -

W varlable pay

Notes

1 Minimum = hxad pay only (salary and current cost of benehis and pension)
2 Target = fxed pay and 75% vesting of the LTIP

3 Maximum = fixed pay and 100% vesting of the LTIP

The Board reviews the amount of each
component of the fees on a penpdic
basis to assess whether they remain
competitive and appropriate in hght

of changes in roles, responsibilities

or tme commitment of the Non-
execubive Directors Inaccordance
with comman practice Non-executive
Directors are reimbursed expanses
incurred in performing therr role

External appointments Non-executive Directors

TheChatrman and the Non executive
Directors do not have service
agreements with the Bank Non-
executive Directors are appomnted
under latters of appointment which
provide for aninibial term of service
of three years The appointment of
aNon executive Directer can be
terminated, by either party giving
written notice There 15 ne provision
for compensation for loss of office
The dates of the current letters of
appointment of the Non executive
Directors are shownin the Annual
Report on Remuneration Further
details on nermination and
appointment of Non executive
Dwectors is set outin the corporate
Governance Statement

Executive Directors may be nvited to
become Non executive Directers In
other companies These appointments
can enhance their knowledge and
expenence to the benefit of the Bank
It1s the Bank's pelicy that Board
approvalis required before any
external appointment may be
accepted by an Executive Qirector
The Executive Director (s permittad to
retain any fees paid for such services
Dunng the year Keith Morgan served
as a Non-executive Directar at UK
Asset Resoiution Ltd and received

a fee of £65 000

Table 3 sets out the key elements

of the Bank s remuneration palicy for
the Chair and other Non-executive
Directors

Addivonal fees are paid to the Semior
Independent Cirector and Chairs of
the Audit, Risk and Remuneration
Commuitiees, In recognition of the
additional tme spent in respect of
their Committee actvities Thisis
1n hne with UK practice generally
Any increases in fees are subject

to shareholder approval

| The terms and conditions of
appointment of the Non-executive
Diractors are available for inspecticn
at the Bank s registered office

The fee levels paid to Non-executive
Directors reflect the time commitment
and responsibifities hawving regard to
best UK practice

|
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Table 3 Remuneration policy for Non-executive Directors

Element

Operation, opportunity and performance framework

Basic fee - Chair

Remunerat:on is in the form of an
annual cash fee in ine with practice
in the UK

The Chair fee will be reviewed from time to time by the Board

Basic fee - Non executive Directors

Remuneration 15 in the form of an
annual cash fee in kne wath practice
n the UK

Bank wide remuneration
and incentive plans

The Bank aims to apply its
remuneration policy ina consistent
way for all staff

Staff receve pension contributions
Iife assurance illness income
protechionand private health
insurance {commencing in September
2016} as well as therr basic salary

The Bank has three mutually exclusive
incentive plans all of which are
designed to reward performance and
achievement of the Bank s objectives

These plans are payable wholly in
rash reflecting the fact that the
Bank has a single shareholder

[the Secretary of State for Business
Inngvation and Skills) and does not
1ssue shares 1o staff

Non exerutive Girector remuneration is reviewed annually by the Chair and
the Executive Diractors Any recommendations are subject to Board approval,
with Non executive Directors not voting on thesr own remuneration

Short Term incentive Plan
(STIP)

Senior employees wheo are not eligible
for the Long Term Incentive Plan are
eligible to particpate in the STIP

The purpose of this plan s ta reward
senior managers for their parformance
over the year as assessed against both
therr personal ebjectives (currently
4(:9% of award} and the Bank's
objectes (currently 60% of award)
The maximurm annual award Is 309 of
base salary 50% of any award 1s paid
after the relevant year end, with 25%
deferred for one year and a further
25% deferred for two years

The STIP rules incorporate withholding
and recovesy provisions in line waith
gooed practice and such provisions
apply for a peniod of seven years from
the start of the performance penod

Annualbonus

Employees not elgible for the Lang
or Short Term Incentive Plans may

+ participate in the annual bonus
scheme which has a maximum
award of 2096 of base salary
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Annual report
on remuneration

This part of the report has been
prepared in accordance with Part 3

of Schedule Bof The Large and
Medium sized Companies and Groups
[Accounts and Reports) Amendment

Although the Bank 15 not subject
to the vanable pay cap introduced
under the European Unign Capital
Requiremenis Directive, it does
comply with the cap

Directors' remuneration report

Non-executive Directors are not
remunerated in the same way as the
Executive Directors and therefore
have not been included in this table
However they do recaive
compensationin the form of a fee
as detasled in Table B

With respect to 2014-15 the amounts
above are 1n respect of service on the
Board for the period 1 November 2014
(the date the Bank commenced
operations) to 31 March 2015

Relative importance
of spend on pay

No diwidends have been paid from
Brtish Business Bank meaning that
the comparison of total remuneration
todividends does not provide useful
informaticn As a result, we have set
out below the percentage of revenue
represented by total remuneration
compared to 2014-15 to llustrate the
relative importance of spend on pay

Changesin CEQ/colleague
pay and median comparison

The median salary of British Business
Bank employees for 2015-16 was

£63 000 (2014~-15 E5B 000) Thris
compares to the CEQ's annual base
salary of £299 000 Noemployee eams
more than the fighest paid Director

The CEC did not receive asalary
increase dunng the 2015-16
performance year No general pay
Increase was awarded to colleagues

Regulations 2013 Disclosures are
also made in accordance with the
Compames Act 2006 The Bank has
compled with the regulations where
it believes it 1s appropnate to do so

Table 4 Executive Dvrector remuneration (audited)

Year ended March 2016 Year ended Marth 2015

Pension Pension

payments payments

Taxable Annual  Long term {inclcash {inctcash
Salary benefits incentive ncentives supplemenis) Total Salary supplements) Total
Keith Margan' 299 o) 0 0 30 329 125 12 137
Christopher Fox? 210 o] ] 0 0 210 49 0 49
Patnck Magee? 210 e o 0 2l 231 3 1 14
Total 719 0 0 0 51 770 187 13 200

As the Bank commenced operations on 1 November 2014, prior year comparatves for the remuneration of Executive
Directors and the senior team are for a five month period

Notes

The Company has not made pensian contributions for Kerth Margan but has nstead pad a cash alternative to lum The amount shown far
2015-16 was pald in the yaar and the amount shown for 2014-15 was accrued in that year but not pald untl 2015-16

Christopher Fox joined the British Busingss Bank as Chief Financral Gfficer on 8 January 2015 The amounts shown for the 2014-15 year are

the amounts payable in respect of service from this date to 31 March 2015

Patrick Magee betame an Executive Disector of the Bank on 10 March 2015 The amounts shown for the 2014-15 year are the amounts gayeble
nrespect of service from this date te 31 March 2615

The Executive Dwectors recesve deathin service and ifiness ingome pretection benetits which are non taxable

No Execythve Director recaved taxable benefits, annual incentwve payments or long term Intentive payments in either 2025-16 or 2014 -15

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed prelminary performance of indwiduals for 2015-16 and has made provisional 3ssessments
ranging trom 75-30% for the senlor team (2014-15 75-95%:) Subject 1o continued performance these awards are payable when the relevont
LTIP vests

Taxable benehts annualincentive andlong term benefits were £0n 2014-15

—
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Total Tatal n the 2015-16 performance year
although some British Business Bank
201516 a1 O..M_._ 12 HMM* .H.SH | B.ﬁmmm_u:mm did _.mn._m_<m a mw__ma. Increase
3 bl 1IN 2015-16 hnked to moving ta British
201415t i7679 5993 _34% 1 gusiness Bank terms and conditions
1 Represents a hve month peried
Table 5 Senior team remuneration (audited)
Yearended March 2016 Year ended March 2015
Personal
performance
element
of LTiP
{accruedin Pension Pension
2014-1% payrments payments
Taxable Annual payablein {inclcash {inclcash
Salary benefits  Incentwe August16} supplements) Totat Salary supplements) Total
Shanika
Amarasekaras  20C ¢] 0 27 A 231 73 14 87
MarkGray® 200 9 0 30 30 230 83 14 &7
Tatal 400 Y o 57 61 461 156 28 184
Notes

won

The mdrnduals abave recere death in sevwice 2nd iltness income protect:on benefits which are non taxable
Salanes quotad are gross salares pre salary sacrifice but colleagues pay indwvidual pension tontributions via 4 salary sacnfice arangemant
The Remuneratien Committes has ravewed prebmmnary performance of indrduals for 2015-16 2nd has made provrs:onal personal awards

of 75% for the senior team (2014-15 75%) Subject to continued performance these personal awards are payable in August 2016

IS

For 2014-15 the amounis above are in respect of service as a member of the senior team for the penod L November 2014 (the date of the

incephon of the Bank) to 31 March 2315 Members of the senior team have receved na signing on payments no 'eaving payments and no

annual banus payments
Shanika Amarasekara, General {ounsel and Company Secretary
Mark Gray Chief Resk Officer

~ T

Taxable benefits annuatincentive and long tern benefts were £0in 2014-15

As the Bank commenced operaticns on 1 November 2014 prior year comparatives for the remuneration of Executive

Directors and the sentor team are for a five month period
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Table 6 2015-16 Long-term incentive plan (LTIP} Table 7 Group targets for the second cycle (March 2018) LTIP
The senior team are invited to participate In a long term incentive plan The following individuals have elected tojoin the
plan and have been granted interests during the #015-16 year worth up to a maximum of 50% of salary Any pay-outis Objective March 2018 target
subject to a number of condiions including performance conditions Lower threshold Stretch Challenge
Increase stock of finance fachitated through
Year ended March 2016 British Business Bank programmes £88bn ___Elosbn E114bn
Percentage - GF which SME £5 0bn E6 3bn £67bn
of corporate [ et .
Facevalue  Facevalue  Facevalue award for End of More diverse finance market (measured by inance
of award  ofpersonal of corporate Face value reaching corporate facihtated through non Big Four lenders) 81% B86% 91%
Typeof (Foof award award  ofaward  threshold - performance Better provision of information (measwred though
interest sy} & € & fargets* period average awareness of six alternative finance options
KeithMorgan CashLTIP 50% £55800 EBS70D - £149500 0% 31-Mar-13 from British Business Bank customer research) 49% 51% 53%
Christopher Fox Cash LTIP 50% £42,000 £63000 E105000 50% J1-Mar-18 m._m:mmm taxpayers' resources efficiently m:..o:n; earning
Patrick Magee CashLTIP S0%  £42000  £63000  £105000 50%  31-Mar-1B an appropriate return on equrty 16% 2 0% 22%
Shanika Amarasekara  CashlT®  50%  £40000  EB0C00 EIGDOO __ 50%  31-Mar-1B Expected vesting of Group award based on judgement Up to 50% Up to 75% Upto100%
Mark Gray CashLTIP 50% £40 000 £60,000 E100,000 50% 31-Mar-18 of Committee for threshold
performance
Notes 0% if o
1 Personalperformance targets are not ncluded m this calculation as they are nat subject 1o threshold conditions targets are
achieved
Performance assessment
None of the senior team receives an
annual performance award o bonus = Table 8 Non-executive Director remuneration (audited)
The LTIP 15 a three year plan and the i
first LTIP corporate awards wll be . Total fees Total fees
assessed at the end of the three year - 2015-16 2014-15
penod ending in March 2017 40% of \\\\ EDOD €000
both the first and second cycle LTIP - Ron Emerson (Chairman) _ o 120 120
awards are subject to personal p Chnistina McComb (senior independent director) 45 46
performance The Committee has Mana Turner T 3 30
reviewed the performance of Jonathan Brtton 30 20
individuals for 2015-16 and has made E= Fe—— i =0
provisional assessments ranging fram eresa uranam 0
75% t0 90%, which will be taken mnto Carcline Creen? 25 20
account when assessing outcomes for Cohn Class® _ . a5 20
the relevant LTIP awards Table 7on Cen Smith il il
page 60 sets cut the corporate three -
year performance targets which have Notes
no spectfic weightings for the second 1 TeresaCrahamwas apparvied charr of the nsk committee in May 2015 and recewes an additwonal ESk as a result
LTIP cycle 2 TeresaGraham Caroline Green and Colin Class were appointed on 24 June 2014 so their 20715 comparatives do not represent a full year
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The amount paid to Chnisuna McComb
n 2014-15 was tugher than her
entitfementbecause there was

an underpayment to herin the
previous year

The base fee for Non-executive
Directors s £25,000 and individuals
receive an allowance of £5,000 for
chainng a committee There are no
additional fees payable for individual
committee membership

Pension entitlements

The Bank does not offer a defined
benefit pension scheme for new staff
However staff that transferred inte
the Bank from BEIS are able to
tontinue to particpate in BEIS s
defined benefit scheme No Executive
Directors have participated in2
defined benefit scheme in 2015-16
and only one British Business Bank
colleague who transferred from BEIS
continues to parucipate1n the BEIS
defined benefit scheme

Keith Morgan recewves a cash allowance
of 10% of base salary in heu of
pensien contnbution

Board of Directors Terms
of Office

The dates of appointment and terms
of office of Mon-Executive and
Executive Direciors are provided in
the Corporate Governance Statement
onpage 40

Membership of the
Remuneration Committee

The details of membership of the
Remuneration Commitiee and
attendance are included in the
Corporate Governance Statement
on page 40

External advisers

During the year the Remuneration
Comm:ttee did not use advisers for
the provision of remuneration advice
although 1t did review benchmarking
data provided by Aon McLagan
!
|
1

Implementation of the
Remuneration Policy for
2016-17 _

For 2016-17 the Remuneration
Committee will continue to implement
the policy on a similar basis 10 2015-16 |
The British Business Bank will seek
approval from the Shareholder for any
changes to the policy

Approval of the Directors’
Remuneration Report I
This Directors' Remuneration Report, |
incfuding both the Policy and Annual
Remuneration Report has been
approved by the Board of Directors

Signed on behalf of the Board
of Directors

Yours sincerely
[
9?6 (oJoe

Christina McComb
Chair of the Remunesation Commuttee
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Directors’

responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for
prepanng the Annual Report and the
finantial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regutations

Company law requires the Directars
to prepare such financial statements
for each financial year Under that law
the Directors are required to prepare
the Group financial statements in
acrordance with International
Finanoial Reporting Standards (IFRSS)
s adopied by the Eurnpean Union
and Article 4 of the |1AS Regulation
and have also chosen to prepare the
parent Company financial statements
under [FRSs as adupied by the
European Umion Under Company law
the hrectors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are
satished that they give 2 true and fair
view of the state of affarrs of the
Company and of the profitor loss of the
Company for that penied In preparing
these financial statements,
International Accounting Standard 1
requires that Directers

- properly select and apply
accounting policies

- present information including
wﬂnOE_._:_._m _uo__n_mm In 3 manner
that provides relevant, rehable,
comparable and understandable
infermaticn

- previde addiuenal disclosures
when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRSs
are insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of
particular transactions, other
events ang conditions on the
entity's financial position and
financial performance

- make an assessment of the
Company's abilty te continue
as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for
keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any ume the finanoial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006 They
are also responsible for safequarding
the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud
and other sregulantes

The Directors are responsible for the
mamntenance and integnty of the
corporate and financialinformatien
mncluded on the Company's website
Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and
dissemination of inancial statements
may differ from legislation in other
junsdictions

We canfirm that 1o the best of our
knowledge

- Thefinancial statements, prepared
in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU, give a true and
fair view of the assets liabdines
financial position and profit or loss
of the Company and the
undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as awhole

! = The strategic report includes a farr
review of the development and
performance of the business and
the pasition of the Company and
the undertakings included in the
consalidation taken as a whole
together with a description of the
| principal risks and uncertaintres
that they face

- The annual report and financial
statemenis taken as awhole are
fair balanced and understandable
and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to
assass the Company s position
and performance business medel
and sirategy

By order of the Board

Kerth Morgan

Chvef Executive Officer
20th July 2016

D

Chnistopher Fox
Chief Finanoial Officer

20th July 2016
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of British Business Bank plc

Independent auditor’s
report to the shareholders
of British Business Bank plc

Opymion on financial
statements

Iy my opimion the financial statements

- gweatmueand far view of the
state of Group's and the parent
company’s affairs as at 31 March
2016 and of the group s loss for the
year then ended,

- have been properly prepared
accordance with international
financial Reporung Standards as
adopted by the European Union,
and

- have been prepared in accordance
with the Compames Act 2006

q

Basis of opinions

I have audited the financial
statements of Bnitish Business Bank
plc for the year ended 31 March 2016
which compnse

- theConsoldated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income the
Consohdated Statement of
Financial Pasition the
Consohdated Statement of
Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement,

- the notes to the consolidated
financial statements,

- the Company Statement of
Financial Position, the Company
Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Company Cash Flow
Staterment, and

- the notes to the company financial
statements

The financsal reporting framework
that as been apphed in therr
preparations apphcable law and
international Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European
Union and as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies
Art 2006 |have also audited the
information in the Directors’
Remuneraticn Report that 1s descnbed
as having been audited

Overview of my audit
approach

Risks significant to my audit

fn arrming at my opinion on the
financia! statements, | assessed the
nisks of matenal misstatementin the
financial statements Those risks that
had the greatest effect on the audit
strategy the allocation of resources in
the audit, and the direction of the
efforts of the engagement team are
outhned in the table below

| have als set out how my audit
addressed these specific areas in order
to support the opinion on the finangial
statements as a whole and any
comments | make on the results of

my procedures should be read in

this context

The areas of focus were discussed
with the Audit Commitiee their report
on matters that they considered to be
sigrificant to the financial statements
15 selouton page 42
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Risk

My response

Management overnde of controls

Under International Standards on Auditing

there Is a presumed nisk of management

overnde of controls in all organisations We

are required to assess the nsk of matenal
misstatement ansing from management
override, in particular in relation to
significant or unusua! transactions, bias
1n accounting estimates and journals

Accounts preparation

This was the groups second full set of
accounts and there has been a significant
level of change within the finance team
dunng the year ldentified a nsk that the
level of change could result in corporate
memory being lost regarding the working
of the accounts preparation model, the
accounts production process and the
accounting treatment of investments and
the related provision  This gave nise toa
consequential nsk that the accounts may
nat be properly prepared and significant
1tems may not be accounted for correctly
leading to matenal misstatement within
the accounts

My audit focussed on testing those balances and transactions which would be
mostly likely to be affected if controls were to be overndden including joumals
accounting estimates and significant or unusual transactions The most
significant estimates in the accounts relate te the valuation of nvestments,
and inrespect of these thave performed the followsng procedures

- | have undertaken a detailled review of a sample of new investments and
considerad whether management's jJudgements on appropriate
accounting treatments are consistent with the relevant accounting
standards and the underlying substance and form of legal agreements,

- where management relies on valuations provided by fund managers to
estimate the value of 1ts investments, | have performed detailed
procedures 10 enable me to gain assurance from the work of the fund
managers | considered the overall competence capabikty and objectivity
of the fund managers aswell as the scope of their work and its
relevance to the atcounts and my opinion

where management uses models to estimate the value of 115
wvestments | considered the design of the valuation models the vakduty
of the data inputs to those models and the appropnateness of the key
assumptions on which the models were based | sought confirmation
that management had reassessed the assumptions made in the pnor
year which underpin the valuation models to confirm that they remain
appropnate at year end and

- I have assessed the accuracy and completeness of the review for
potential impairments that management has performed in relation to its
Investments

The results of my audit procedures enabled me to conglude that there s no
matenal misstazemeant of the accounts ansing from management overnde
of controls

We reviewed the dry run BBB performed using the accounts model during
the year to confirm that the finance team were confident using the model

We maintained regular haison with the Audit Committee Chief Finance
Officer and finance team throughout the year with a focus on whether
appropriate staffing and review processes were in place o enable the
producton of arobust set of draft 2015 16 financial statements | have
made recommendations to management where | have identified areas
where processes could be strengthened

Where my audit identified the need for adjustments these have been made
by management, other than unadjusted non-tawvial differences of E290k
which | do nat consider to be matenial The results of my audtt procedures
enabled me to conclude that there 1s no matenal misstatement in the
financial statements
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Application of matenahty

| applied the concept of matenakty
both planning and performing my
audit and in evaluating the effect of
misstatements on my audit and on the
financial statements This approach
recognises that financal statements
are rarely absolutely correct, and that
an audit s designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute,
assurance that the fimancial
statements are free from matenal
misstatement or irregularity A matter
1s matenal if its omission or
misstatement would 1n the judgement
of the auditor reasonably influence
the decisions of users of the financial
statements

Based on my professional judgement,

I determined matenalty for the group’s
Fnancial statements at £18 9m for the
Statement of Finanaal Position which
15 approximately 2% of total group
assets BBB develops and manages
finance programmes designed to
enhance the working of finance
markets which it defivers through
investments in partner erganisations
Itherefore chose assets as the
benchmark because | consider 1t to be
the pnnaipal consideration for usersin
assessing the financial performance
of the Greup

I have determined thas for
transactions wathin the Consclhidated
Income Statement misstatements
of a lesser amount than gverall
matenalty could influence the
daoisions of users of the accounts
given the disproportionate size of
the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Positien and the
Consolidated Income Statement

| have therefore determined that
the level tobe apphed to these
transactions is £1 02m on the basis
that this represents approximately
2% of current year income

As well as quantitative matenality
there are certain matters that, by
their very nature would if not
cerrected influence the decisions

of users for example any errors
reported in Directors’ Remuneratton
Assessment of such matters would
need to have regard to the nature of
the misstatement and the applicable
legal and reporting framework, as we
as the size of the misstatement

lagreed with the Audit Committee
that lwould repors to it all uncorrected
musstatements identified through my
audit i excess of £378k for the
Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position and E20k for the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Net
income as well as differences below
this threshold that inmy view
warranted reporting on qualitative
grounds.

Total unadjusted audit differences
reported to the Audit Committee
would have decreased net assets
by £290k

Scope of my audit

An audit involves obtairing evidence
about the amounts and disckasures in
the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from
matenal misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error This includes
an assessment of

- whether the accounting policies
. @reappropnate to the group and
parent company’s circumstances
and have been consistently applied
and adequately disclosed

- the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the
dhirectors, and

- the overall presentation of the
financial statements

In addition | read all the information
and non-financial informaucn in the
Annual Report to identtfy matenial
Inconsistencies with the audited
financial statements and to dentify
any informaton that1s apparently
matenally incorrect based on or
matenally nconsistent with the
knowledge acquired by me in the
course of performing the audit

If 1 become aware of any apparent
materia! misstatements or
incansistencies [ consider the
implications for my report
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Group audit approach

My group audit scope focussed on
those balances assessed as being of
the greatest significance to the group
finanwial statements and their users

I considered how the subsidianes
should be aggregated to form the
tempenents of my group audit
approach in line wath International
Standards of Auditing | gave partricular
consideratien to the size and nisk
characterstics of the conselidated
entines, how they are managed and
the audit exemptions taken by the
Brtish Business Bank plc Briush
Business Bank Investments Ltd, which
15 the largest subsidiary and holds
E709m of the group's £912m net
assets at 31 March 2016 1s subject to
separaie governance processes and
has its own ledger | have therefore
treated this as a single component
The parent company and remaining
subsitiaries are subject to commen
gavernance processes and share a
ledger and so | have aggregated these
to form a single component for the
purposes of my audit Both
companents are significant to the
group n terms of value and nsk |have
taken assurance from work performed
by the auditors of the British Business
Bank Investments Ltd and have
performed addibonal procedures (o
obtan assurance over the financial
information of the parent and other
subsidianes

I Other matters on which
ireport under the
Companies Act

Directars’ remuneration

tnmy opirion the part of the part

of the Remuneration Report to be
audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act

| 3se report to you if, In my apinion
certain disclosures of directors’ 1
remuneration required have not been
made | have nothing to report ansing
from this duty

The strategtc and directors' reports
In my opinion, based on the work
undertaken i the course of the audit,
theinformatien given in the strategic
and directors’ reports for the finanaial
year are consistent with the financial
statements and have been prepared in
accordance with applicable law

Based on my knowledge and
understanding of the Group

and Parent company and thew
environments obtained dunng the
course of the audit, 1 have identified
no matenal misstatements in

these reports

The corperate governance
statement .

| Inmy opinien, based on the work
underiaken i the course of the audht,
the informatien given in the corporate
governance statement in respectof |
internal contral and nsk maragement
systems inrelation to finanaial

reporting processes and about share
capital structures, I1s consistent with

the accounts and has been prepared

in accordance with applicable law

Based on my knowledge and
understanding of the Group and
Parent and their environment
obtained during the course of the
| audit, | have identified no matenal
‘ misstatements in tis nformation

Matters on which | report by
exception

Adequacy of accounting records
infermation and explanations
recerved

| repert to you i, in my opimon

- adequate accounting records have
not been kept, or rejurns adequate
for my audit have not been
recerved from branches not visited
by my staff,

- the financial statements and the
part of the Remuneration report to
be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and
returns, or

- Ihavenot received all of the
information and explanations
1 require for my audit

I have nothing te report ansing from
this duty
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Thedirectors’ assessment of
principal nsks and future prospects
Under nternatronal Standards on
Auditing (UK & Ireland), | am required
toreport teyou If | have anything
matenal 10 add or to draw attention
to inrefation to the directors
disclosures in the annual report and
financial statements

Consistency of informationin the
Annual Report

under Internatronal Standards on
Auditing (UK & treland) 1am required
to report to you (f, In my opinion,
informationin the annual report 1s

- matenally nconsistent with the
infermaton in the audited financial
statements or

- confirming that they have
carried out a robust assessment
of prinupal nsks faung the Group
including those that would
threaten its business mode! future
performance solvency or quidity

- apparently materially ncorrect
based on ormatenally inconsistent
with the knowledge of the Group
and Parant company that | acquired
in the course of performmng my
audit, or

= descnbing those nsks and
explaining how they are being
managed or mugated

- otherwise misleading
In particular | am requaired to consider

- whether| have identified any = onwhether they consicered it
inconsistencies between the appropriate to adopt the going
knowledge that | acquired dunng concern basis and therr
the audit and the directors dentification of eay matenal
statement that they consider uncertainties to the entity s abiliy
the annual report s fair balanced to continue over a period of at

and understandable, and least twefve months from the
date of approval of the financial
- whether the annual report statements, and

appropnately discloses those
matters that | communicated to - explaining how they have assessed
the Audit and Commuttee which the prospects of the entity over
tconsider should have been what penod they have done so
disclosed and why they consider that period
ta be appropriate, and their
statement as to whether they have
this duty areasonable expectation that the
Group will be able tocontinue in
operation and meetits habiities as
they fall due over the penod of
their assessment, including any
related disclosures drawing
attantion to any necessary
guahfications or assumptiens

1 have nothing to report ansing from

| have nething matenal to add or te
draw attention to on these matters

Respective responsibilities
of the directors and the
auditor

As explained more fully n the
Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of
the Group financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view My responsibiity
1S {0 audht and express an opinion on
the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and with
International Standards on Auditing
(UK & Ireland) Those standards
require me and my staff to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board s
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Hilary Lower
Senior Statutory Auditer

20th july 2016

For and on behalf of the Comptioller
and Auditor General (Statutory
Auditor)

National Audit Office
157-197 Buckingham Palace Road
London SW1w 959
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Consolidated statement of
coemprehensive netincome
for the year ended 31 March 2016

2016 2015

Note EOOD £000
INCOME
interestincome _ . 2 39459 12033
Management fee 42 11,377 5331
Other Income 43 241 315
Gross operating inceme 51077 17678
Net gains (Josses) o0 Investment assets ] 457 (1.670)
Netoperatingincome 51,534 16,009
EXPENDITURE
Staffcosts .7 (219 (5993)
Other operating expenditure o - (7243  (33%6)
Depreciations and amortisation 7 (304) (132)
Operating expenditure (19,739) (9.521)
Net operating profit/(loss) 31,795 6 488
ECF fair value adjustments 9
Imgarment of ECFinvestment assets 133 (32643) {2 262)
Fair value gain ondervatives 135 6638 3,601
Unwindof ECF farrvalue smpairment 133 13083 4270
EFC fair value provision 17 (36 581y (26 055)
Net ECF Fair value adjustments {49,513) (20,446}
Proceeds of warranty claim 5 2500 -
Profit/(loss) before tax (14,618) {13,958}
Jax expense g1 (8518) (3160)
Profit/(loss) for the period (23.336) (17,118)
Other comprehensive income for the period net of tax )
Net gan on investments recogrised in reserves L _1eers __57%
Deferred tax relaung to ECF investments 81 1,804 (4 765)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the period (9,259) (16,145)

All operations are continuing

The nez gan on iInvestments recogmised in reserves included within other comprehensive income will be reclassified to
profit and loss in subsequent pencds If the gain on investments 1s reahsed

Comparative figures the Bank commenced trading on 1 November 2014 As a result, figures for the year ending 31 March

2015 reflect five months of operating activity
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Consohdated statement

of financial position
as at 31 March 2016
2016 2015

Note £000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Loans and recervables 131 72,887 18 461
Held to matunty investments o 132 31090 -
Avarlable-for-sale finanoial 35sets 133 BT 735 622930
Assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 134 15,029 5313
Dernvative financal nstruments 135 18911 12273
Property plant and equipment . . 3® 5B
Intangible assets pil 119 200
Investment in associates 12 - 14
‘Total non-current assets B68,132 659,759
Current assets
Trade and other recavables o a0 B 5082
Cashandcash equadlents 15 58 382 71048
Total current assets 76 483 76,110
Total assets 944,615 735.869
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Tradeandotherpayaples & (15787) __ {6565
Corporation tax B2 (5710) (4 402)
Provisions 17 (26,373) (19 866}
Total current habihties {47 870) {30 B33}
Total assets less current labilities 996,745 705,036
Non-currentliabilites . __
Trade and other payables 16 (8g) {426)
Deferred tax 83 (2796) (4.774)
Provisicns 17 {B1839) {51 755)
Total llabilitles (132,593} {87,788}
Net assets/(habilities} 812,022 648 081
Equity — o
Issued share capital 20 B37 526 664 325
Finangial instruments reserve 15,046 569
Retained earnings {40 550) (17 214)
Total equity 812,022 648 081

The financial statements of the group (parent company number G8616013) were approved by the Board of Directers and

authorised forissue on 20th July 2016 They were signed on 1s beha!f by

NN% A Keith Morgan
"™ Chief Executive Othcer
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Consolidated statement

of changes in equity
as at 31 March 2016
Financial _
instrument
Issued capital reserve Retalned earnings Total

Notes £000 £000 £000 EOCO
Opeming balance
asatlApril 2014 50 - {96} {46}
Netincome after tax - B (17118) (17118}
Cther comprehensive
income net of tax - 969 - 969
Total comprehensive
Ihcome - 969 (17.118) {16,149}
Issue of ordinary shares 20 BG4 276 - - 664 276
Balance at
31 March 2015 664 326 969 (17,714) 648 081
Opening balance as at
1 Apnl 2015 664,326 969 {17.214) 548,081
Net ncome after tax - - (23336) (23 335)
Gzher comprehensive
Income, net of tax 14 077 14,677
Total comprahensive
neeme _ - 14077 (23.33) (9 259)
Issue of ordinary share: 20 173200 - - 173 200 ,
Balance at 31 March
2016 837 526 15,046 (40,550} 812,022
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Consolidated cash flow statement

As at 31 March 2016
2016 2015

Note £000 £000
Loss befere tax (14.818) (13,958)
Cash flows from operating activities
Adjustments for
Unrealised net (gains) losses an investment assets 3 (457) 1670
Depreciation ang amortisaton o 13 _ 304 132
Movement in accrued mterest {39459) (12033)
Imparment of ECF investment assets 133 32643 2262
Unrealised fair value gain on derivatives ~ 135 {6,638} 13e01)
Unwind of ECF fair value mpairment 133 {13083) (4 270}
ECF provision expense 17 36,591 26,055
Payment of corporation tax 8 (7.384) -
Movernent in trade and other receivables R 14 (13039) (5012)
Movement i trade and other payables 16 8094 6895
Loss on dispesal of intangible assets 11 14 0
Net cash received used for operating activities (16,442) (1,860)
Cash flows from investing activities
Net financial assets acquired on 31 Cctober 20141 - {4755¢29)
Purchase of [oan and receivable assets o 131 (25 329) (15 052)
Loan and recevable assets transferred 131 {36.437) -
Repayment of loan and recewable assets 131 10263 171
Purchase of held to matunty assets _ _ 32 (30000 . -
Purchase of available-for-sale assets 133 (186 409) (154 B28)
Repayment of available-for-sale assets 133 107,882 56,062
Purchase of assets designated at fair value through profitorloss 134 (9,791) (3085
Repayment of assets designated at fawr value through profit or loss 134 409 563
Cash receved from denvative financial nstruments 135 - 1210
Proceeds of dispossl of vestment in associaty I - 8 -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment I _ (2 o [880)
Purchase of intangible assets 11 €] (240)
Net cash used ininvesting activities {169,424) (591,368)
Cash flows frem financing activities
Issue of new shares 20 173200 664 276
Net cash frem finanting activities 173,200 664,276
Net (decrease)/increase In cash and cash equivalents (12.666) 71,048
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 71,048 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 58 382 71,048

*The purchase of financial assets on 31 0ctober 2014 was funded by the 1ssue of new shares and these twe transactions

were settled on anet basis
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

1 Generalinformation

The Brruish Business Bank plc {the
Company or'Group }isincorperated
in the United Kingdom under the
Compames Act The address of the
reqistered office s given on page 109
The nature of the British Business
Bank Group s operations and its
principal actmties are setout inthe
strategic report on pages 6 to 34

2. Significant
accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financia! statements have been
prepared e accordance with
Internatrinal Finanaial Reporiing
Standards (IFR5s} as adopted by the
Eurcpean Umon {IFRSs as adopted by
the EU} IFRIC Interpretations and
those parts of the Companies Act
200% applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS The financial
statemnents are prepared inaccordance
with IFRS and Interpretations in force
at the reporting date

The financial statements have been
prepared on the histoncal cost basis
except for the revaluation of certain
finrancial nstruments and non-
financial assets that are measured at
revalued amounts or far values at the
end of each reparting pericd as
explained n the accounting policies
below Histoncal costis generally
based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for
goods and servies The principal
accounting policies adopted are set
out below

These financial statements are
presented in pounds sterling because
that s the currency of the primary
economic envirenment inwhich the
Group operates

Basts of consolidatien

The consolidated financial statements.
incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries)
made up to 31 March 2016 Contrelis
achieved when the Company

- has the power over the investee,

— isexposed or hasnghts
tovarable return from its
involvement with the nvestee and

— hasthe ability 1o use its power
toaffectsits returns

The Company reassesses whether or
not it controls an investee if facts and
crcumstances indicate that there are
changes to cne or more of the three
elements of control listed above

Consclidaton of a subsidiary begins
when the Company obtains cantrol
over the subswdiary and ceasas when
the Company loses control of the
subsidiary Specifically the results of
subsdianes acquired or disposed of
duning the year are ncluded i the
consolidated mcome statement from
the date the Company gains contro!
until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary

Profit or loss and each companent
of other comprehensive income are
attributed in full to the owners of
the Company In the absence of
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive Income of the
subsidiaries 15 also attnbuted in full
to the ewners of the Company in the
absence of non controlling mnterests

where necessary adjustments are
made to the financial siatements of
subsidianes to bring the accounting
policies used inte line with the Group's
accounting poliies

Altintragroup assets and kabilities
equity INncome, expenses and cash
flows relating to transitions between
the members of the Group are
eliminated on consolidation

Going concern

The Directors have at the time of
approving the financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the
Company and the Group have
adequate rescurces to Ccontinue n
operational existence for the
foreseeable future tnarrving at that
view they have assumed thatin the
aventof a downturn the sharehclder
will continue to support the Groug In
delivering its policy objectivestn
relation to smaller businesses Thus
they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in
preparing the finanaal statements

Adoption of new and
revised Standards

The following new and revised
Standards and Interpretations have
been adopted in the current year
Their adoption has not had any
significant impact on the amounts
reportedin these financial statements
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- IAS 19 (famendments) Defined
Benefit Pians. Employee
Contnbutions The amendments
apply to centnbutions frem
employees or thind parties to
defined benefit plans
The objective of the amendments
15 to simplify the accounting for
contnbutions that are independent
of the number of years of
employee service, for example,
employee contnbutions that are
calculated according to a fed
percentage of salary

e Briush Business Bank
rontrbutes to a State-managed
retirement benefit scheme whichis
dealtwith as apayment to a
defined contnbution scheme
where the Group s obligations
under the scheme are equivalent
to those arising in a defined
contribution retirement benefit
scheme (tisnot the pnincipal
employer in any defined benefit
scheme and therefpre the above
changes will not have any impact

— Annuol improvermentis (0 IFRSS
2010 - 2012 Cycle and 2011 2013
Cycle Aspartof its annual
improvements cycles the
International Accounting Standards
Board amended varicus standards
primanly with a view o remaving
inconsistencies and danfying
wording The adoption of these
amendments did not have any
matenalimpacton the Group

At the date of authonsation of these
financial statements the follwing
Standards and Interpretatrons which
have not been applied in these
financial statements, were w 155ue
but not yet effective {ang inscme
cases had not yet been adopted by
the EU)

- IFRS 3 Finonaal Instruments,

- IFRSIC IFRS 12 and IAS 28
{omendments} Investment Entitres
Applying the Consolidation
Exception,

~ IFRS 10 ond 1AS 28 (amendments})
Sale or Contributior of Assets
between aninvestor aad its
Associate or font Venture;

- IFRS 11 {omendments) Accounting
for Acquisitions of Interests i joint
Operations

- IFRS 14 Regulotory Deferral Accounts:

- IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers,

- IFRS 16 Leases;

- Annual improvements to IFRSs
2012 - 2014 Cycle;

- IAS1 (omendments} Presentation
of Financal Stotements

- IAS 7 [omendments} Statemant of
Cash Flows;

- A5 12 (omendments) Recognition
of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unregitsed Losses;

- IAS 16 and 1AS 38 {omendments)
Canfication of Accaptable Mothods
of Depreciation and Amortisotion,

- IAS 16 and IAS 41 (amendments}
Beorer Plonts;

~ IAS 27 (amendments} Equity
Mathod in Separate Finonaial
Statements

The Directors do not expect that the
adoption of the Standards and
interpretantions listed above willhave a
material impact on the finanaal
statements of the Group in future
pertods except that IFRS 9willimpact
both the measurement and
disclosures of financiat instruments
Beyond the information above, itisnat |
practicable to provide a reascnable
aestimate of the effect of IFRS S until a
detailed review has been completed

Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value
of the consideration recerved or
recelvable and represents amounts
recervable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of
business net of discounts, Value
Added Tax {VAT) and other sales-
related taxes Revenue 1s reduced for
estimated rebates and other similar
allowances

Dividend and interest
income

Dvidend income from investments 15
recogrised when the shareholders
nghts to receive payment have been
established (provided that itis
probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount
of reverue can be measured rehizbly)

Interest ncome 1s recogrised when it
1z probable that the economic benefits
will flowy to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably
Interest ncome is accrued on a time
basis by reference te the principal
outstanding and at the effective
interest rate apphcable which s the
rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the
expected e of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrymg amount on
initial recognition

Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum
of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax

The tax currently payableisbased on
taxable profit for the year Taxable
profit differs from net profit as
reported i the income statement
because it excludes items of iIncome or
expense that are taxable or deductible
inother years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or
deductible The Group s hability for
current tax 1s calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date
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Deferred tax s the tax expected to be
payable or recoverable on differences
between the carrying ameounts of
assets and iabilites in the finanaal
statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of
taxable profit, and s sccounted for
using the balance sheet hability
method Deferred tax labiiies are
generally recogrised for all taxable
temperary diferences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the
extent that 1115 probable that taxable
profits will be avalable sgainst which
deductible temporary differences can
be utihsed

Current and deferred tax are recogrused
in profit or loss except when they
relate to Items that are recegnised in
other comprehensive Income or directly
inequity inwhich case the current
and deferred tax are also recogmised

in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively Where
current tax or deferred tax anses

from the iitiziaccounting for a
business combination the tax effect

1s included in the accountng for the
business combination

VAT 1s accounted for in the accounts
in that amounts are shown net of VAT
except

- Irecoverable VAT s charged to the
Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income, and
included under the relevant
expenditure heading

- krecoverable VAT on the purchase
of an asset s ncluded in additions

The net amount due to or from,

HM Revenue and Customs in respect
of VAT 1s included within payables
and recevables on the consolidated
statement of financial position

Property, plantand
equipment

Property plant and equipment are
carned at fair value or deprecated
histerical cost which 1s used as a proxy
for fair value

Furniture and equipment and
leasehold improvement are stated at
o5t less accumulated depreciation
and any recogrised impairment loss

The Group capitalises property plant
and equipment purchased for anet
value of E3 000 or more and which
have a useful economic life 1 excess
of one year

Cepreciation is recognised 50 as to
write off the cost or valuation of
assets (other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less
tharr residual values aver their useful
Iives, using the straight-hne method,
on the following bases

Fixtures and equipment
2-5years

Leasehold improvement
Shorter of estimated remaining useful
Iife or putstanding lease term

IT equipment
3-Syears

The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciaticn methoed are
reviewed at the end of each reporting
penod with the effact of any changes
inestimate accounted forona
prospective basis

Anitem of property plantand
equipment Is derecogrised upen
disposal or when na future economic
benefits are expected to anise from
the centinued use of the asset The
ganor loss arising on the disposal or
scrappage of an asset 1s determined as
the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and 1s recogmsed in income

Intangible assets acquired
separately

Intangible assets including IT
programs and software licences, with
finite useful lives that are acquired
separately arecarned at cost less
accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses
Amortisation is recogrised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives on the following bases

iT pregrams
3-10Dyears

Software licences
Peniod of hcence

The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting penod with
the effect of any changes in estimate
being acteunted for on a prospective
basis Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives that are acquired
separately are carned at cost less
accumulated )impairment losses

Anintangible asset s derecogrised on
disposal or when ne future economic
benefits are expecied from use or
disposal Gains or losses ansing from
de-recogrition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset are
recognised (1 profit or loss when the
asset s derecegnrsed

Impairment of property,
plant and equipment and
intangible assets

At each balance sheet date the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its
assets to determine whether there s
any indicabion that those assets have
suffered anmpairment loss If any
such indication exists the recoverable
amount of the asset s estimated to
determine the extent of the
impawment loss {If any) Where the
asset does not generate cash flows
that are independent from other
assets, the Group estimates the
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recovarable amount of the cash-
generating urut to which the asset
belongs

Recoverable amount 1s the higher of
faw value less costs to sell and value
nuse

If the recoverable amount of an asset
15 estimated to be less thanits
carrying ameunt, the carrying amount
of the asset s reduced to its
recoverable amount, Animpairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit
orloss unless the relevant asset)s
carned at a revalued amount, inwhich
case the impairment loss Is treated as
a revaluation decrease

Where animpairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset /s ncreased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the
rarrying amount that would have been
determmed had no impairment loss
been recognised for the assetin prier
years Areversal of an imparment loss
1s recogrised immediately in profit or
loss unless the relevant asset 15
carnied at a revalued amount, inwhich
case the reversal of the impairment
lpss 15 treated as a revaluation
Increase

Financial instruments

Finaneia! assets and financial iabilities
are recogrised in the Group's balance
sheet when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of
the instrumeant

Financial assets and financial habehties
are Iniually measured at farr value
Transaction costs that are directly
attnbutable to the acquisiion or issue
of financial assets and financial
habilities (other than financial assets
and financial habilines at fair value
through proft or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the
finanoial assets or finanvial habilibes
where matenal onimibal recognition
Transaction costs directly atinbutable
10 the acquisiion of financial assets or

financial labities at farr value through
profit or loss are recogmised
immediately in profit or loss

The fair value of financial nstruments
1s determined by reference to quoted
market prices where an active market
exsts for the trade of these
instruments The fair value of financial
instruments which are not traded inan
active market s determined using
generally accepted valuatien
techniques including estimated
discounted cash flows

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified mnto the
follewing specified categonies
financial assets ‘at fair value through
profitorloss’ (FVTPL} ‘held-to
maturity investments, avalable-for-
sale (AFS) hinancial assets and loans
and recevables’ The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and 1s determined
at the time of snibial recognition

Effective interest method

The effective nterest method 1s a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of adebt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the
relevant period The effective interest
rate I1s the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts
(including al} fees paid or recewved that
form an integral part of the effective
interest rate transaction costs and
ather prermiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the debt
instrument, or where appropriate a
shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on gl recognition

Income 1s recogrised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments
other than those financial assets
classihed as at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value
through profitor loss (FYTPL)
Financia! assets are classified as at
FVTPL when the financial assetis a
derivative financial instrument held
for rading or 1t 1s designated as at
FVTPL The VCCatalyst investments

have been designated as at FVTPL
There are no held for trading financial
assels

Financial assets at FYTPL are stated at
fair value wth any gains or bosses
ansing on re-measurement recognised
1n profit orloss The net gain or loss
recogmised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset

Held to-maturity investments

These are non-dernvative hnancial
assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity that the
Group has the positve intent and
ability to hold to matunty Held-to-
BN»CDS. nvestmeants are measured at
amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment,
with revenue recogrused enan
effective yeld basis

Available for sale (AFS)
financial assets

AFS financial assets are non
denvatives that are either designated
as AFS or are not classified as (a) loans
and recevables (b} held-te matunity
investments of [¢) inancial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

The Group has investments in Limited
Partnerships and venture capital
investments which are classified as
being AFS fair value is determined in
the manner descrbed in note 22
Gains and lesses ansing from changes
in fair value are recogrused in other
comarebensive income and
accumulated in the financial
nstrument reserve with the exception
of impa#ment losses interest
calculated using the effective interest
mesihod and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetary assets which
are recognised directly in profit or loss
where the investment 1s disposed of
oris determined to be impaired the
cumulative gam or loss previously
recogrised in the financial instrument
reserve 15 reclassified w profit or loss
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Dwvidends on AFS equity instruments
are recogrused in profit of loss when
the Group s nght to receive the
dividends 1s established

The fair value of AFS monetary assets
dencminated in a foreign cirrency 15
determned in that forergn currency
and translated at the spot rate at the
balance sheet date The foreign
exchange gains and losses that are
recogrised (n profit or loss are
determined based on the amortised
cost of the monetary asset

Other foreign exchange gains and
losses are recogrised inother
comprehensive income

Loans and receivables

Loans and recevables are non-
dervative finanaial assets with fixed
or determinable payments oniginated
oracquired that are not quoted inan
active market

Loans and receivables comprise cash
and cash equivalents receivables and
loans Afterimual recognition they are
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any
impairment Gains and losses are
recogrised in the profit or 1oss through
the amorusation process Interest
ncome 15 recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for
short-term recervables when the
recogmition of ainterest would be
immatenal

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at
FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of
inpairment at each balance sheet
date Financial assets are impaired
where there s objective evidence that,
as a result of one or mere events that
occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the investment
have been affected

For all sther assets objecuve evidence
of mpairment could include

- significant inanaial difficulty of the
1ssuer or counterparty or

- default or delinguency in interest
or principal payments, or

— 1t becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-orgamisation

For certain categornes of financia! }
assets such as trade recevables,
assets that are assessed not to be
impatred individually are in addition
assessed for impairment on a
collective basis Objective evidence of
impatrment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's
past expenence of collecting
payments anncrease in the number
of delayed paymenis in the porticho
as well as observable changes in
national or local economuc canditions
that torrelate with default on
receivables

For financial assets carned at
amortised cost, the amount of the
imparment 1s the difference between
the asset s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future
cash flows discaunted at the financial
asset’s onginal effective interest rate

The carrying amecunt of the financial
asset 1s reduced by the imparment
loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade
recevables where the carrying
amount 1s reduced through the use of
an dllowance account When a trade
recavable 1s considered uncollecuble
1tis written off against the allowance
account Subsequent recovenes of
amounts previously written off are
credited against the allowance
account Changes in the carrnng
amount of the allowance account are
recogrised In proft or loss

Wwhen an AFS financial asset 1s
considered o be imparred tumulative
gains or losses previously recognised
n gther comprehensive income are
reclassfied te profit or loss m the
penod

If, In a subsequent period, the amount
of the impairment loss decreases angd
the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurning after
the impairment was recognised the
previously recognised imparrment loss
15 reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the imparrment
1s reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised

De-recogmition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a finantial
asset only when the contractual nghts
to the cash flows from the asset
expue or whenit transfers the
financial asset and substantally all the
nsks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity If the Group
neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the nisks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest (0 the
asset and an associated hability for
amounts it may have to pay If the
Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a
transferred Hnancial asset the Group
continues to recognise the financial
assetand also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds receved

Financial habiities and equity
Debt and equity instrumenits are
classified as esther financial habikties
or as equity In accordance with the
substance of the contractual
arrangement
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Financial guarantee

tontract habilities

Finanuial guarentee contract kabdiues
are measured imtally at their far
values and 1If not designated as at
FYTPL, are subsequently measured
at the higher of

- the amount of the cbligation under
the contract, as determined in
accordance with IAS 37 Provisions
Contingent Liabihties and
Contingent Assets and

- the amount imtally recogrised
less where appropnate
cumulatve amaerusation
recognised in accordance with
the revenue recognition policies
setout above

Financial liabthties

Financial habilities are Classified as
either financial hakiities‘at FYTPL or
‘other finangial abilitias’ The Croup
does not hold any financiat iabiities
at FYTPL

Other financial habilities, ndluding
borrowings are initally measured at
fair value, net of transaction costs

Other financial iabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective nterest
method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yield basis

De-recognitton of financial
habilities

The Group derecogruses financiat
labilities when and only whenits
obligations are discharged cancelled
or they expire

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
cashon hand and curcent balances
with banks and other financial
Institutions which are readily
tonvertible to known ameunts of
cash and which are subject to
nsignificant nsk of changes in value
and have an original matunty of
three months or less Bank overdraft
amounts are inciuded within trade
and other payables

Provisions

Prewvisions are recognised when the
Group has a present obhgation (legal
or constructive} as a resuli of a past
event, itis probable that the Group will
be required to settle that obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the oblgation

The amount recognised as a provision
ts the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the balance
sheet date taking into account the
nsks and uncertainties surreunding
Lhe obligation Where a provision 1s
measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present
obligation its carmying amount s the
present value of those cash flows
[when the effect of the time value of
money 1s matenial)

When some or all of the ecenomic
benefits required to settle a provision
are expected to be recovered froma
third party a receivable 15 recogrised
as an asset if it 15 virtually certain that
reimbursenment will be received and
the amount of the recevable can be
measured reliably

Contingent habilities

The Group has contingent labiities
ansing through financial guarantees
Acontingent hability 1s a possible
obhgaton depending on whether
some uncertain future event occurs,
or @ present otligation but paymentis
not probable or the amount cannot be
measured reliably Contingent
liabilittes are not recogrised but
should instead be disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of
eCONOMIC TESOUMes Is remote Where
the tme value of money (s materiai,
contingent labilities which are
required to be disclosed under tAS 37
are stated at discounted amounts

Foreign exchange

The individual finanaial statements of
each Group company are presented in
the currency of the pnmary ecenomrc
environment in whech it pperates

(1ts funcuional currency) which is
pounds sterling

The Group applies 1AS 21 The Effects
of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates and transacticns that are
denominated in a foreign currency are
translated into sterling at the rate of
exthange ruling on the date of each
transaction except where rates do not
fluctuate sigruficantly, n which case
an average rate for a penod s used
Monetary assets and hatahties
denominated in fareign currencies as.
at the balance sheet date are
retranslated at the rates of exchange
ruling at that date These translaion
differences are recogrised i the
Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income
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Retirement beneht costs

Payments to defined contnibution
retrement benefit schernes are
recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service
entithng them te the coniributions
Payments made to state managed
retiremnent benefit schemes are dealt
with as payments to defined
tontnbution schemes where the
Group's obhigations under the schemes
are mn_—._Em._m_.: tc those ansing ina
defined contnbubion retirement
benefit scheme

Employee benefits

In accordance with 1AS 19 Employee
benefits the Group recognises shart
term employee benefits when an
employee has rendered service in
exchange for those benefits

Leases

Leases are classified as finance [eases
whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the nsks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee
All other leases are tlassihed as
operating leases

Rentals payable under cperating
leases are charged toncome on a
straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease except where
another more systematic basis 1s more
represeniative of the time patternin
which ecenomic benefits from the
lease asset are consumed

3 Critical accounting
Judgements and key
sources of estimation
uncertainty

In the application of the Group s
accounting polictes which are

descrnbed in note 2, the Directors are
required to make judgements

estimates and assumgtrons about

the carrying amounts of assats and
labilities that are nat readily apparent
from other seurces Thisapphes

in particutar to the valuation of
Enterpnse Capital Funds The
estimates and associated assumptions |
ara based on histonical experience and
other facters that are considered to
te relevant Actual results may differ
irom these estimates

The estimates and underlying
mmmr_a.__u:c:m are reviewed on an
ongoing basis Revisions 19 accounting
estumates are recognised In the period
nwhich the esumate Is revised if the
rewvision affects only that penod orin
the period of the revision and future
peniods if the rewision affects both \
current and future penods !

The estimates and assumptions that
nsk causing a matenal adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and
lhabilities within the next financial
year are

- Fluctuations in the fair values of
available for sale assets, where
quoted prices and ether valuation
madels and techniques are used to
determine estimated future cash
flows and include a number of
other assumptions

- Directors' judgements with regard
to the mparment of assets

- Fluctuations in the farr value of
financial habilities/guarantees
measured using modeling
techmgues

In additicn, there1s uncertainty in
estimating the effective Interest rate
for various debt fund investments
The future returns from these
investments are not imited o
contracted cash flows of interest

and princrpal Future returns are
inherently uncertam and will depend
on arange of factors including the
manager's Success In onginating
lending opportunities, costs and faes,
how the manager exercises discretion
In trading off equity against debt
components in loan structures

credit performance, and prevailing
market conditions

The Group has estimated effective
interest rates for ol debt fund
investments on a consistent basis

As indication of sensitsity a 25 basis
ponts decrease in the effective
interest rate would decrease interest
income by around F2 million over a
one year penod and resultina
corresponding ncrease in revaluation
gains recognised through other
comprehensive Income

8
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4, Income

4 1 Interest income

An analysis of the Group s interest income 15 as follows

2016 2015
E0DO E00D
interest from loans and recevables 131 3066 211
Interest from held to E‘mE:Q nvestments S 132 1,090 -
Interest from available-for-sale assets © 133 35303 T us:
Total interest income 39459 12033
4 2 Management fee
An analysis of the Groups management fee income 15 as fallows
2016 2015
£000 £000
Management fee earned from
Angel Ca-Fund 340 142
Department for Business, Enemy and Industral Strategy 10 650 5026
Caputal for Enterpnise Fund LP 369 156
Other 18 7
Total management fee income 11377 5331
4 3 Otherincome
An analysis of the Group s other ncome 15 s foltows
2016 2015
£000 £000
Crant income before 1 November 2014 - 315
Arrangement fees 241 -
Total other income 241 315

5. Proceeds of warranty claim

On 1 Movember 2014 the Group acquired the share capital of British Business Finance Limited (BBFL) from British Business
Holdco Limited (BBHL) a wholly owned subsidiary of BEIS for censideration of £118 7m which was equal to the fair value

of the net assets of BBFL at the transaction date

In2015 16 are assessment of the BBFL deferred tax hability as at 1 November 2014 was made by the Group s tax advisers
whodetermined that the liability included within the fair value of the net assets of BBFL at that date was understated by
£29m Consequently the Group sought, and BEIS agreed to payment of that amount under the terms of a tax covenant
within the share purchase agreement The amount was subsequently settled by BEIS
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& Net gains (losses}on investment assets

2016 2015
Notes £000 £000
Impairment of iInvestments in associates 12 ®) (&)
Bad debtallowance onloansandrecevables 131 43 [124)
Impairment of available forsale assets B33 _ e -
Impairment of non-ECF available for sale financial assets 133 {1082) -
Foreign exchange (gains) losses on avallable for-sale
financial assets 133 1,524 {1174)
Fair value (gains) losses on assets held at fair value through
profit and loss 134 334 (370)
457 (LE70)
7 Operating expenditure
7 1 Staff numbers and staff costs
The average menthly number of employees including executive directors was
2016 2015
[23¢s0] EODD
Permanent staff 81 68
Seconded staff o o o 1 20
Temporary and agency staff 15 19
107 108
Thetr aggregate remuneration comprised
2016 2015
E0D0 EQOD
wages and salanes - parmanent staff including executive directors 6270 2448
Wages and salaries - secondedstatf 1068 = 657
Wages and salanes - temporary and agency staff 1796 1,060
Non executive Directors fees 302 315
Short and long termincentive plans and bonus scheme 908 703
Sooial secunty costs 915 378
Pension costs 983 432
Total staff costs 12152 5,993

The figures in the above table for 2015 represent the average monthly number of employees since the British Business
Bank commenced its operations on 1 November 2014 when looking at the full financial year 2014-15 the average monthly
number of employees (iIncluding executive directors) for the year split between the above categonies would be 29, B

and 8 respectively
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7 2 Other operating expenditure

2016 2015
£000 £00D
Professional fees - investment scheme design and transactions 2404 766
- operational fees 658 1187
Accommodation and office services e 1887 . E&4
Marketing 766 285
Auditors remuneration o . ___ s _ 10
Staff related costs including tramngand travel 518 Rt
Other purchase of goods and services 894 166
7243 3396
Auditor's remuneration relates to fees payable for the audit of the Group s annual accounts
The Group's auditors did not pravide any non-audit services
7 3 Depreciation and amertisation
2016 2015
Notes £000 E00O
Property plant and equipment depreciation 10 228 2
Intangible assets amortisation 11 76 40
304 132
8. Taxation
81 Taxexpense
2016 2015
£000 €000
Current tax expense
Current year 9218 3160
Adjustment in respect of prior years {526) -
Total current tax expense 8,692 3 160
Deferred tax (Income) expense
nc:msﬁﬁ-llll e L {1961) _ 4786
Adjustment in respect of prior years 17 -
Total deferred tax {income} expense {1,978) 4,766
Total tax expense 6,714 7.926
Recognised through profit and loss 8518 3,160
Recognised through other S:_u_.mmm:mzm income (1804) 4766
Tatal tax expense 6 714 7,926

Corporation tax is calculated at 20% (2015 21%6) of the estimated taxable profit for the year Deferred tax primarily relates
to the Group s Investments in Enterprise Capital Funds It)s calculated at 18% (2015 16%) of the estimated unrealised
gains within the funds This s a temporary timing difference and the tax will become payabla once the gains aie realised

in the underlying funds for example through investment exts
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The tables below reconcile the tax charge for the year

Profits(loss) before tax Curent tax
2016 2015 2016 2015
EODD EDOQ £000 £000
Net operating profit bafore tax (14 818} {13.558) (2.963) {2.931)
Nat gain on investments recognised
IN reserves o 12273 5735 2 455 1,204
Permanent disallowances relating to
ECF prowision expense 36,591 26,055 7318 5471
Unwind of ECF fawr value impainment (13,063} (4270} (2.617) (897)
Dther permanent disallowances {1844) 153 {368} 3
Timing differences relating te L
ECFdervatvefarvaluemovement ~ (6638) ~ _ {36800 {1,328} i (756)
ECF accrued return (8430) (3214) (1685) (675)
ECF mpairment 32643 2ebe 6529 475
ECF realised gains 9097 5500 1819 1155
Long-Term Incentive Plan accrued
expenditure 112 534 22 112
Other uming differences 1082 (45) 215 9
Losses brought forward (896) (99) (179; 21}
Profits chargeable to current tax 46,089 15 052 9,218 3,150
Unrealised {losses) gains Deferred tax
2016 2015 2016 #015
E0DD £000 £000 £000
Unrealised {losses) gains
on ECF investments (10,022} 23569 (1804} 4,714
Qther unrealised gains (872} 261 {157} 52
Unrealised gains subject to
defarred tax (10,894) 23,830 (1,951) 4,766
8 2 Corporation tax payable
2016 2015
£000 £000
Corporghion tax payable at 31 March 2015 o 4402 -
Arising on acquisition of investment assets - 1242
Tax expense for the penod 8,692 3180
Tax pad {7 384) -
Corporation tax payable at 31 March 2016 5,710 4 402
8 3 Deferred tax liability
2016 2015
EODDD £000
Deferred tax hability at 31 March 2015 4,774 B
Movement in the year {1978) 4766
Deferred tax hability at 31 March 2016 2,796 4774

8z
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9 Operating segments
The Greup's performance and results are managed internally as follows

~- Bntsh Business Bank entities these are spht nto British Business Finance Limited (BBFL) British Business Bank
Investments Ltd (BBEIL) and the averall Group results

- Programmes admunistered on behalf of BEIS In addition toits own operations the Brtish Business Bank also through
ts subsidiary British Business Finangial Services Ltd (BBFSL) administers assets en behalf of the Department for
Business Energy and Industnial Strategy These assets do not form part of the Bntish Business Bank plc Group financial
statements but are reperted to management The financial performance and position of these programmes 1s included
within the strategic report These hgures are not part of the audited financial statements

- Business umts The Groups business units span the different subsidiaries to pool expertise

Group profitand loss for the year ending 31 March 2016

Company Intra-group

BBFL BEBIL plcand BBFSL elmnations Total Group

£000 £000 £000 £000 EODD
[ncome
Investment programmes 31029 31029
venture Capital Soluions __B430 ) - . B4x
Qther income 578 336 23765 (13 D61) 11 618

9008 31,365 23765 (13 061) 51077
Netinvestment income
(costs)
Investment programmes 1545 H.mam
Venture Capital Solutians (ex ECF} (1 0E8) (1 088)
(1,0686) 1,545 457
Operaticnal Costs
Staff costs (786) (969} {10 437) {12192)
Professional services (202) {676} .m.ummv (3 641)
General operations (3054) (3692) {10 221) 13061 (3 906)
(4 D42) (5337} (23 421) 13 061 (19739)

Net operating profit 3,878 27,573 344 - 31,795
Imparment of ECF
investment assets (32843 sy
Farr value gain on dervatives 6538 6,638
ECF farr value provision expense (36591} (36 591)
Unwind of ECF fair value
mpawment 13083 . . _ 13083
Proceeds of warranty clam 2900 2900
Earntngs onan {FRS basis (45,635) 27 573 3 244 - (14,818}

British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts Z016 B3

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Group profit and loss for the year ending 31 March 2015

Company ntra group
BBFL BBBIL plcand BEFSL eliminations Total Group
£000 £Q00 EQDO EDQG EQQQ
Income
Investment Programmes o 8Bla_ = 8,819
Venture Capital Solutions 3214 - - - 3214
Other income 2b¢ 400 11244 {6 260) 5646
3476 9219 11 244 (B 260} 17,679
Net investment income
(costs}
lvestment Pregrammes oo (1668) o - (1 668)
Venture Capital Solutions (ex ECF) (2) - - - (2)
€) (1,668} - - (1 670)
Operational Costs R a
Staff costs (3179 {560) (5116} - (5993
Professianal services {59) (65} {1 829) - (1953)
General gperatons (1496) (1,862} (4 477) 6,260 (L575)
{1,872) (2,487} (11,422) 6,260 (9521)
Net operating profit 1,602 5,064 (178) - 6,488
impairment of ECF investment
assets (2.262) {2.262)
Fair value gainon dervatives 3601 L B L 3601
ECF fair value provision expense (26 055) - - - {26 055)
Unwindof ECFfarvalue T o o i
(mparrment 4270 - - R - 4270
Earnings on anlFRS basis (18 844) 5 064 (178) - (13,958)
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ECFs

The Bntish Business Bank accepts a lower return from ECF investments in order to encourage private sector investors to
invest Although the Bank expects to make a positive return from these investments. this return s less than that required
by the private sector Accounting standards reguire the Bank ta recogmise a lability when it makes a commitment to a

fund The Bank records this liability as a provisicn When a commitment s drawn the Bank impairs the resulting investment
and utihses the provision by a corresponding amount This results in significant upfront expenditure when new ECE
commitments are entered into This expenditure gradually reverses over the lifetime of the investment as the )impairment
1s reversed The seversal has been estumated using the commercial discount rate used towmpair the investment The
expenditure doesn't relate toan underlying loss on ECF investments and 15 therefore excluded from the Group s financial
target The table below summarses the amounts relating to the ECFs that have been recegnised in arriving at the Group
loss before tax in the conschidated statement of comprehensive net income

2016 2015
£000 EOUD

Interest income _ . 8430 3214
Fair value gains on dervatrves & 638 3601
Impairment (32.643) (2252)
Unveind of impairmant ) B - 13083 4270
Prowvision utilised i year (note 17) 12.284 5,641
7,792 14 464

Provision against future commitments {note 17) (48,875) {31 686)
Net loss on Enterpnse Capital Funds (41,083) (17 232)
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Group balance sheet as at 31 March 2016

BBFL BHBIL Company plc Total Group
£oan £000 £000 £000
Investment assets
Investment Programme . o B o
BFP Mid Cap - 49364 - 499,641
Investment Programme - 147,771 - 147771
BFP Smuil Cap - 39572 - 39,572
Venture Capital Solutions o
EnterpnseCopitatfund _ 155224 e T - - 155a
_VC Cotalyst - 15029 - 15,028
Qther venture capital investments 10 415 - 10,415
Tetal nvestment assets 165.639 702,013 - 867,652
ECF farr value provision {108 212) - - (108 212}
Net investment assets 57 427 702,013 - 759 440
Otherassets/(babilities} B . o e o
Casit 8,157 3389 46,836 58,382
Tangible and intangibte assets - - 480 480
Net other payables (2140} 3911 {8051) (6 280}
Total net assets 63,444 709 313 39,265 Bl2,022
Group balance sheet as at 31 March 2015
BBFL BBBIL Company plc Total Group
£000 €000 £000 £000
Investment assets 11 _ _ o B e
Investment Programme T
BFP Mid Cap - 426029 - 426,029
Investment Programme - 3B 465 - 36,465
BFP Small Cop - 28643 - 20643
Venture Capital Sotutions
Fnterpnse Coprtal Fuid o 4832 - o 148312
VC Cotalyst - 5313 - 5313
Other venture capital nvestments 12,229 - - 12225
Tetal nvestment assets 160,541 490,450 - 658 991
ECF fair value provision (71621) - - (71621)
Netinvestment assets 88.920 498,450 - 587,370
ather assets/(liabilities)
Cash 13837 16043 41168 71048
Tangible and intangible assets - - 768 . ___ 788
Net other payables (8431) (5.806) 3,132 (11 105)
Total net assets 94,326 508 687 45,068 648,081
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10 Property, plantand equipment
As at 31 March 2016

Leasehoid
improvement IT equipment Total
EODD £000 EQOD
Cost or valuation
At 31 March 2015 140 520 660
Addimons - 21 ¢l
At 31 March 2016 140 541 581
Accumulated depreniation and impairment
At 31 March 2015 (11) (81) (92)
Charge for the year (28) (200) {228)
At 31 March 2016 (39 {281) {320}
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2016 101 260 361
At 31 March 2015 129 439 568
As at 31 March 2015
Leasehold
t Teq Total
ECDD £000 £0DD
Cost orvaluation
At 31 March 2014 - - -
Additicns 140 520 660
At 31 March 2015 140 520 660
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 31 March 2014 _ o _ - - - o
Charge for the year (11} (92)
At 31 March 2015 (11) (92}
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2015 129 439 568
At 31 March 2014 - - -
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11 Intangible assets

As at 31 March 2016
Software
IT licences Total

£000 EQOD E0DO
Cost or valuation
At31March2g1s B o 213 .z 240
Additons - s 1 9
Disposals ] {14) - (14)
At 31 March 2016 207 28 235
Accumulated depreciation and impatirment
At 31 March 2015 {26) (14) (40)
Charge for the year o - {4) o E
Released on disposals - - -
At 31 March 2016 {98) (18) {11B)
Carrying amount +
At 31 March 2016 109 10 119
At 31 March 215 187 13 200
As at 31 March 2015

Software
T licentes Total

£000 EQOQ £000
Cost orvaluation
At 31 March 2014 - - -
Additiens - a3 27 240
At 31 March 2015 213 27 240
Atcumulated depreciation and impairment
AtF1March2014 e —_ . e L Il
Charge for the ygar {26) (14) (40)
At 31 March 2015 {25) (14} (40}
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2015 187 13 200
At 31 March 2014 - _ _

12 Associates

Capital for Enterpnse Lid disposed of 115 investment in its associate (SAS Athena) duning the year incurming a loss of £5,819
The carrying value of the investment as at 31 March 2015 was £14 000 and the sale proceeds were £6,181
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13 Investments

Business Finance
Partnership

British Businass Bank Investments
Limited (BBBIL) manages the Business
Finance Partnership programme

The Business Finance Partnership
[BFP} has two strands The first strand
15 the BFP Mid Cap which invests in
fund managers who lend to medium-
sized businesses with turnover of up
1o £500m All of the the BFP Mid Cap
nvestments are classified as available
for sale assets Seenote 133

for details

The second strand s the BFP Small
Cap which invests indebit funds and
non-bank lenders that provide an
alternative source of lending for small
businesses with turnover up to £75m
The majonty of the BFP Small Caps
investments are classified as available
for-sale assets Seenote 133

for details

Through aninvoice discount firm,
BBBL purthases invoices from
Investars, releasing money that would
otherwise be tied up for between
30ang 120 days The investment1s
tlassified as loans and recevables It
also provides funding through peer to
peer lending platforms making small
part-loans to borrowers alongside
other platformlenders This lending is
also classihied as loans and recevables
See note 131 for details

{nvestment Programme

BBBIL manages the investment
Programme |t makes commercial
investments that stimutate at least
the same amount of iInvestment from
the private sector encouraging new
lenders into the market and the
growth of smaller lenders Most of
BBBIL 5 investments through the
Investment Programme are cfassified
as avallable-for-sale assets

Howevar as with the BFP Small Cap
this programme has provided invoice
discount inance and participated in
peer to peer lending

In additran N 2015 16 through the
Investment Programme BEBIL
partiopated in a public issue of Tier2
capital by Shawbrook Bank plc which
1ssued fixed rate reset callable
subordinated loan notes with animibal
semi-annualcoupon of B¥:% The
155ue was isted on the London Stock
Exchange on 28th Octaber 2015 See
note 13 2 for details

VC Catalyst

The VC Catalyst Fund twvestiments are
funded by BBBIL. The VC Catalyst Fund
investsin commercially viable venture
capital funds that might otherwise fail
ta reach a satisfactory first close’ - the
point at which a fund has rersed
enough maney to begin making
investments v businesses It enables
private sector investment already
committed to those funds to be
uniecked and invested in growth
companies

The British Business Bank has chosen
to account for all of its new vV Catalyst
nvestments at fair value through
profit or loss as explaned in the
accounting polices in note &

See note 13 4 for details

Enterprise Capital Funds

British Business Finance Limited
(BBFL) runs Enterpnse Capital Funds
(ECFs) ECFs are commercially focused
funds that bnng together private and
public money to make equity
investments n high growth
businesses BBFL invests into funds
on terms that improve the outcome for
private sector investors when those
funds are successful ltdoes this by
taking an agreed pnontised return of
3-4 5% Inreturn BBFL 15 entitled to
less of the remaining upside gan in
excess of the agreed return if a fund
15 successful

BBFL intentonally makes a trade-off
between the priontised return and
upside gains Cverall the terms mean
that BBFL expects the ECFs to provide
a positive return to government, but
that this return will be lower than that
typically scught by a private sector
investor Thisis 1n ine with the group s
strategic chyectives

The investments which BBFL make

1n ECFs meet the atcounting defimtion
of aloan and are classified as avallable
for sale assets Any upside returns
which the funds generate are
separately accounted for as denwatives

Accounting standards require that
available for sale assets are held at fair
value which s defined as the amount
that a private sector investor would
pay for the investments This means
that every ECF investment is impaired
tereflect the fact that it will not
provide the level of return sought

by a private sector investor even if
1t15 providing a positive return The
impairment then reverses over the hfe
of the asset 10°top-up’ the priontised
Teturn and provide acommercial rate
of return in the accounts See noie

13 3 for details

In addition BBFL signs ECF
agreements committing to the
pricribised return and reduced upside
gain in advance of drawdowns At the
point that BBFL enters Intp a new
commitment it becomes probable that
ttwill incur accounting losses through
recegnition of a fair value iImpairmant
Consequently BBFL has to recogrise a
prowision for the hatnlity 1t1s taking on
at the point of commitment and ths
provision s utihsed to cover the
impairment when a drawdown |15
made See note 17 for details

where a fund performs well enough
to more than repay BBFLs priontised
return and capital the cemaining
returnis acceunted for as o dervative
These are detalled innote 135

Bntish Business Bank - Annual Report and Agcounts 2016

B89

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Other venture capital investments

BBFL also has three other smatter venture tapital schemes Brdges Aspwe and the Capital for Enterprise Fund These are

detailed innote 13 3

13 1 Loans and receivables

Asat31March 2016
Accrued Bad debt/
Opening  Transfers Additions Repayments Return  allowance Closing
£000 £000 EDDO EDDO EDDO £000 EQOD
Private companies
BFF Small Business 3397 6,289 1308 Q.;m@ov b54 i61 6205
Investment Programme 15064 28148 24021 (2,663) 2412 (304) 65678
Total 18461 36,437 25,329 (10,263) 3,066 (143) 72,887
As at 31 March 2015
Acquired an Atcrued Baddebt/
310ct2014 Transfers Additions Repayments Return allowance Closing
£000 £000 EQOQ EQDO E00D EQDQ £000
Private companies
BFP Small Business 3493 - - (171) 199 {124) 3397
Investment Programme - - 15082 - 12 ~ 15004
Total 3,493 - 15,052 {171} 211 (124) 18,461
The carrying value of the loans and receivable assets approximates to their fair value
13 2 Held to matunty investments
As at 31 March 2016
Accrued  Baddebt/
Opening Transfers Additions Repayments Return  allowance Clgsing
£Q00 £000 £00D £000 £000 £000 £000
Private companies
Investment Programme - - 30000 - 1090 - 31080
Total - - 30,000 - 1090 - 31,090

The IP banking loan represent an investment in fixed rate reset callable subordinated loan notes with an mitial semi-annual
coupon of 8%:% 1ssued by Shawbrook Bank plc The lpan s expected to be held tomatunty
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13 3 Available for sale assets
At 31 March 2016

Urrwind Foreign
offalr  exchange
Recryed walue gains!
Opening  Addfitions Repayments Interest Revaliation Impalmem  {losses) Wnpawment Chsing
£000 £oo0 £000 EDOOD EODD E000 £000 £000 £0O0
Limited partnership
investments o . oo -
BFP Mid Cap 426029 112838 (72733) 22781 10726 - - - 495641
8FP Small Business 25 ma@ 9,468 AA.mm.Q 1251 H.o.»m - 823 (170) .mm mim.m
Investment Programme 23401 25504 (6988) 2841 544 - 701 - 50003
Total 474,676 151,810 (64,019) 26,873 12,313 - 1,524 {170} 583,007
Venture capital
nvestments
Enterprise
Capital Funds. 136,039 34381 (22977) _B430 _ 13083 (32643) 13313
Bndges 1383 - (82) - - - 1311
Aspire 3568 43 - - (40) - (1082) 24S0
Capital for
Enterpnse Fund 7253 265 {904) - - - - 6614
Total 148,254 34,689 (23,963} B430 (40) 13,083 - (33,725) 146,728
Total avarlable
for sale assets 622 930 186,499 (107,982) 35,303 12,273 13,083 1,524 (33,895) 729,735
At 31 March 2015
Umwind Forelgn
offair  exchange
Acguiredon Acctued value gains/
310ct2014  Adddiens Repayments interest Revakiabon  impawment {losses)  kmpairment Closig
£000 £000 £000 £000 EG00 E0GO £000 £000 £00D
Limited partnership
investments Ll -
BFP Mid Cap 339,208 117146 (42752) 7384 5043 - - - 426,029
BFP Smali Business 19,160 5261 (215) 698 990 - (667) - 25246
Investment Programme B%32 15188 - 526 1338} - (507) - 23801
Total 366 900 137615 (42968) 8,608 5,685 - [1174) - 474,676
Venture capital
\ovestments =~ 000 _ . __  __ _ e e e
Enterpnse
Capital Funds 121870 17082 (B11S) 3214 - 4270 (2262) 136035
Bridges 1514 5 (126) - - - - - 1393
Aspire _ sy - - Il M- - oz 3%
Capnabfor
Enterprise Fund 11,960 46 (4853 - - - - - 7,253
Total 138,873 17,213 (13094) 3.214 40 4,270 - (2,262) 148,254
Total available
for sale assets 505,773 154,828 (56 062} 11 822 5735 4,270 (1174} (2,262) 622 930
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13 4 Assets designated at fair vatue through profiter loss

At 31 March 2016
Opening Additions Repayments Revaluation Closing
£00a EQOQ £000 £000 £000
VC Catalyst 5313 9791 (409) 334 15029
Total 5,313 9791 (409) 334 15,029
At 31 March 2015
Acquired an
310ct2014 Addinions pay luation Closing
ECOD ECOO £000 £000 £000
VC Catalyst ER:H 3065 (593} {370 5,313
Total 3181 3 065 (563) {370) 5313
13 5 Dervatives
At31 March 2016
At At
31 March 2015 payments I 31March 2018
£000 £000 €000 £000
Enterprise Capital Funds 12273 - 6638 18,911
Total 12,273 - 6,638 18,911
At 31 March 2015
hcquired on At
31 0ct 2014 Repayments Revaluation 31 March 2015
£000 £000 EOCO £000
Enterpnse Capual Funds 9882 (1,210} 3601 12,273
Total 9,882 {1210) 3,601 12,373
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14 Trade and other receivables

<016 2015
£000 £000

Amounts receivable within ane year
Traderecewables 15,882 1192
Accrued income 1761 3835
Prepayments 130 -
Otherrecevables 228 35
18 1G1 5062

Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as loans and recewables and are therefore measured at amartised cost

Of the amount above EZ 1m (2015 £1 0 mition) of trade receivables and E1 8 mullion (2015 £3 8 million} of accnued income
are recevable from the Department for Business Energy and Industnal Strategy The trede receivables balance includes
£12 3mof cashin transit at 31 March 2016 that has been paid to acquire assets but where the cash has not been receved

by the counterparty

15 Cashand cash equivalents

The following balances were held at year end

2016 2015
£000 £000
Government Banking Service o o 55,800 608118
Cornmerual banks 2,562 2930
Total 58 362 71048

The British Business Bank generally maintains a cash balance of at least £50m to fund investments As at 31 March 2016
the cash balance was £5B 3m of which £41 Bm was used to find investments in April and May 2016 As the majonity of the

cash 1s held in the Government Banking Service there 1s mimimal cost to the Exchequer
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16. Trade and other payables

2016 2015
£000 EOQD
Armounts falling due within one year
Trade payables 347 14
VAT and sotial secunty 1686 346
Shareholder loan g8g2 2081
Accrued expenditure o _ 4 - - 4 2597
Cther payables 1980 1527
15,787 6,565
Amounts falling due after more than ¢ne year
Accrued expenditure . B8 4726
B8a 426
The shareholder loan is from the Department for Business Energy and Industnal Strategy All shareholder loans are
subsequently converted te share capital
The Dwectors consider that the carrying amount of trade payatles approxmates to ther far value
17 Provisions
2018 2015
£000 £000
Opening balance S 4 1./ S -
Acquired on purchase of ECFinvestments o o = __ #5566
Provided in year 48875 31686
Provision utilised in year (10.242) {5.641)
Provision released in year (2 042) -
Closing balance 108 212 71621
Of which
Curent . N L 28373 19 866
Non-current T _ - Blgam 51755
108,212 71621
All provisions reiate te loan commitments
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18 Contingent liabilities and indemnities

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 479A Subsidiary companies conditions for
exemption from audit of the Companies Act which exempts qualifying companies from the audiz of thew individual eccounts
for a hinancial yaar The exernption 1s i respect of the following subsihiaries

Subsidiary name RegisteredNo
British Business Finance Limited _ ) 09051928
British Business Financial Services Limited 05174621
Capital for Enterpnise Limited - B o 06179047
Capital for Enterpnse Fund Managers Limited 06826072
Capital for Enterpnse (GP) Lumited SC354499
Aspire Heldco Limited 09263859

As required by the Act the British Busingss Bank plc

-~ Guarantees all gutstanding habihties to which the subsidiary companies are subject at the end of the financial year to
which the quarantee relates and untl they are satisfiedin full and

- Asserts that the guarantee 1s enforceable against the Bnitish Business Bank plc by any person to whom the subsidiary
companies are liable in respect of those kab

19 Capital and other commitments

191 Capital commitments

The Bntish Business Bank plc had the following cammitments at the balance sheet date i relation toits existing
Investment portfolio

Notes to the consehdated finanoial statements

19 2 Operating lease commitments

The Bank's occupation of its registered office at Foundry House 3 Millsands Riverside Exchange Sheffield S3 BNHis
gaverned by a Memorandum of Terms of Gceupation (MOTO} covering the penod from 17 December 2012 to 30 June 2017

For the year ended 31 March 2016 lease payments of £77 870 were recognised as an expense In the year

The lease commitments as at the balance sheet date are as follows

<yr 1 Syrs 25yrs Total
EDDO £000 £000 £000
Operating lease 78 20 - 98

2016 2015
£000 £000
British Business Bank nvestments Ltd
BFPSmallBusiness o L o usn 27 836
BFP Mid Cap o o 45y 457537
Investment Programme 256,782 136,453
Ve Catalyst 54,609 24,800
Venture Caprital Solutions
Enterpnise Capital Funds 253594 195 038C
Bndges Venture Fund 577 899
Capital for Enterprise Fund - 7 086
799 984 849 301
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The Bank s 1n the process of negotiating a new MOTO to cover its occupation of office space at Fleetbank House,
2+6 Salsbury Square London EC4Y BJX The MOTD s expected to permit the Bank to occupy the space to 1 Apnl 2019
with an option to break the agreement upon serving six months notice

For the year ended 31 March 2016 the Bank paid £350 000 i expenses in relation to occupying the offices
(including service charges rates and utilities)

20. Share capital

2016 2015
No Ne
Authonsed ordinary shares of £1 each S 000,000 5000 000
2016 205
No No
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of E1 each
Brought forward o o o 664 326 50
Shares 1ssued for cash 173,200 664 276
Carned forward 837 526 564,326
The Company has one tlass of ordinary shares which tarry no nght to fixed income
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21. Subsidianies and other significant undertakings

The Group consists of a parent company British Business Bank plc, incorporated in the UK and a number of subsidiaries
held directly by the Bntish Business Bank plc which operate and are incorperated in the United Kingdom

The principal subsidiary undertakings of the Company are shown below The capiial of each entity depends on its nature
and cansists of ordinary shares

Country of Shares held

Subsldiary incorporation Nature of Business by the Company
British Business Bank UK Makes commercial investments into providers of 100%
Investments Limited finance to smaller businesses plus venture capital

L fundinvestments . -
Bntish Business Finance UK Manages and invests into schemes on behalf 100%
Limited ___ oftheGoup o . o .
8nysh Business Financial - UK Adeministers investment schemes on behatf 100%

of the Department for Business Energy and
Industnal Strategy

Services Limited

Details of the subsidianes results including their net assets as at the balance sheet date and their profit or loss for the
pencd ended 31 March 2016 are provided in the segmental reporting note 9

The British Business Bank Group alsa has the foilowing significant holdings in undertakings cther
than subsidiaries

Proporticn held

Countryinwhich  Class of share held by by the British
Name itisincorporated  the Britlsh Business Bank Business Bank
8MSFinance SARL __ Luxembourg Notclassified __498% o
industnal Lending 1
(Boost Fund) Luxembourg Class A shares 44 1%
Pricoa Sterling Corporate
8ond Fund! Ireland Not classified 67 7%
UncaCopitalLimited?  _ Jersey _ Notclassihed o _S00%
VRG Ventures UK Ordinary shares 26 5%

Pricoas latest Anancial year end was 30 fune 2016 The fund does not produce separate accounts and therefore figures
for the fund are not avadatile

?Unica's fatest inancial year end was 30 june 2016 At the balance sheet date it had not published accounts in respect of
thatyear Asat 30 june 2015 1ts aggregate amount of capital and reserves

was E4 428 650 and during its financial year it made a profit of £1 178
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22 Financmal instruments

22 1 Categories of financial mstruments

The following table anatyses the Group's financial assets and kabiies in accordance with the categones of financial
instruments n LAS 39 Fnanceal instruments, Recogmitron and Measurement Assets and habities cutside the scope of
IAS 39 are shown separately

As at 31 March 2016
Non-
Assets Liabilities  firancial
held Loans Heldte Avallable held at assets
at and maturity forsale amertised and
FYTPL receivables investments assets cost  labliities Total
Note £000 £000 £00Q EDOC £000 €000 E000
Assets
Property plant and equipment 10 - - - - - 361 361
Intangible assets il - - - - - 119 119
Loans and recewvables 131 ~ feg®? - - - - 72887
Held to matunty investments 132 - - 31 090 - - - 31050
Avallable for sake
financialassets 133 - - 729,735 - - 729735
Designated at FVTRL 134 15029 - - - - - 1502%
Derivatives 135 11891 - - - - - 1891
Trade and other recevables 14 17 971 - - - - 17971
Prepayments o 1a - - - - = e 130
Cash and cash equivalents 15 - 58382 - - - - 53382
Totaf assets 33,940 149,240 31,090 729 735 - 610 944,615
Liabilities - - - - - - -
Trade and cther payables 15 - - - - (14189) (L686) {15875)
Corporation tax g2 - - - - - (5710)  (5710)
Deferred tax B 83 - - - - - _[2736) (2796)
Provisions 17 - - - - - (108212) (108212)
Total habilities - - - - [14,189)(118,404) (132,593)
Net Assets 33940 149,240 31,090 729,735 (14,1689)(117,794) B12,022
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2¢2.2 Fairvalue
measurements

The information set out below
provides information about how the
Group determines fair valves of
vanous financial assets and financial
habihties

The investment portfeiic consists of
assets tarried at amorused cost (loans
and recewvables and held to matunty
nvestments) and fair value (available
for sale assets assets desrgnated at
fair value through profit and loss and
detivatives) Falrvalue s the price that
would be recerved to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a habihty in anarderly
transaction between market
partinipants at the measurement date
regardless of whether that pncess
directly pbservable or estimated using
anaother valuation technique

Fair value of the Group's financial
assets and financial habihbes that
are measured at fair value ona
recurnng basis

Available far sale assets

For all AFS assess except for the
Enterpnse Capital Funds, the
invastment valuation a net asset
valuation {NAV) s detarmined by
investment managers on a regular
basts (monthly or guarterly)

The directors review the investment
valuation reports pencdically and are
satished with the year end valuations
presented in the financial statements

Enterpnise Capital Funds, assets
designated at fair value through
profit ar loss & derivatives

The primary veluation methodology
used for the debt element of
Investments is the discounted cash
flow method Farr value 1s estimated
by derving the present value of the
investment using reascnable
assumptions of expected future cash
flows and the estimated repayment
value and date discounted at the
apprapriate nsk-adjusted discount
rate The discount rate 1s estimated
with reference to the market nisk free
rate and a nsk-adjusted premium

Each investment has a penodically
updated model, which foreach
valuation assessment 1s updated

for actual asset performance and key
assumption and nput changes

Enterprise Capaal Funds also contain a separately identified equity denvative The denvatives are valued using the Black-
Scholes model The key inputs used in the dervative valuation are

Input
Netamount drawn ard fund valuatron
as at 31 March 2016

Time to fund exit « ranging from 0 10 <mm.W.

Volatiity - ranging from 2996 to 32%

Dwidend yield - ranging frem 3 0% to 4 5%

Rrsk free rate

Assumptions in determining the input
Reported by fund managers

Assessed mmum.q.mﬂm_u_ for each fund based on remaimng

nvestment penod and estimated timetable for fund exits
The VIX 2nd the VXN indexes have been used as a proxy for
the expected volatility for non-sector specific and technology
specific funds respectively

Set Lo equal the contractual return which funds must pay

hefore any upside on the option 1 realised
Denved from UK Covernment bonds
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Fair value of financial assets and
financial rabilities that are not
measured at fair value ona
recurring basis (but fair vaiue
disclosures are required)

The dwrectors consider that the
carrying amounits of the loans and
recevables and held to matunty
finanaial assets recorded at amortised
costin the financiak statements
approximate ther fair values

inaddition for financial reporting
purposes fair value measurements
are categonsed into Level 1 2or 3
based on the degree to which the
inputs to the far value measurernents
are observable and the significance
of theinputs to the fair value
measuremeni nits entrety which
are descrbed as follows

- Level 1 far value measurements
are thase derved from quoted
prices {unadjusted) in active
markets,

- level 2 fair value measurements
are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or hability either
directly (1e as prices) or indirectly
{re derved from prices) and

- Level 3 farr value measurements
are those denved from valuaucn
techrigues thatinclude inputs for
the asset or hability that are not
based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs}

The Group's financial assets at fair
value through the profit and loss
avallable for sale assets and Joans and
recevables are all classified as Level 3
assets The Groups held to matunty
Investments are classihed as Level 1
assets

At 31 March 2016 based on the
veluation assessment available-for
sale assets were increased by £12 3
millien (2015 ES 7million) taken to
Other Comprehensive Income

Inaddition the farr value of denvative
assets held was increased by

Ec e million (2015 £3 bmillion}

taken to the Income Statement

22 3 Financial nsk
management

The Group has exposure to a number
of financial risks through the conduct
of itsoperatcns Detalls of the Groups
nsk management structure are
provided in the Risk Management
section of the Strategic Report

This note peesents information about
the nature and extent of nisks arsing
from the financial iInstruments

BBB has exposure to the {ollowing
risks from its use of financial
instruments

- Creditnsk

-~ Market sk

Liquedity nskis not deemed relevant
for the Group

Creditnsk

Credit and Investment nsk Is the nsk of
aioss due to the fatlure of a
counterparty of a financial instrument
to meet its cbhgations to pay the
Group in accordance with agreed
terms or due to the nsk of loss due to
nappropnate investment decsions
Credit nisk also includes settlement
nsk when a counter party fails to
settte their side of a transaction and
concentration nsk The Groupscredit
nskis also influenced by general
Macroeconemic condkions

Credit sk may arise in any of the
Group s asset where there s the
potentia! for default including loans
and recervables and available for sale
investments with a comractual
repayment

The degree to which the Group is
exposed to this credit nsk depends on
the individual charactenstics of tha
contract ceunterparty and the nature
of the investment

The amount of exposure, before
taking inte account any collaterat or
secunty ineach class of financal
asset s imited to the amount Invested
at any given point in time

As part of the Risk Appetite protess
BBB undertakes stress scenario
modelling on its portfolio Severe but
plausible siressed scenanos featuring
significant asset value correchions on
fair value of investments and
heightened portfolio defaults were
appled to planned deployment and
steck levels in each Programme within
BBB The general approach is that
thesa scenanos are chosen on the
basis that they are as severeasa ln
20 year downside scenano (1 e the
worst year i the past 20 years) The
outputof this exercise reflects the risk
undertaken by BBB operating in
underserved finance markets and
demonstrates that BBB would suffer
significant losses if such a scenano
was to materiaise The findings of this
exercise was considered by the Board
and also communicated to key
siakeholders

The value of the investments in each
class of financial assetis detaled in
secuon {1) of this note and m notes 13
10 17 which alsg give details of total
impairmant losses during the year

For some debt investments
appropriate cellateralis held
depending on the Group's programme
cntena The nature of collateral may
change over tme depending on the
nvestments which the Group holds in
any grven period The concentratton of
credit nisk1s hmited due to the
investment base being large and
spread across the Groups operating
segments Accordingly the directors
believe that there is no further credit
pravision required in excess of the
provisien forimpairment losses and
the specific provision for credit losses
detaled below
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Credit nsk assessment IS carried out as
partof the investment approva!
processand 15 revisited on an ongoing
basis as part of the Group s partfolio
management process

Indetermning fair value the Group has
made provision against the value of
certan of its loans and recevables,
those being receivables purthased
through an invence discounter and
part loans to borrowers that are made
alongside other platform lenders in
accordance with its provisioning policy
The basis of provisioning s different
for the different categores of loans
and recevables In determining the
recoverabiity of the amounts
recewvable, the Grovp considers past
performance of recovenes

With respect to recevables purchased
threugh an invoice discounter the
Group provides for all debts which are
overdue by 90 days at arate of 100%
of the average overdue balance over
the previous three months In addition
1t makes 100% provision for all
recewvables in respect of which theres
a known or expected problemin
collection evenif payment is not
overdue by 90 days At 31 March 2016
the gross value of recervables
purchased through an invoice
discounter was E4 7m of which

E185 111 was averdue and fully
provided Inaddition a further £6€ 314
was provided in respect of recevables
where there was a known or expected
wollection problem

The Group makes provision for all

part loans made to borrowersmade
alongside other platform lenders
which are overdue by 90 days at arate
of 1009 At 31 March 2016 the gross
value of such recewvables was £32 9m
of which £1 593 154 was overdue by
90 days and fully prowided

No other repaymenits in resgect of the
Group s hnanoal instruments were
overdue at the balance sheet date

Market risk

Market Risk 15 the nisk of director
indract lossas that arse from
flugtuations in values of, or income
from assets or in movements in
nterest or exchange rates or credit
spreads The Group will identify
market risk ansing from an inability
to exat an mvestment within the
intended time frame

Liquidity nsk

Liquidity nskis the nisk that an entity
does not have sufficient financial
resources in the short term to meet its
obligations as they fall due, or its
strategy 15 constrained by Inadequate
or tnappropnate funding sources

Liquidity nsk 15 not deemed
significantly relevant to the Group asit
15 100% Government funded with all
programmes pre approved and
committed to and it does not have a

' leveraged balance sheet

Interest rate risk

BBB s investments include a
combination of fixed and vanable rate
loans Interest rate nsk is regularly
menitored to ensura that the mix of
variable and fixed rate borrowing 1s
appropnate The Croup does not use
dernvatives to hedge interest

rate msk

LIBOR sensitavity of the investment
Programme 15 as follows

- Theimpact of a1 percentage point
increase in the interest rate |
applcable to investmentswouldbe |
an approximate Increase fnncome |
of £7m over a one year penod

- Theimpactof a 0 25 pertentage
point decrease in the wterest rate
applicable tonvestments would be
an mﬂ_u_dx_n._mmm decrease in iIncome
of £2mover a cne year penod |
Larger decreases would be
mitigated by a sigmificant element
of LIBOR floers

Currency nsk

The Group does not have matenal
exposure 1o currency nsk as the Group
prnmanly invest inaits functional
currency GBP There are some
investrments an funds which have a
Europe wide investment mandate, and
are denominated in Euros A

prerequisite of these funds 1s that

they investinto the UK at a fund level ,
a larger amount than our finanoial '
investment Approximately 6% of the W
Group s portfolio 1s in non GBP
dencmmnated investments Thera s
turcently na policy to hedge this
currency ask
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23 Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the company and rts subsidiaries which are related parties have been elminated on
consclidation and are not disclosed in this note Transactions between the Group and its associates are disclosed below

The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) 15 the principal shareholder and parent of the British
Business Bank plc BBB pic provides services to BEIS in relation to some of the financial assets hefd within BEIS and not yet
novated Inreturn BBB recogmises income in relation to the services provided Inaddition BEIS provided temparary staif o
the BBB Group for which there are recharges

Trading transactions

Puning the year Croup companies entered into the following transactions with BEIS

2016 2015
EOOD £000
Income
Grant-in ad _ - R 295
Management fee 10 B50 5026
Proceeds of warranty clam L . _ 2800 _ -
Expenditure
Staff seconded from BEIS 673 450
Rent o o 350 158
Capital transactions
Sharesissued o L L 173200 ~  6e4d/6
Shareholderioan o B B 882 2 081
196,655 672,286

Amounts cutstanding at year end
As at the balance sheet date the Group was owed £3 9m from BEIS relating to the management fee (2015 £4 8m}) and
awed BEIS £10m of which £0 7m relates to seconded staff £0 4m rent and a shareholder loan of £8 9m (2015 £2 6m)

24 Events after the reporting date

The result of the referendum held on 23 June 2016 was in favour of the UX leaving the European Union A reasonable
estimate of the finanuial effect of this event on the Group cannot be made Thes s a non-adjusting event

0On 14 july 2016, following a machinery of Government change it was announced that the British Business Bank s
shareholder the Department for Business Innovation ang Skills (BIS), 1s hawing its respansibihties changed Our
shareholder 1s now the Department for Business Energy and ndustnal Strategy (BEIS)

As at the date of these annual report and accounts there have been ne other post reporting date events that
require disclosure

25 Controlling party

In the opimion of the Directors, the Group s parent company and ulbimate controlling party 15 the Secretary of State for the
Department for Business, Energy and Industnal Strategy The consolidated finanoal statements of the Department for
Business Energy and Industrial Strategy are available from the government depariments website at GOVUK
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Company financial statements

Company statement of changes in equity

as at 31 March 2016

Issued capital

Retained earnings

Total

EDOO £000 £000
Opening balance as at 1 April 2014 50 {36) (46)
Netincome after tax - 32 32
Total comprehensive income - 32 3z
Issue of ominary shares 664,276 - 664 276
Balance at 31 March 2015 664 326 {64} 664 262
Opening balance as at 1 April 2015 664 326 {64) 664,262
Net income after tax - (46 250) (46,250}
Total comprehensive mcome - (46 250) __(46,250)
Issue of crdinary shares 173,200 - 173 200
Balance at 31 March 2016 837,526 (46 314} 791.212

Company statement
of financial position
as at 31 March 2016
2016 2015

Note £000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 361 568
Intangible assets o . __us . 200
Investments 2 750611 618 868
Total non-current assets 751,091 619,636
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 4 8785 9256
Deferred tax 93 -
Cash and cash equivalents L o 3 465837 41168
Total current assets 55,715 50,424
Total assets 806,806 6570 060
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 5 115 491) (5408)
Corporatien tax (58) (116}
Total current iabilitres (15 547) (5 524)
Total assets less current habilities 791,259 664,536
Non-current liabihities
Trade and other payables 5 (47) (274
Total non current hiabilities (47) (274}
Total habilities {15,594) (3 798)
Net assets/([1abilities) 791 212 664,262
Equsty
lssued share capital _ 837526 B 664,326
Retaned earnings (46 314) (64)
Total equity 791 212 664,262
The financial statements of the group (company number 0B616013) were approved by the Beard of Directors and
authonsed for issue on 20th July 2016 They were signed on its behalf by
Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer
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Company cash flow statement

as at 31 March 2016
2016 2015

Note £ED00 £000
Profit before tax (46,323) 148
Cash flows from operating activities
Adjustments for
Depreciation, baddebtand smparments 304 132
Impairment of investments in subsidiary undertakings 4 70257 -
Loss on disposal of iIntangible assets 14 -
Corporation tax paid o 1{89) - -
Movement in trade recervables _ 4 471 (9 206)
Movement in trade payables 5 9B56 5586
Net cash received from/(used for} operating activities 34,499 (3 240)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of avalable for-sale assets 2 (202 000) {b18 568)
Purthases of property plant and equipment 21 (660)
Purthase of intangible assets 9 (240)
Net cash used in investing activities (202 030} (618 768}
Cash flows fram financing activities
lssue of new shares 173,200 664 276
Net cash from financing activities 173 200 664 276
Netincrease/[decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5 669 41,168
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 41,168 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 46 B37 41,168
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1. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companves Act 2006 { the Act)

The Company s accounting policies are consistent with those described in the conschdated accounts of the British Business
Bank plc Disclosures inrelation to property plant and equipment (note 10) intangible assets (nete 11) and share capiial
{ncte 20) have not been repeated here as there are no differences to those provided in the consoldated accounts

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are accounted for at cost in accordance with LAS 27 and are measured at the lower

of thewr carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

These financia! statements have been prepared on the going concern basis as described in the consolidated accounts of
the British Business Bank plc, and under the histerical cost convention The financial statements are presented in pounds

sterhing whichis the Company's functional currency

Profit of the parent company

The Campany has taken advantage of section 468 of the Act and consequently the statement of comprehensive income
(including the profit and loss account) of the parent company 1S not presented as part of these accounts The foss of the
parent company for the financial period ameunted to £46 250 000 (201% profit £32 000)

2 Investments

The Company acts as a holding company for the Graup and has the fellowing principal subsidiary undertakings which

affected the Groupss resuits or net assets

Subsidiary
British Business Bank investments Limited (BBBIL)

British Business Finance Limited (BBFL)

British Business Financial Services Limited (BBFSL)

Nature of Business
Makes commertial investments into providers of
finance to smaller businesses plus venture capital
fund investments

Manages nvestment schemes on behalf of the Group
Manages investment schemes on behalf of

the Department for Business Energy and

Industnal Strategy

All subsidiary undertakings are wholly-owned and incorporated in the UK all shareholdings are in the name of the

Brtish Business Bank plc
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At 31 March 2016
I | Investment
InBBBIL in BBFL INBBFSL Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balance 500,153 118,715 - 618 868
Investment in year o o 185,000 13 000 - _ 202000
Impairment {1257) {59 000} - {70 257}
Closing balance 687,895 62,715 - 750,611
At 31 March 2015
investment Investment Investmant
nBBBIL wn BAFL nBAFSL Total
EQDO £000 £000 €000
Cpeming balance - - - -
Invesiment in year 500153 118715 - 616 B68
Closing balance 500 153 118 715 - 518 B6E

The Company has impaired its investments in BBBIL and BBFL as the fair values have been assessed as being lower than
the carrying amount would be measured at cost

.

3. Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash eguivalents balance represents cash held within the Government Banking Service

4 Trade and other receivables

2016 2015
£000 £000

Amounts receivable within one year
Trade recevables . L 2176 1125
Prepayments 130 8
Intra Group 6 .N.mm -B100
Other recevables 193 23
8,785 9,258

Trade receables disclosed above are classified as loans and recewvables and are therefore measured at amortised cost
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5. Trade and other payables

2016 2015
EQOC £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade payables 310 -
VATandsocafsecunty ~ 1,258 323
Accrued expenditure - T 886 1523
Intra-Group 2,359 Ba1
Qther payables 9678 2681
15,491 5408
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Accrued expenditure a7 274
47 274

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value

6 Related party transactions

Duning the year under review Bntish Business Bank pic was 100% owned by the UK Government, with the shareholder
being the Secretary of State for the Department for Business Energy and Industna! Strategy The Company has elected to
take the exemption under IAS 24 regarding disclosure of transactions with related parties because the UK Government has
control over both the Company and other entities

The Company trades with Covernment bodies on an arm's length basis on commercial terms in line with coniractual
agreements The main Government bedies transacted with are the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial
Strategy and the Company s prinupal subsidiary undertakings British Business Bank Investments Linwted (BBBIL) Braush
Business Finance Limited (BBFL) and British Business Financial Services Limeted (BBFSL)

The Group's trading and capital other transactions with BIS were all effected through the Company and are disclosed on
note 23 of the consohdated financial statements

The Company provided camital to BBBIL, and BBFL as showninnote 2 In addition it made charges to s pnncipal subsidiary
undertakings in respect of services provided on therr behalf amounting 10 €12 7m {2015 £6 3m)

7 Controliing party

In the opinion of the Directors the company’s ultimate controlling party 15 the Secretary of State for the Department far
Business Energy and Industral Strategy The consolidated financial statements of the Department for Business Energy
and Industnial Strategy are available from the government departments’ website at GOV UK Copies of the group financial
statemants of the Bntish Business Bank plc are avallable from Companies House, Crown Way, Maindy, Carciff CF14 3U2
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